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Phoenix Group PLC

(An Abu Dhabi Global Market (ADGM) Free Zone Public Company Limited by Shares)
(“Company”)

PHOENIX

Dated: 10 November 2023

This is the prospectus (“Prospectus”) relating to the issuance and offering by the Company of
907,323,529 ordinary shares with a nominal value of USD 0.027 (being equivalent to AED 0.10)
each (which will represent 15% of the total issued shares of the Company as of the Listing date)
(referred to hereinafter as the “Offer Shares”) in a public subscription in the United Arab Emirates
(the “UAE”) only. The Company reserves the right to amend the size of the Offering at any time
prior to the end of the subscription period at its sole discretion, taking into consideration the
percentages specified for each segment in this Prospectus and in accordance with the applicable
laws in the UAE and the approval of the UAE Securities and Commodities Authority (“SCA” or
“Authority”). The offer price per share is AED 1.50 (the “Offer Price”) and the total value of the
Offer Shares will be AED 1,360,985,294. The Offer Shares will be duly and validly issued as at the
date of listing of the Offer Shares (the “Listing”) on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (the “ADX”).

Whereas this Prospectus will be published for the purpose of subscribing to the Offer Shares in the
UAE only, no action has been taken or will be taken in any jurisdiction that would permit a public
offering of the Offer Shares pursuant to this Prospectus or the possession, circulation or distribution
of this Prospectus. Accordingly, the Shares of the Company may not be offered or sold, directly or
indirectly, nor may this Prospectus or any other offering material or advertisement or other
document or information in connection with the Offer Shares be distributed or published, in or from
any country or jurisdiction except in compliance with any applicable laws and rules and regulations
of any such country or jurisdiction.

The Company is not subject to UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021 concerning Commercial
Companies. The SCA is not responsible for the content of this Prospectus or the information
contained herein. The Company is subject to the ADGM Companies Regulations 2020 (as
amended) (“Companies Regulations”) and other applicable law and regulation in the ADGM. The
ADGM Registration Authority is responsible for the supervision of all public companies incorporated
in the ADGM, including the Company, in relation to compliance with the Companies Regulations.

1/169



Investment in the Offer Shares involves a high degree of risk. Prospective Subscribers
should carefully read the “Investment Risks” and the “Important Notice” sections of this
Prospectus to obtain sufficient information on factors that should be considered before
investing in the Offer Shares.
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OFFER PERIOD
The Offer Period starts on 16 November 2023 and will close on 18 November 2023.

This is the initial public offering (“Offering”) for 907,323,529 shares. If all of the Offer Shares are
subscribed for and allocated and the Offer size is not increased, the Offer Shares will represent 15%
of the total issued ordinary shares in the capital of the Company (the “Shares”) as of the Listing date.
The Company reserves the right to amend the size of the Offering at any time prior to the end of
the subscription period at their sole discretion, subject to applicable laws and the approval of the
SCA. Prior to this Offering, the Shares have not been listed on any financial market and there has
been no public market for the Shares. Following the closing of the Offer Period and accepting the
subscription for Shares, the Company will apply to list its Shares on the ADX.

Date of SCA'’s approval of publishing this Prospectus: 8 November 2023

This Prospectus contains data that has been submitted in accordance with the rules for issuance
and disclosure issued by the SCA in the UAE and this Prospectus has been approved by the SCA.
However, the SCA’s approval of the prospectus does not constitute an endorsement of the
feasibility of investment nor a recommendation to subscribe for the Offer Shares. The approval only
means that this Prospectus contains the minimum information required in accordance with the
applicable rules issued by the SCA with respect to the Prospectus. The SCA is not responsible for
the accuracy, completeness or adequacy of the information contained in this Prospectus and the
SCA does not bear any responsibility for any damages or losses incurred by any person as a result
of relying on this Prospectus or any part of it. The members of the Company’s Board of Directors,
jointly and severally, bear full responsibility regarding the validity of the information and data
contained in this Prospectus, and they confirm, to the extent of their knowledge and belief, and
subject to due diligence and after conducting reasonable studies, that there are no other facts or
material information, which were not included in this Prospectus that render any statement
contained therein misleading to the Subscribers or influencing their decision to invest.

Method of sale of the Offer Shares in a public subscription:

The Offer Shares are 907,323,529 Shares, which will be offered by the Company in a public offering
in order to increase the Company's capital. The Company reserves the right to amend the size of
the Offering at any time prior to the end of the subscription period at its sole discretion, subject to
applicable laws and the SCA’s approval.

The Lead Receiving Bank commits to refund the oversubscription amounts received from
Subscribers for the Offering and any accrued profit on such amounts one day after the
subscription closing until one day prior to the refund to the Subscribers, provided that the
refund is made within five working days from the date on which all allocations of Offer Shares to
successful Subscribers is determined.

The founders of the Company, whether directly or indirectly or through their subsidiaries, may not
subscribe for any Offer Shares.

Listing Advisor

International Securities LLC has been appointed to be the Listing Advisor of the Company (in
accordance with the requirements for that role as described in Article 33(2)(14) of the Offering
Regulations) for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of Listing. The Listing Advisor is
licensed by the Securities and Commodities Authority to practice listing advisor’s activities.

A list of further definitions and abbreviations is provided in the “Definitions and Abbreviations”
Section of this Prospectus.
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TRANCHES STRUCTURE
1. First Tranche (Retail Subscribers)

Shares will be offered to the first tranche in accordance with this Prospectus, and approximately
6.67% of the Offer Shares, which represents 60,488,235 (sixty million four hundred and eighty-eight
thousand two hundred and thirty-five) shares, will be allocated to the first tranche. The first tranche
is limited to the following persons:

A. Individual Subscribers

Natural persons (including Assessed Professional Investors (as defined below in the second
tranche, who do not participate in the second tranche) who possess an investor number and a bank
account (except for any person who is a resident of the United States of America as defined in the
US Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“US Securities Act”). There are no other requirements or
restrictions on nationality or place of residence to qualify as an individual subscriber.

Minors are permitted to apply for Offer Shares in accordance with the procedures applied by the
Lead Receiving Bank and the laws in force in this regard.

All Retail Subscribers must hold a NIN with the ADX.

If all of the Retail Offer Shares are not fully subscribed, the unsubscribed Retail Offer Shares will
be available to Professional Subscribers, or alternatively (in consultation with the SCA). The
Company may (i) extend the Closing Date for the Subscription to the first tranche and the second
tranche; and/or (ii) closing the Offering at the limit of the subscriptions received.

The minimum application size for Retail Subscribers is AED 5,000 with any additional application
in increments of AED 1,000.

There is no maximum application size for Retail Subscribers.

2. Second Tranche (Professional Subscribers)

Shares will be offered for the second tranche, and approximately 93.33% of the Offer Shares, which
represents 846,835,294 (eight hundred and forty-six million eight hundred and thirty-five thousand
two hundred and ninety-four) shares, which will be allocated and limited to “Professional
Investors” (as defined in The Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No. 13/Chairman of 2021 (as
amended from time to time), which specifically includes investors classified as follows

. “Professional Investors by nature” which include:

€) international corporations and organizations whose members are state, central
banks or national monetary authorities;

(b) governments, government institutions, their investment and non-investment bodies
and companies wholly owned by them;

(c) central banks or national monetary authorities in any country, state or legal
authority;
(d) capital market institutions licensed by the SCA or regulated by a supervisory

authority equivalent to the SCA;
(e) financial institutions;

Q) regulated financial institutions, local or foreign mutual investment funds, regulated
pension fund management companies and regulated pension funds;

(9) any entity whose main activity represents investment in financial instruments, asset
securitisation or financial transactions;
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(h)

(i)

0

(k)

(M

any company whose shares are listed or admitted to trading in any market of an
IOSCO member country;

a trustee of a trust which has, during the past 12 months, assets of AED 35,000,000
or more;

The owner of a license according to the regulations of (same family office) with
respect to only practicing its activities to perform its duties (such as same family
office) with assets of not less than AED 15,000,000 or more;

joint ventures and associations which have or had, at any time during the past two
years, net assets of AED 25,000,000 or more (excluding partner and shareholder
loans);

a body corporate who fulfils (on the date of its last financial statements) a “large
undertaking” test, whereby it fulfils at least two of the following requirements:

® holds total assets of AED 75,000,000 or more (excluding short-term liabilities
and long-term liabilities);

(i)  bas a net annual revenue of AED 150,000,000 or more; or
(i)  an aggregate total of cash and investments on its balance sheet; or its total

equity (after deducting paid up share capital), is not less than AED
7,000,000.

“Assessed Professional Investors” which include:

(@)

(b)

(d)

(©)

a natural person who owns net assets, excluding the value of his/her main
residence, of not less than AED 4,000,000 (a “HNW!I”);

a natural person who is:
0] approved by the SCA or a similar regulatory authority;

(i) an employee of a licensed entity or a regulated financial institution who has
been employed for the past two years;

(iii) assessed to have sufficient knowledge and experience in respect of the
relevant investments and their risks (following a suitability assessment); or

(iv) represented by an entity licensed by the SCA in a manner that does not
conflict with the terms of its license;

a natural person who has a joint account (the “Account Participant”)
representing a Assessed Professional Investor (the “Main Account Holder”),
provided that each of the following conditions are satisfied:

0] the Account Participant must be an immediate or second degree relative
of the Main Account Holder;

(i) the account is used to manage the investments of the Main Account Holder
and their subscribers; and

(iii) written confirmation is obtained from the Subscriber (i.e. the Account
Participant) confirming that investment decisions relating to the joint
investment account are made on their behalf by the Main Account Holder;

any Establishment with a special purpose or special legal form such as a

trust (“Trust”) or corporation solely established to facilitate the management
of an investment portfolio for a natural person representing a Assessed

6/169



Professional Investor; and
(e) an undertaking person which satisfies the following requirements:

1. the total of its cash and investments in the balance sheet, or its total
authorized capital less the paid-up capital, is not less than UAE 4,000,000.

2. has sufficient experience and understanding of the markets, financial
products, related financial transactions and associated risks in accordance
with suitability criteria; or

3. an undertaking person who has:

0] a controlled natural person who owns a majority of the shares in
a company, is able to control a majority of its voting rights, or has
the ability to appoint or remove a majority of the members of its
board of directors;

(i) a holding or subsidiary company; or

(iii) a joint venture partner.

who, in each case, have been approved by the Company in consultation with the Lead
Manager.

All second tranche subscribers (Professionals) must hold an NIN with the ADX.

If all of the Offer Shares by the second tranche (Professional Subscribers) are not fully subscribed,
then the Offer will be withdrawn.

The minimum application size for the Professional Subscribers is AED 1,000,000.
There is no maximum application size for second tranche (Professional Subscribers).

Every Subscriber must hold a NIN with ADX and bank account number in order to be eligible to apply
for Offer Shares.

Subscribers may submit applications to subscribe to the Offer Shares in one tranche only. If any
person applies to subscribe for the Offer Shares in more than one tranche, the Lead Receiving
Bank and the Lead Manager have the right to reject one or both applications.

The Authority’'s approval has been obtained to publish the Prospectus for the Offering of the Offer
Shares in the UAE (outside the Abu Dhabi Global Market and the Dubai International Financial
Center, and other than the Abu Dhabi Global Market the Shares have not been registered with any
other regulatory body in any other jurisdiction/country.

The publication of the Arabic version of this Prospectus has been approved by the Authority.

This Prospectus is dated 10 November 2023

Investing in the Offer Shares involves a high degree of risk. Prospective subscribers must
read the “Investment Risks” section and the “Important Notice” section of this Prospectus
carefully in order to obtain sufficient information about the factors that must be taken into
consideration before investing in the Offer Shares.

This Prospectus is available on the website of the Company at:
www.phoenixgroupuae.com/IPO
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Name and Contact Details of the offer participants

Lead Receiving Bank
First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC

FAB Building
Khalifa Business Park, Al Qurm District
PO Box 6316
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
The list of the Lead Receiving Bank’s branches attached in Annex 3 of this Prospectus

Lead Manager
First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC

FAB Building
Khalifa Business Park, Al Qurm District
PO Box 6316
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

Lead Placement Agent
International Securities LLC

Al Bateen Towers, C2, 13th Floor
PO Box 107077
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

IPO Legal Counsel
Hadef & Partners LLC

12th Floor, Blue Towers, Khalifa Street,
P.O. Box 3727
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

Listing Advisor
International Securities LLC

Al Bateen Towers, C2, 13th Floor
PO Box 107077
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

Company’s Accountants
Crowe Mak

P.O Box 109460
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

IPO Subscription Auditors
Ernst & Young

P.O Box 136, 26th Floor,
Nation Tower 2, Corniche,
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

Legal Adviser to the Lead Manager
IBRAHIM & PARTNERS
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24th Floor, Al Sila Tower
ADGM Square
Tel: +(971) 2694 8668
E-mail: Info@inp.legal
P.O. Box 5100746
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

Investor Relations Officer

Sheharyar Haider Malhi (CFO) / Farah Zafar (GCLO)
Email : ir@phoenixtech.org
Tel: +971549907541
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IMPORTANT NOTICE
(To be carefully read by all Subscribers)

This Prospectus is intended to provide the potential Subscribers with information to assist in
deciding whether or not to subscribe for Offer Shares. Potential Subscribers should read this
document in its entirety, and carefully review, examine and consider all data and information
contained in it, before deciding whether or not to subscribe for Offer Shares (and, in
particular, Section 12 of Second Section (“Investment Risks”)), the Third Section —
(“Financial Disclosures”) as well as the Articles of Association of the Company, when
considering making an investment in the Company.

In making an investment decision, each potential Subscriber in the Offer Shares must rely
on its examination and analysis of the Company and the terms of the Offer, including the
relevant merits and risks. Subscription applicants must obtain necessary advice from its
legal and financial advisors regarding the investment. An investment in the Offer Shares
entails considerable risks. Potential Subscribers should not subscribe for the Offer Shares
unless they are able to bear the loss of some or all of that investment.

Recipients of this Prospectus are authorized solely to use this Prospectus for the purpose
of considering the Subscription for the Offer Shares only, and may not reproduce or
distribute this Prospectus, in whole or in part, and may not use any information herein for
any purpose other than considering whether or not to subscribe for Offer Shares in the first
tranche or second tranche. Recipients of this Prospectus agree to the foregoing by
accepting delivery of this Prospectus.

The contents of this Prospectus should not be construed as legal, financial or tax advice.

The information contained in this Prospectus shall not be subject to revision or addition
without securing the approval of the Authority and informing the public of such revision or
addition by publication in two daily newspapers in the UAE in accordance with the rules
issued by the Authority. The Company reserves the right to cancel the Offering at any time
and at its sole discretion with the prior written approval of the SCA.

The Offer Shares are being offered under this Prospectus for the purpose of subscription
in the UAE only. This Prospectus does not constitute or form part of any offer or invitation
to sell or issue, or any solicitation of any offer to purchase or subscribe for, any securities
other than the Offer Shares or any offer or invitation to sell or issue, or any solicitation of
any offer to purchase or subscribe for, Offer Shares by any person in any jurisdiction outside
of the UAE (including the Abu Dhabi Global Market (“ADGM”) and the Dubai International
Financial Centre (“DIFC”)).

This Prospectus is not being published or distributed, and must not be forwarded or
transmitted, into any other country other than the UAE (including the ADGM and the DIFC).
The Offer Shares have not been registered with any regulatory authority in any jurisdiction
other than the ADGM and SCA.

If the Offer Shares are offered in another jurisdiction, the Company shall offer the Offer
Shares in a manner that is compliant with the applicable laws and rules and acceptable to
the relevant authorities in the relevant country.

This Prospectus is not intended to constitute a financial promotion, offer, sale or delivery of
any shares or other securities under the Financial Services Regulatory Authority Market
Rules of the ADGM (the “FSRA”) and the DIFC Markets Law No. 1 of 2012 (the “DIFC
Markets Law”) or under the Markets Rules of the Dubai Financial Services Authority
(“DFSA”).

The Offer has not been approved or licensed by the regulatory body of the FSRA or DFSA
and it does not constitute any offer for any securities in the ADGM in accordance with the
FSRA Markets Rules or in the DIFC in accordance with the DIFC Markets Law or the
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Markets Rules of the DFSA.

The publication of this Prospectus has been approved by the SCA. The SCA’s approval of
the publication of this Prospectus shall neither be deemed as an endorsement or approval
of the investment feasibility nor a recommendation of subscription, but it means only that
the minimum requirements according to the issuance rules and information disclosure
applicable to the prospectus and issued by the SCA have been met. The SCA and the ADX
shall not be held liable for the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the information
contained in this Prospectus, nor shall they be held liable for any damage or loss suffered
by any person due to reliance upon this Prospectus or any part thereof.

SCA has approved this Prospectus on 8 November 2023
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Historical financial information

The Company’s audited reports and combined financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the independent auditor’'s report on review of condensed consolidated interim financial
statements for the nine (9) months period ended 30 September 2023 (unaudited) also the reports and
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 and for the year ended December 31,
2022 for Phoenix World Electronics Trading LLC, one of the subsidiaries that is wholly owned
indirectly by the Company, were included (“Financial Statements”) have been included in this
Prospectus. The Audited Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and applicable provisions of the Companies Regulations
2020 of the ADGM.

Currency presentation

Unless otherwise indicated, all references in this document to:

. “UAE dirham” or “AED” are to the lawful currency of the United Arab Emirates; and
. “US dollar” or “USD” are to the lawful currency of the United States of America.

The value of UAE dirhams has been pegged to US dollar at a rate of AED 3.6725 per USD 1 since
1997. All AED/ USD conversions in this Prospectus have been calculated at this rate.

Rounding
Certain data in this document, including financial, statistical, and operating information, has been
rounded. As a result of the rounding, the totals of data presented in this document may vary slightly

from the actual arithmetic totals of such data. Percentages in tables have been rounded and
accordingly may not add up to 100%.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document includes forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements contained in
this document speak only as of the date of this document. These forward-looking statements involve
known and unknown risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the control of the Company
and all of which are based on current beliefs and expectations about future events. Forward-looking
statements are sometimes identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “believe”,
‘expects”, “may”, “will”, “could”, “should”, “shall”, “risk”, “intends”, “estimates”, “aims”, “plans”,
“predicts”, “continues”, “assumes”, “positioned” or “anticipates” or the negative thereof, other
variations thereon or comparable terminology. These forward- looking statements include all
matters that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places throughout this document
and include statements regarding intentions, beliefs and current expectations concerning, among
other things, results of operations, financial standing, liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies, and
dividend policy and the industry in which the Company operates.

These forward-looking statements and other statements contained in this Prospectus regarding
matters that are not historical facts as of the date of this Prospectus involve predictions. No
assurance can be given that such future results will be achieved. There is no obligation or
undertaking to update these forward-looking statements contained in this document to reflect any
change in the expectations or any change in events, conditions, or circumstances on which such
statements are based unless required to do so: (i) as a result of an important change with respect to
a material point in this Prospectus; or (ii) by applicable laws of the UAE.

Actual events or results may differ materially as a result of risks and uncertainties that the Company
faces. Such risks and uncertainties could cause actual results to vary materially from the future
results indicated, expressed, or implied in such forward-looking statements. Please refer to Section
12 of Second Section (“Investment Risks”) for further information.

These forward-looking statements, and other statements contained in this Prospectus with respect
to any matters that are not historical facts, involve predictions and are based on the opinions of the
Company’s management and assumptions made by the management and information currently
available to it. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking
statements are reasonable at this time, we can give no assurance that those expectations will be
achieved. Therefore, you should not rely on these forward-looking statements based on these
uncertainties. Material factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our
expectations are set forth in the cautionary statements in this Prospectus, including, without
limitation, in conjunction with the forward-looking statements included in this Prospectus and

specifically in the “Investment Risks” section.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This Prospectus does not constitute or form any offer or invitation to sell or issue, or any solicitation
of any offer to purchase or invest in any securities other than the securities the subject of this
Prospectus. Also it does not form any offer or invitation to sell or issue, or any solicitation or
recommendation of any offer to purchase or invest in such securities by any person in any
circumstances in which such offer or solicitation is unlawful.

Recipients of this Prospectus are authorized solely to use this Prospectus for the purpose of
considering the feasibility of an investment in the Offer Shares, and may not reproduce or distribute
this Prospectus, in whole or in part, and may not use any information contained herein for any
purpose other than considering the feasibility of an investment in the Offer Shares. Such recipients
of this Prospectus agree to the foregoing by accepting delivery of this Prospectus, with the
acknowledge that, prior to making any decision as to whether to invest in the Offer Shares,
prospective Subscribers should read this Prospectus in its entirety (and, in particular, the section
headed “Investment Risks”) when considering an investment in the Company’s shares as well as the
Articles of Association of the Company. In deciding to subscribe, Subscribers must rely on its own
examination, analysis and enquiry of the Company and the terms of the Offering, including the
relevant merits and risks.

No person is authorized to give any information or to make any representation or warranty in
connection with the Offer or Offer Shares which is not contained in this Prospectus and, if given or
made, such information or representations must not be relied on as having been so authorized by
the Company, or the other Offer Participants. By subscribing for Offer Shares, a Subscriber
acknowledges that (i) it has relied only on the information in this Prospectus and (ii) no other
information has been authorized by the Company, any other Offer Participant, the Lead Manager or
any of the Company’s advisors (the “Advisors”).

Neither the content of the Company’s website or any other website referred to in the Prospectus, nor
the content of any website accessible from hyperlinks on any of such websites, forms part of, or is
incorporated into, this Prospectus, and neither the Company, any other Offer Participant, nor the
Advisors bears or accepts any responsibility for the contents of such websites.

None of the Company, the Offer Participants, the Lead Manager or the Advisors accept any liability
for the accuracy or completeness of any information reported by the press or other media, nor the
fairness or appropriateness of any forecasts, views or opinions expressed by the press or other
media regarding the Company, the Offer or the Offer Shares. None of the Company, the Offer
Participants, the Lead Manager, or the Advisors makes any representation as to the
appropriateness, accuracy, completeness or reliability of any such information or publication.

None of the Company, any of the Offer Participants, the Lead Manager, or the Advisors warrants
or guarantees the future performance of the Company, or any return on any investment made
pursuant to this Prospectus.

Statements contained in this Prospectus are made as at the date of this Prospectus unless some
prior time is specified in relation to them and the publication of this Prospectus (or any action taken
pursuant to it) must not be interpreted as giving rise to any implication that there has been no
change in the condition, facts or affairs of the Company since such date.

This Prospectus will not be subject to revision, unless the prior written approval of the SCA is
received. Any revision will become effective only after it has been announced in two daily
newspapers circulating in the UAE. The Company reserves the right, with the prior approval of the
SCA, to withdraw the Prospectus and cancel the Offer at any time and in their sole discretion. If the
Offer is withdrawn, the subscription amounts will be fully refunded to the Subscribers, along with
any accrued profits. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any sale made under it may, under
any circumstances, be taken to imply that there has been no change in the affairs of the Company
since the date of this document or that the information in it is correct as of any subsequent time.

International Securities LLC has been appointed as listing advisor (“Listing Advisor”) and First

Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC has been appointed as the lead manager (the “Lead Manager”) and will
manage the issuance, marketing and promotion of the Offer Shares in the UAE and coordinate with
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the Company, the SCA and the other Offering participants with regard to the offering of the Offer
Shares in the UAE. First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC has also been appointed as the lead receiving bank
(the “Lead Receiving Bank”) and, in its capacity as such, is responsible for receiving the
subscription amounts set out in this Prospectus in accordance with the rules and laws applicable in
and within the UAE. International Securities LLC has been appointed as the lead placement agent
(the “Lead Placement Agent”).

Each of the Offer Participants shall be liable for its participation in the Offering process, including
the Board members, with regard to the validity of the information contained in this Prospectus within
the limits of the scope of work and expertise of each Offer Participant.

The Lead Manager is acting exclusively for the Company and no one else in connection with the
Offer and will not regard any other person (whether or not a recipient of this document) as a client
to any of the Offer Participants in relation to the Offer. Whereas each Offer Participant shall be
liable, including the Company and the Board members, with regard to the completeness and
accuracy of the information contained in this Prospectus, within the limits of the scope of work and
expertise of each Offer Participant. The Lead Manager and the Offer Participants may have engaged
(directly or through their respective affiliates) in transactions with, and provided various investment
banking, financial advisory and other services for, the Company for which they would have received
customary fees. Any previous transactions between the Lead Manager and the Offer Participants
and the Company do not constitute any conflict of interest between them.

All the Board members of the Company whose nhames are set out in this Prospectus assume joint
and several responsibilities for the completeness, accuracy and verification of the contents of this
Prospectus. They declare that, they have carried out appropriate due diligence investigations, that
the information contained in this Prospectus is, at the date hereof, factually accurate, complete and
correct and that there is no omission of any information that would make any statement in this
Prospectus materially misleading.

This Prospectus contains data submitted according to the issuance and disclosure rules issued by
the SCA.

In making an investment decision, each potential Subscriber must rely on its own examination and
analysis, having reviewed the information contained in the Prospectus (in its entirety) that has been
provided by the Board members of the Company whose names are set out in this Prospectus.

No action has been taken or will be taken in any jurisdiction other than the UAE that would permit
a public subscription or sale of the Offer Shares or the possession, circulation or distribution of this
Prospectus, or any other material relating to the Company or the Offer Shares, in any country or
jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Offer Shares may not be offered or sold,
directly or indirectly, nor may this Prospectus or any other offer material or advertisement or other
document or information in connection with the Offer Shares be distributed or published, in or from
any country or jurisdiction except in compliance with any applicable rules and regulations of any
such country or jurisdiction. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes must inform
themselves of and observe all such restrictions.

None of the Company, any of the Offer Participants, the Lead Manager, or the Advisors accepts
any liability for any violation of any such restrictions on the sale, offer to sell or solicitation to
purchase Offer Shares by any person, whether or not a prospective purchaser of Offer Shares in
any jurisdiction outside the UAE (including the ADGM and the DIFC), and whether such offer or
solicitation was made orally or in writing, including electronic mail. None of the Company, the other
Offer Participants, the Advisors (or their respective representatives) makes any representation to
any potential Subscriber regarding the legality of subscribing for Offer Shares by such potential
Subscriber under the laws applicable to such potential Subscriber.
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Definitions and Abbreviations
AD DED
ADGM

Financial Statements

ADX
AED or UAE Dirham

Articles of Association or the
Articles

Authority or SCA

Board or Board of Directors
Closing Date

Opening Date

Companies Regulations
Company

COVID-19

Directors

Electronic Applications

Executive Directors

Financial year

Retail Subscribers

FSMR Regulations

FSRA

Abu Dhabi Department of Economic Development.

Abu Dhabi Global Market.

The Company’s audited reports and combined financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
independent auditor's report on review of condensed
consolidated interim financial statements for the nine (9)
months period ended 30 September 2023 (unaudited) as
well as the reports and financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2021 and for the year ended
December 31, 2022, of Phoenix World Electronics Trading
LLC, one of the subsidiaries that is wholly owned indirectly
by the company which are listed in Annex 1.

Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange.

The lawful currency of the United Arab Emirates.

The Articles of Association of the Company.

The Securities and Commodities Authority of the
United Arab Emirates.

The board of directors of the Company.

18 November 2023.

16 November 2023.

ADGM Companies Regulations 2020 (as amended).
Phoenix Group PLC.

SARS-CoV-2 or COVID-19, and any evolutions or variants
thereof.

The Executive Directors and the Non-Executive Directors of
the Company.

Applications made by the Subscribers via online banking /
mobile banking / FTS.

The executive Directors of the Company.

The financial year of the Company starts on 1 January
and ends on 31 December of each year.

investors (including natural persons, companies and
establishments) who do not participate in the Professional
Investors tranche and who hold a NIN with the ADX and
have a bank account, except for any person who is a
resident in the United States.

Financial Services and Markets Regulations.

ADGM Financial Services Regulatory Authority.
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FTS Fund Transfer Mode

GCC

Group, our, us or we
IFRS
Lead Manager

Listing

Listing Advisor

Lead Placement Agent

Manager’s Cheque

Maximum Investment

Minimum Investment

NIN

Non-Executive Directors

Offer Participants

Offer Period

Offer Price

Offer Shares

UAE Central Bank Fund Transfer (“FTS”) mode.

Gulf Cooperation Council countries comprising the United
Arab Emirates, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Sultanate of
Oman, State of Qatar, State of Kuwait and Kingdom of
Bahrain.

The Company and the Subsidiaries.

International Financial Reporting Standards.

First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC.

The admission of the Shares to trading on the ADX.

Trading in the Shares will be effected through the ADX Share
Registry.

International Securities LLC.

International Securities LLC, a company that subscribes
on behalf of its clients.

Certified bank cheque drawn on a bank licensed and
operating in the United Arab Emirates.

No maximum subscription in Offer Shares has been set.

The minimum subscription for Offer Shares for Retalil
Subscribers has been set at AED 5,000, with any additional
investment to be made in increments of at least AED 1,000.
The minimum subscription for the Offer Shares for
Professional Subscribers has been set at AED 1,000,000
(see the section on “Subscription Amounts” in the first
section of this Prospectus for further details).

A national investor number which is a unified investor
number that a Subscriber must obtain from ADX for the
purposes of subscription.

The non-executive Directors of the Company.

The entities listed on pages 8 and 9 of this Prospectus.

The subscription which starts on 16 November 2023 and
will close on 18 November 2023.

AED 1.50.

907,323,529 Shares which will be issued by the Company
in a public subscription process. The Company reserves
the right to amend the size of the Offering at any time prior
to the end of the subscription period at its sole discretion,
subject to applicable laws and the SCA’s approval.
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Offering or Offer

Offering Regulations

Professional Investors

The public subscription for 907,323,529 Shares (which will
represent 15% of the total issued shares of the Company
as of the Listing date) which are being offered by the
Company.

The Company reserves the right to amend the size of the
Offering at any time prior to the end of the subscription
period at its sole discretion, subject to applicable laws and
the SCA’s approval.

SCA Chairman of the Board Resolution No. (11/R.M) of
2016 on the Regulations for Issuing and Offering Shares of
Public Joint Stock Companies, as amended.

Professional Investors (as defined in the SCA Board of
Directors’ Decision No. 13/Chairman of 2021) (as amended
from time to time), which specifically includes those
investors which can be categorized in the following manner:

. “Professional Investors by nature” which include:

(a) international corporations and organisations
whose members are state, central banks or
national monetary authorities;

(b) governments, government institutions, their
investment and non-investment bodies and
companies wholly owned by them;

(c) central banks or national monetary authorities
in any country, state or legal authority;

(d) capital market institutions licensed by the SCA
or regulated by a regulatory authority
equivalent to the SCA,

(e) financial institutions;

(f)  regulated financial institutions, local or foreign
mutual investment funds, regulated pension
fund management companies and regulated
pension funds;

(g) any entity whose main activity represents
investment in financial instruments, asset
securitisation or financial transactions;

(h) any company whose shares are listed or
admitted to trading in any market of an IOSCO
member country;

0] a trustee of a trust which has, during the past
12 months, assets of AED 35,000,000 or more;

) The owner of a license according to the
regulations of (same family office) with respect
to only practicing its activities to perform its
duties (such as same family office) with assets
not less than of AED 15,000,000 or more;

(k) joint ventures and associations which have or
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o

had, at any time during the past two years, net
assets of AED 25,000,000 or more (excluding
partner and shareholder loans);

a body corporate who fulfils (on the date of its
last financial statements) a “large undertaking”
test, whereby it fulfils at least two of the
following requirements:

() holds total assets of AED 75,000,000 or
more (excluding short-term liabilities and
long-term liabilities);

(i)  has a net annual revenue of AED
150,000,000 or more; or

(i) an aggregate total of cash and
investments on its balance sheet; or its
total equity (after deducting paid up
share capital), is not less than AED
7,000,000.

“Assessed Professional Investors” which include:

@

(b)

(©)
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a natural person who owns net assets,
excluding the value of his/her main residence,
of not less than AED 4,000,000 (a “HNWI”);

a natural person who is:

0] approved by the SCA or a similar
regulatory authority;

(i)  an employee of a licensed entity or a
regulated financial institution who has
been employed for the past two years;

(i) assessed to have sufficient knowledge
and experience in respect of the relevant
investments and their risks (following a
suitability assessment); or

(iv) represented by an entity licensed by the
SCA In a manner that does not conflict
with the terms of its license;

a natural person who has a joint account
(the “Account Participant”) representing a
assessed professional investor (the “Main
Account Holder”), provided that each of the
following conditions are satisfied:

(i) the Account Participant must be an
immediate or second degree relative of
the Main Account Holder;

(i)  the account is used to manage the
investments of the Main Account Holder
and their subscribers; and

(i) written confirmation is obtained from the



Professional Offer Shares

Professional Subscribers
Lead Receiving Bank

Retail Offer Shares

Shareholder

Shares

SMS

subscriber (i.e. the Account Participant)
confirming that investment decisions
relating to the joint investment account
are made on their behalf by the Main
Account Holder;

(d) any establishment with a special purpose
or special legal form such as a trust
(“Trust”) or corporation solely established
to facilitate the management of an
investment portfolio for a natural person
representing a Assessed Professional
Investor; and

(e) an undertaking person which satisfies the
following requirements:

® the total of its cash and investments in
the balance sheet, or its total authorized
capital less the paid-up capital, is not
less than AED 4,000,000;

(i) has sufficient experience and
understanding of the markets, financial
products, related financial transactions
and associated risks in accordance with
suitability criteria; or

(i)  an undertaking person who has:

(@) a controlled natural person who
owns a majority of the shares in a
company, is able to control a
majority of its voting rights, or has
the ability to appoint or remove a
majority of the members of its board
of directors;

(b) a holding or subsidiary company; or

(c) ajoint venture partner.

The part of the Offer Shares that will be offered to
Professional Subscribers.

Professional Investors who subscribe to the Offer Shares.
First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC.

The part of the Offer Shares that will be offered to Retalil
Subscribers.

Holder of Shares in the capital of the Company.

The ordinary shares of the Company with a value of
USD 0.027 each (equivalent to AED 0.10 each).

Short Message Service.
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Subscriber

Subsidiaries

UAE

UAE Central Bank

United States or US

VAT

A natural or juridical applicant, who applies for subscription
in the Offer Shares.

the following entities which are owned directly or indirectly
by the Company:

CoNOOAMWNE

Phoenix Holding Corporation Limited
Phoenix Assets Holdings Limited

Phoenix Management Holdings Limited
Phoenix Co Host Holdings Limited
Phoenix Trade Ventures Holdings Limited
Phoenix Digital Solutions Holdings Limited
Phoenix Inv Holdings Limited.

Phoenix World Electronics Trading LLC
Phoenix Data Centre Limited

PTC Cloud Tech FZCO

Mega Phoenix Electronics Trading LLC
Phoenix Computer Equipment Trading Ltd.
Phoenix Techco Cryptocurrency Mining LLC —
OPC;

PGM Holdings Limited

Phoenix Ventures Limited

Phoenix Worldwide Holdings Limited
Phoenix Serveco Holdings Limited
Phoenix BT Holdings Limited

Phoenix Global Ventures Holdings Limited
Phoenix MENA Holdings Limited

Phoenix Namo Mining Holdings Limited
Phoenix Misr Mining Holdings Limited
Block One Technology Inc

Advanced Power Solutions Inc

Phoenix World Electronics LLC

Absolute Power Solutions Inc.

Phoenix Operations & Maintenance LLC
Block Zero HS Inc

Phoenix Electronics Logistics Limited.

United Arab Emirates.

The central bank of the United Arab Emirates.

The United States of America, its territories and
possessions, any State of the United States of America, and
the District of Columbia.

Value added tax.
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FIRST SECTION: SUBSCRIPTION TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Key details of shares offered for sale to the public

Name of the Company: Phoenix Group PLC

- Share capital: The share capital of the Company as at the date of this Prospectus has
been set at USD 140,000,000 (being equivalent to 514,150,000 UAE dirhams) divided
into 5,141,500,000 Shares paid-in-full, with the nominal value of each Share being USD
0.027 (being equivalent to 0.10 UAE dirhams). Please refer to the “Statement of
Capital Development” in this Prospectus for further details.

- Company commercial license number and date: 000007975; issue date: 2 August
2022

- Company Headquarters: 3412 ResCo-Work 10, 34 Floor, Al Magam Tower, ADGM
Square, Al Maryah Island, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

- Percentage, number and type of the Offer Shares: 907,323,529 Shares, all of which
are ordinary shares, all Shares are of the same class and carry equal voting rights and
shall rank pari passu in all other rights and obligations and which will constitute 15 % of
the Company’s issued share capital (this percentage has been calculated based on the
total number of Shares in the capital as at the Listing date).

- Offer Price per Offer Share: AED 1.50

Offer Price Calculation Method:

The offer price is based on the valuation report prepared by an independent expert
evaluator (Big4 Accounting Firm), using the discounted cashflow (DCF) and guideline public
company method (GPCM). The executive summary of the valuation report is attached in
Annex (5) of this Prospectus.

Eligibility of the qualified categories of Subscriber to subscribe for the acquisition
of the Offer Shares:

- First Tranche (Retail Offer Shares): The part of the Offer Shares of the Offering
will be offered to Retail Subscribers as described in the “Definitions and
Abbreviations” section of this Prospectus. All Retail Subscribers must hold a NIN
with ADX and a bank account number. Approximately 6.67% of the Offer Shares,
representing 60,488,235 Shares are allocated to the Retail Subscribers. The
Company reserves the right to amend the size of the Retail Offer Shares at any
time prior to the end of the subscription period at its sole discretion, subject to the
approval of the SCA. Any increase in the size of the Retail Offer Shares will result
in a corresponding reduction in the size of the Professional Offer Shares, provided
that the subscription percentage of the Professional Subscribers does not fall below
60% of the Offer Shares and the subscription percentage of the Retail Subscribers
does not exceed 40% of the Offer Shares.

- Second Tranche (Professional Offer Shares): The Offer Shares of the Offering
will be offered to Professional Subscribers as described in the “Definitions and
Abbreviations” section of this Prospectus. All Professional Subscribers must hold
a NIN with ADX. Approximately 93.33% of the Offer Shares, representing
846,835,294 Shares are allocated to the Professional Subscribers.

Public subscription in the Offer Shares is prohibited as follows: Public subscription is
prohibited to any Subscriber whose investment is restricted by the laws of the jurisdiction
where the Subscriber resides or by the laws of the jurisdiction to which the Subscriber
belongs. It is the Subscriber's responsibility to determine whether the Subscriber’s
subscription for, and investment in, the Offer Shares conforms to the laws of the applicable
jurisdiction(s).
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Minimum subscription: The minimum subscription in the Retail Offer Shares has been
set at AED 5,000 with any additional investment to be made in AED 1,000 increments. The
minimum subscription for Professional Offer Shares has been set at AED 1,000,000.

Maximum subscription: No maximum subscription in the Offer Shares has been set.
Reasons for the Offering and Use of Offer Proceeds

The Company is seeking to raise capital for the purposes of expansion, and its ambition in
the next three (3) years is to rapidly grow its self-mining and hosting capacities. The
company will bear the full offering expenses (including any commissions, and any other

fees).

The Company is in the process of building new sites across various jurisdictions that offer
attractive electricity / utility prices.

The Company is in advanced stage negotiations with other suitable sites within the GCC
and the broader Middle East region.

Further Information on the Retail Offer Shares (First Tranche)

1.

Subscription Applications

Each Subscriber may submit one subscription application only (i) in the case of a
subscription application by a natural person, in his or her personal name (unless he or she
is acting as a representative for another Subscriber, in which case the subscription
application will be submitted in the name of such Subscriber) or (ii) in the case of a
subscription application by a corporate person, in its corporate name. In case a Subscriber
submits more than one application in his or her personal name or its corporate name, the
Lead Receiving Bank reserves the right to disqualify all or some of the subscription
applications submitted by such Subscriber and not to allocate any Offer Shares to such
Subscriber.

Subscribers must ensure that they have a valid NIN with ADX and complete all of the
relevant fields in the subscription application along with all required documents and submit
it to the Lead Receiving Bank together with the subscription amount during the Offer Period.

The completed subscription application should be clear and fully legible. If it is not, the Lead
Receiving Bank shall refuse to accept the subscription application from the Subscriber until
the latter satisfies all the required information or documentation before the close of the
subscription.

Subscription for Offer Shares would deem the Subscriber to have accepted the Articles of
Association of the Company and complied with all the resolutions issued by the Company’s
general meeting. Any conditions added to the subscription application shall be deemed null
and void. No photocopies of the subscription application shall be accepted. The subscription
application should only be fully completed after reviewing the Prospectus and the
Company’s Articles of Association. The subscription application then needs to be submitted
to any of the Lead Receiving Bank’s branches mentioned herein or through electronic
channels (see “Electronic subscription”).

The Subscribers or their representatives shall affirm the accuracy of the information
contained in the application in the presence of the bank representative in which the
subscription was made. Each subscription application shall be clearly signed or certified by
the Subscriber or his or her representative.

The Lead Receiving Bank may reject subscription applications submitted by any Subscriber
for any of the following reasons:

. the subscription application form is not complete or is not correct with regard to the
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amount paid or submitted documents (and no Offer Participant takes responsibility
for non-receipt of an allocation of Offer Shares if the address of the subscribers is
not filled in correctly);

the subscription application amount is paid using a method that is not a permitted
method of payment;

the subscription application amount presented with the subscription application
does not match the minimum required investment or the increments set for the first
tranche (Retail Offer Shares);

the completed subscription application form is not clear and fully legible.
the Manager’s Cheque is returned for any reason;

if the amount in the bank account mentioned in the subscription application form is
insufficient to pay for the application amount mentioned in the subscription
application form or the Lead Receiving Bank is unable to apply the amount towards
the application whether due to signature mismatch or any other reasons;

if the NIN is not made available to ADX or if the NIN is incorrect;

if the subscription application is found to be duplicated or more than one
subscription application (any acceptance of such duplicate application is solely at
the discretion of the Company);

if the subscription application is otherwise found to be in breach of the terms of the
Offering;

if the Subscriber is a natural person and is found to have submitted the subscription
application other than in his or her personal name (unless he or she is acting as a
representative for another Subscriber);

a Subscriber has not adhered to the rules applicable to the Retail Offer Share or the
Professional Offer Shares;

if it is otherwise necessary to reject the subscription application to ensure
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Regulations, the Articles of
Association, this Prospectus or the requirements of the SCA or the ADX; or

if for any reason FTS/SWIFT/online/mobile/ATM subscription channels transfer
fails or the required information in the special fields is not enough to process the
application.

The Lead Receiving Bank may reject the application for any of the reasons listed above at any time
until allocation of the Offer Shares and have no obligation to inform the subscribers before the
notification of the allocation of Shares to such rejected Subscribers.

2.

Documents Accompanying Subscription Applications

Subscribers shall submit the following documents along with their subscription application

For individuals who are UAE or GCC nationals or nationals of any other country:

The original and a copy of a valid passport or Emirates identity card; and
In case the signatory is different from the Subscriber:

- the duly notarized power of attorney held by that signatory or a certified
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copy by UAE-regulated persons/bodies, such as a notary public, or as
otherwise duly regulated in the country;

- the original passport/Emirates ID of the signatory for verification of
signature and a copy of the original passport/Emirates ID; and

a copy of the passport/Emirates ID of the Subscriber for verification of
signature; or

In case the signatory is a guardian of a minor, the following will be submitted:

- original and copy of the guardian’s passport/Emirates ID for verification of
signature;

- original and copy of the minor’s passport; and
- if the guardian is appointed by the court, original and copy of the

guardianship deed attested by the court and other competent authorities
(e.g. notary public).

For corporate bodies including banks, financial institutions, investment funds and other
companies and establishments:

UAE registered corporate bodies:

The original and a copy of a trade license or commercial registration for verification
or a certified copy by one of the following UAE-regulated persons/bodies; a notary
public or as otherwise duly regulated in the country;

The original and a copy of the document that authorizes the signatory to sign on
behalf of the Subscriber and to represent the Subscriber, to submit the application,
and to accept the terms and conditions stipulated in the Prospectus and in the
subscription form; and

The original and a copy of the passport/Emirates ID of the signatory.
Foreign corporate bodies: the documents will differ according to the nature of the

corporate body and its domicile. Accordingly, please consult with the Lead
Receiving Bank to obtain the list of required documents.

Method of Subscription and Payment for the Offer Shares of the first tranche (Retail
Subscribers)

The subscription application must be submitted by a Subscriber to the Lead Receiving
Bank’s participating branches listed in this Prospectus and the NIN with ADX and the
Subscriber’s bank account number must be provided, together with payment in full for the
amount he / she / it wishes to subscribe for the Offer Shares, which is to be paid in one of
the following ways:

Manager's Cheque drawn on a bank licensed and operating in the UAE, in favor
of “Phoenix Group PLC - IPO”;

Debiting a Subscriber’s account with the Lead Receiving Bank; or

Electronic subscriptions (please refer to the section on Electronic subscription
below).

Details of the Subscriber’s bank account must be completed on the subscription application
form even if the application amount will be paid by Manager’s Cheque.
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The subscription amount may not be paid or accepted by the Lead Receiving Bank using any
of the following methods:

. In cash;
. Cheques (not certified); or
o Any other mode of payment other than mentioned above.

Please refer to the Annex 3 for the Lead Receiving Bank’s participating branches.
Electronic subscription (E-subscription)

The Lead Receiving Bank may also have its own electronic channels (on-line internet banking
applications, mobile banking applications, etc.) interfaced with the ADX eKtetab IPO system. By
submitting the electronic subscription application, the customer submitting the application is
accepting the Offering terms and conditions on behalf of the Subscriber and is authorising the Lead
Receiving Bank to pay the total subscription amount by debiting the amount from the respective
bank account of the customer and transferring the same to the Offer account in favor of “Phoenix
Group PLC - IPO” held at the Lead Receiving Bank, as detailed in the subscription application. The
submission of an electronic application will be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of fulfilling
the identification requirements. Accordingly, the supporting documentation in relation to
applications set out elsewhere in this Prospectus will not apply to Electronic Applications under this
section. Notification of the final allocation of Offer Shares and the refund of proceeds for unallocated
Offer Shares (if any) and any profit thereon following the closing of the Offer Period and prior to the
Listing of the Shares shall be performed solely by, and processed through, the Lead Receiving
Bank in which the electronic subscription application was submitted.

Subscription applications may also be received through UAE Central Bank Fund Transfer (“FTS”)
mode. The investor choosing the FTS method will be required to provide their valid NIN with ADX
along with the value of Offer Shares subscribed for in the special instructions field.

E-subscription

Lead Receiving Bank EIPO-Subscription

1. Access https://www.bankfab.com/en-ae/cib/iposubscription.

Refer to the “How to subscribe page” and follow the instructions and submit subscriptions for
the Retail Offer Shares.

2. FAB Mobile Banking Application (for FAB clients only).
In case of any issues or support required, please contact FAB call center at +971-261-61800.

ADX ePortal Subscription:

For applying through ADX ePortal Subscriptions:
Please access -

For Arabic — https://www.adx.ae/Arabic/Pages/ProductsandServices/ipo.aspx

For English - https://www.adx.ae/English/Pages/ProductsandServices/ipo.aspx

Refer to the “ADX IPO ePortal Subscription Instructions” page and follow the instructions.
Click on the IPO Subscription Link provided to subscribe for the Retail Offer Shares.

Please contact ADX on 600523923 or via email on ePortalOps@adx.ae for any queries on the
above.
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Important dates relevant to the methods of payment of the subscription amounts

o Subscription amounts paid by way of cheque must be submitted by 12pm (mid- day) on 16
November 2023.
. Subscription applications received through Internet Banking and website/UAEPGS/FTS

must be made before 12pm (mid-day) on 18 November 2023.

. Subscription applications received through the Lead Receiving Bank’s participating
branches as per the stipulated working timings referred to in Annex 3 of this Prospectus on
18 November 2023

Subscription amounts

Retail Subscribers must submit applications to purchase the Offer Shares in the amount of AED
5,000 or more, with any subscription over AED 5,000 to be made in increments of AED 1,000.

Subscription process

Subscribers must complete the application form, providing all required details. Subscribers who do
not provide the NIN with ADX and bank account will not be eligible for subscription and will not be
allocated any Offer Shares.

Subscribers may only apply for Retail Offer Shares or Professional Offer Shares. In the event a
person applies in more than one type of Offer Shares, then the Lead Receiving Bank, the Lead
Manager or the Lead Placement Agent (as applicable) may disregard one or both of such
applications.

The Lead Receiving Bank through which the subscription is made will issue to the Subscriber an
acknowledgement of receipt which the Subscriber has to keep until the Subscriber receives the
allocation notice. One copy of the subscription application after being submitted, signed and
stamped by the Lead Receiving Bank shall be considered an acknowledgement for receipt of the
subscription application. This receipt shall include the data of the Subscriber, address, amount paid,
details of the payment method, and date of the investment. The acknowledgement in the case of
Electronic Applications via online internet banking and ATM would provide basic information of the
application such as NIN number, Amount, Date and Customer bank account detalils.

If the address of the Subscriber is not filled in correctly, the Company, and the Lead Receiving Bank
take no liability for non-receipt of the allocation notice.

4, Further Information on the Professional Offer Shares

Eligibility criteria and minimum order amount, please refer to the relevant Section
Method of placement of subscription orders and payment

Placing orders through the Lead Placement Agent and payment of funds:

. Professional Subscribers can place orders with the Lead Placement Agent using the
subscription form or the link sent by the Lead Placement Agent.

. The Lead Placement Agent will collect the order forms and accompanying documents, NIN,
and funds from Professional Subscribers and share the orders details to the Lead Receiving
Bank during the subscription period.

. Allocation will be decided by the Company in accordance with the allocation policy set out
in this Prospectus and communicated to the Lead Placement Agent.

. The Lead Placement Agent, will collect the funds, as required, from each Professional
Subscriber who has placed an order during the Offer Period.
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Once the allocation of shares has been finalised, the Lead Placement Agent will transfer
the allocated capital funds to the Lead Receiving Bank as a single payment.

The Lead Receiving Bank will confirm the receipt of proceeds, allocate and arrange to issue of the
shares to the Professional Subscribers’ accounts.

5.

Further information on various matters

Offer Period

Commences on 16 November 2023 and closes on 18 November 2023.

Lead Receiving Bank

First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC

A list of the Lead Receiving Bank’s branches is attached in Annex 3 of this Prospectus.
Offering Proceeds and Issuance Costs

The Offering proceeds will amount to AED 1,360,985,294 (if all of the Offer Shares are fully
subscribed) and they will be transferred to the reserve account of the Company. The
Company shall bear all costs and expenses related the issuance of the Offer Shares.

Method of allocation of Offer Shares to different categories of Subscribers (Under
the Offering Regulations)

Should the total size of subscriptions received exceed the number of Offer Shares, then
the Company will allocate the Offer Shares according to the allocation policy specified
below and will refund to Subscribers the excess subscription amounts and any accrued
profit resulting thereon.

Notice of Allocation

A notice to successful Retail Subscribers will be sent by way of SMS initially confirming the
acceptance of subscription and number of offered shares allocated to them. This will be
followed by a notice setting out each Subscriber’'s Share allocation, which will be sent by
registered mail to each Subscriber.

Method of refunding surplus amounts to Subscribers

By no later than 24 November 2023 (being within five working (5) days of the Closing Date
of the Offering), the Offer Shares shall be allocated to Subscribers and, on 25 November
2023, the surplus subscription amounts, and any profit resulting thereon, shall be refunded
to Subscribers who did not receive Offer Shares, and the subscription amounts and any
accrued profit resulting thereon shall be refunded to the Subscribers whose applications
have been rejected for any of the above reasons. The surplus amount and any accrued
profit thereon are returned to the same Subscriber’s account through which the payment of
the original application amount was made. In the event payment of the subscription amount
is made by Manager’s Cheque, these amounts shall be returned by sending a cheque with
the value of such amounts to the Subscriber at the address mentioned in the subscription
application.

The difference between the subscription amount accepted by the Company if any, and the
application amount paid by that Subscriber will be refunded to such Subscriber pursuant to
the terms of this Prospectus.

Inquiries and complaints

Subscribers who wish to submit an inquiry or complaint with respect to any rejected
applications, allocation or refunding of the surplus funds, must contact the Lead Receiving
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Bank through which the subscription was made, and if a solution cannot be reached, then
the Lead Receiving Bank must refer the matter to the Investor Relations Manager. The
Subscriber must remain updated on the status. The Subscriber’s relationship remains only
with the party receiving the subscription application.

Listing and trading of Shares

Subsequent to the allocation of the Offer Shares, the Company will list all of its Shares on
the ADX in accordance with the applicable listing and trading rules as at the Listing date -
13 November 2023. Trading in the Shares will be effected on an electronic basis, through
the ADX’s share registry, with the commencement of such trading estimated to take place
after completion of the registration.

Voting rights

All Shares are of the same class and shall carry equal voting rights and shall rank pari passu
in all other rights and obligations. Each Share confers on its holder the right to cast one
vote on all Shareholders’ resolutions.

Risks

There are certain risks that are specific to investing in this Offering. Those risks have been
discussed in a section headed “Investment Risks” of this Prospectus and must be taken
into account before deciding to subscribe for Offer Shares.

Timetable for subscription and listing

The dates set out below outline the expected timetable for the Offering. However, the
Company reserves the right to change any of the dates/times, or to shorten or extend the
specified time periods, upon obtaining the approval of the SCA and publishing such change
during the Offering period in daily newspapers.

Event Date

Offering commencement date 16 November 2023

(The Offer Period shall continue for three days, including
Saturdays, for the purposes of accepting Subscribers’
applications)

Closing Date of Offering 18 November 2023
Preparation of Allocation of Shares - Retail Subscribers 24 November 2023
SMS Confirmation to all Subscribers 25 November 2023
Commencement of refunds of subscription surplus to 25 November 2023

the Subscribers

Expected date of Listing the Shares on ADX 4 December 2023

Retail Offer Shares and Professional Offer Shares
The Offering of the Offer Shares is divided as follows:

First Tranche Offer Shares (Retail Subscribers):
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Size:

Eligibility:

Minimum application size:

Maximum application size:

Allocation policy:

Unsubscribed Offer Shares:

60,488,235 Shares representing approximately
6.67% of the Offer Shares.

The Company reserves the right to amend the size of
the Retail Offer Shares at any time prior to the end of
the subscription period at its sole discretion, subject of
the approval of the SCA, provided that the
subscription percentage of subscribers in the
Professional Offer Shares does not fall below 60% of
the Offer Shares and the subscription percentage of
the subscribers in the Retail Offer Shares does not
exceed 40% of the Offer Shares in aggregate.

Retail Subscribers, are described in the “Definitions
and Abbreviations” section of this Prospectus.

AED 5,000, with any additional application in
increments of AED 1,000.

There is no maximum application size.

In case of over-subscription of the Retail Offer Shares,
each Retail Subscriber will be guaranteed a minimum
allocation of up to 1,000 (one thousand) Shares,
subject to the limits and conditions set out in this
Prospectus. The final minimum guaranteed allocation
for each Retail Subscriber shall be determined at the
end of the subscription period based on the total
number of Retail Subscribers. Retail Offer Shares
available for allocation in excess of the aggregate
minimum guaranteed allocation shall be allocated on
a pro-rata basis. The Company reserves the right to
amend the minimum guaranteed shares after

obtaining SCA's approval. Applications will be scaled

back on the same basis if the Retail subscription is
over-subscribed. Any fractional entitlements resulting
from the pro rata distribution of Offer Shares will be
rounded down to the nearest whole number.

If all of the Retail Offer Shares are not fully
subscribed, the unsubscribed Retail Offer Shares
shall be available to Professional Subscribers, or
alternatively (in consultation with the SCA) the
Company may extend the Closing Date and/or close
the Offering at the level of applications received.

Second Tranche Offer Shares (Professional Subscribers):

Size:

Eligibility:

Minimum application size:

Maximum application size:

846,835,294 Shares representing approximately
93.33% of the Offer Shares.

Professional Subscribers are described in the
“Definitions and Abbreviations” section of this
Prospectus.

The minimum application size is AED 1,000,000.

There is no maximum application size.
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Allocation policy: Allocations of the Professional Offer Shares will be
determined by the Company. It is therefore possible
that Subscribers who have submitted applications to
subscribe for Professional Offer Shares may not be
allocated any Shares or that they are allocated a
number of Shares lower than the number of Shares
mentioned in their subscription application.

Discretionary allocation: The Company reserves the right to allocate
Professional Offer Shares in any way as they deem
necessary.

Unsubscribed Offer Shares: If all the Professional Offer Shares are not fully

subscribed, then the Offer will be withdrawn. If the
Offer is withdrawn, the subscription amounts will be
fully refunded to the Subscribers, along with any
accrued profits.

Multiple applications
A Subscriber should only submit an application for Retail Offer Shares or Professional Offer Shares.

Multiple applications for the Retail Offer Shares under the same NIN number will be aggregated
and the minimum guaranteed allocation will be applied only once, with the balance allocated on a
pro-rata basis.

In the event a Subscriber applies for subscription in more than one type of Offer Shares, the Lead
Receiving Bank and the Lead Manager in concurrence with the Company may deem one or both
applications invalid.

Listing and Trading of Shares

Following the allocation of the Offer Shares, the Company will list all of its Shares on the ADX in
accordance with The Listing and Trading Rules in effect on the Listing Date. The Shares will be

traded in accordance with electronic trading systems through the ADX's share registry, with trading
expected to begin following the completion of the Listing.

Important notes

Subscribers in the first tranche will be notified by means of an SMS with respect to the allotted
Shares.

Upon Listing of the Shares on the ADX, the Shares will be registered on an electronic system as
applicable by the ADX. The information contained in this electronic system will be binding and
irrevocable, unless otherwise specified in the applicable rules and procedures applicable in ADX.

Subject to the approval of the SCA, the Company reserves the right to alter the percentage of the

Offer Shares offered to all tranches, which are to be made available to either the first tranche or
second tranche.
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SECOND SECTION: KEY DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

Overview of the company

Name of the Company:

Primary objects of the Company:

Head office:

Branches:

Subsidiaries:

Phoenix Group PLC

A free zone public company limited by shares
incorporated in the ADGM pursuant to the Companies
Regulations

The primary object of the Company is to act as the
holding company for its operating subsidiaries; in
addition to practicing the following activities:

(a) head office activities;

(b) proprietary asset management company;

(c) proprietary investment company; and

(d) treasury financial systems and applications
development.

3412 ResCo-Work 10, 34 Floor, Al Magam Tower,
ADGM Square, Al Maryah Island, Abu Dhabi, UAE

None

the following entities which are owned directly or
indirectly by the Company:

1 Phoenix Holding Corporation Limited

2 Phoenix Assets Holdings Limited

3 Phoenix Management Holdings Limited

4. Phoenix CoHost Holdings Limited

5. Phoenix Trade Ventures Holdings Limited

6 Phoenix Digital Solutions Holdings Limited

7 Phoenix Inv Holdings Limited

8 Phoenix World Electronics Trading LLC

9. Phoenix Data Centre Limited

10. PTC Cloud Tech FZCO

11. Mega Phoenix Electronics Trading LLC

12. Phoenix Computer Equipment Trading Ltd.

13. Phoenix Techco Cryptocurrency Mining LLC —
OPC

14. PGM Holdings Limited

15. Phoenix Ventures Limited

16. Phoenix Worldwide Holdings Limited

17. Phoenix Serveco Holdings Limited

18. Phoenix BT Holdings Limited

19. Phoenix Global Ventures Holdings Limited

20. Phoenix MENA Holdings Limited

21. Phoenix Namo Mining Holdings Limited

22. Phoenix Misr Mining Holdings Limited

23. Block One Technology Inc.

24.  Advanced Power Solutions Inc.

25. Phoenix World Electronics LLC

26.  Absolute Power Solutions Inc.

27.  Phoenix Operations & Maintenance LLC

28. Block Zero HS Inc.

29. Phoenix Electronics Logistics Limited

Details of trade register and date of License No. 000007975; Issue Date: 2" August 2022

engaging in the activity:
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Term of the Company: Not applicable.

Financial year: 1 January to 31 December.
Major banks dealing with the First Abu Dhabi Bank, Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank
Company:

Details of current Board Members:

Name Date of Birth Nationality Capacity
H.E Tareq Abdulraheem 25t March Emirati Chairman
Ahmed Rashed Alhosani 1974
Ms. Elham Algasim 22 July 1982 Emirati Board Member
Mr.Fady M Y Dahalan 5t October Emirati Board Member
1990
Mr. Seyedmohammad 5th December Dominica Board Member
Alizadehfard 1987 Group CEO
Mr. Munaf Al 12t British Board Member
September Group Managing Director
1974

None of the board members hold any memberships in the board of directors of any joint
stock companies in the UAE except:

H.E. Tareq Abdulraheem Ahmed Rashed Alhosani is a board member for the following
entities:

Bayanat Al PLC, Chairman

Al Yah Satellite Communications Company PJSC (Yah Sat), Vice Chairman
International Golden Group — IGG, Vice Chairman

National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels, Board Member

Ms Elham Algasim is a board member for the following entities:

Bayanat Al PLC, Board Member
Apex Investment PJSC, Vice Chairman
Amanat Holdings PJSC, Board Member

[ )
)
)
e Al Ain Farms, Board Member

No bankruptcy ruling or a bankruptcy arrangement was issued against any member of the
board of directors or members of the senior management of the Company.

Summary of the remuneration of the Board of Directors

Due to the recent appointment of the Board, the remuneration of the board of directors (if
any) of the Company will be finalised at a later stage, in accordance with the governance
rules and internal policies and procedures of the Company.

Details of Company’s subsidiaries

As of the date of this Prospectus the Company has the following subsidiaries:
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Subsidiary Shareholders No. of Share Share Ownership
Shares | Capital Capital
(AED) (USD)
Phoenix Holding Phoenix Group 100 367.25 100 100%
Corporation Plc
Limited
Phoenix Phoenix Group 100 367.25 100 100%
Worldwide Plc
Holdings Limited
Phoenix Assets Phoenix Holding 100 367.25 100 100%
Holdings Limited Corporation
Limited
Phoenix Phoenix Holding 100 367.25 100 100%
Management Corporation
Holdings Limited Limited
Phoenix CoHost | Phoenix Holding 100 367.25 100 100%
Holdings Limited Corporation
Limited
Phoenix Trade Phoenix Holding 100 367.25 100 100%
Ventures Holdings Corporation
Limited Limited
Phoenix Digital Phoenix Holding 100 367.25 100 100%
Solutions Holdings Corporation
Limited Limited
Phoenix Inv Phoenix Holding 100 367.25 100 100%
Holdings Limited Corporation
Limited
Phoenix Phoenix 100 367.25 100 100%
Serveco Worldwide
Holdings Limited Holdings
Limited
Phoenix BT Phoenix 100 367.25 100 100%
Holdings Limited Worldwide
Holdings
Limited
Phoenix Global Phoenix 100 367.25 100 100%
Ventures Holding Worldwide
Limited Holdings
Limited
Phoenix MENA Phoenix 100 367.25 100 100%
Holdings Limited Worldwide
Holdings
Limited
Phoenix Namo Phoenix MENA 100 367.25 100 100%

Mining Holdings
Limited

Holdings
Limited
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Phoenix Misr Phoenix MENA 100 367.25 100 100%
Mining Holdings Holdings
Limited Limited
PGM Holdings Phoenix Digital 100 367.25 100 100%
Limited Solutions
Holding Limited
Phoenix World Phoenix 100 100,000 | 27,229.40 100%
Electronics Management
Trading LLC Holdings
Limited
Phoenix Data Phoenix Cohost 100 100,000 | 27,229.40 100%
Centre Limited Holdings
Limited
PTC Cloud Tech | Phoenix CoHost 100 100,000 | 27,229.40 100%
FzZCO Holdings
Limited
Mega Phoenix Phoenix Trade 100 100,000 | 27,229.40 100%
Electronics Ventures
Trading LLC Holdings
Limited
Phoenix Computer | Phoenix Trade 150 150,000 40,844 100%
Equipment Ventures
Trading Ltd Holdings
Limited
Phoenix Techco Phoenix Digital 100 100,000 | 27,229.40 100%
Cryptocurrency Solutions
Mining LLC — Holding Limited
OPC
Phoenix Phoenix Inv 500 50,000 13,614 100%
Ventures Holdings
Limited Limited
Block One Phoenix 50 367.25 100 100%
Technology Inc Serveco
Holdings
Limited
Advanced Block One 100 N/A N/A 100%
Power Technology Inc
Solutions Inc
Phoenix World Advanced N/A N/A N/A 100%
Electronics LLC Power
Solutions Inc.
Absolute Power Phoenix 2,000 7,345 2,000 100%
Solutions Inc. World
Electronics
LLC
Phoenix Phoenix 100,993 27,500 100%
Operations & World N/A
Maintenance Electronics
LLC LLC
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Block Zero Hs Inc Phoenix 1,000 3,672.5 1,000 100%
World
Electronics
LLC
Phoenix Phoenix Global 100 367, 100,000 100%
Electronics Ventures 250
Logistics Limited | Holding Limited

Business Description:

Investors should read this section in conjunction with the more detailed information
contained elsewhere in this Prospectus including the financial and other information. Where
stated, financial information in this section has been extracted from the Financial
Statements.

Overview of the areas of business

Phoenix Group together with its subsidiary entities has established itself as a global leader
in the development, operation and management of crypto data centers. It has also
expanded its global footprint across UAE, Oman, Canada, USA and other regions through
various business segments including hosting, trading, retail, cloud-mining and the
establishment of the UAE’s first fully regulated digital asset exchange. It is also the
exclusive distributor of industry leading mining equipment MicroBT across various
geographies.

The competitive advantage and success of Phoenix is attributed to the Visionary leadership
of its Founders and Stakeholders, First-mover advantage in the digital mining space, the
ability to secure competitively priced utilities at quasi — governmental levels, access to
equipment and access to capital which has been utilized in the most cost effective manner,
resulting in exemplary returns and revenue.

Phoenix Group’s IPO Listing is one of the first Crypto Asset Mining listing to take place in
the Middle East region and will further enhance the growth and vision of Phoenix to pave
the way to a more decentralized future for all.

Phoenix Group through its various subsidiaries and affiliates located both locally and
internationally operate various sectors including Data Mining, Data Center Solutions,
Hosting of Crypto-currency Mining Equipment, Self-Mining, Trading of High Performance
Computing Equipment, and Regulated Crypto-currency marketplace and Exchange.

Data Mining and Data Center Solutions

In 2020, Phoenix expanded the activities of the subsidiaries from not only mining but also
into developing and hosting data centers. With growing mining operations, the Group
tapped industry leaders to develop large-scale data centers globally paving its way into the
industry.

The Group provides development, operations and maintenance of specialized state of the
art data centers, and operation of data mining equipment (hosting services) with high
performance computing power and accumulation of digital assets. Phoenix has a dedicated
team of experts spanning design, construction, and operation of data centers, with teams
in the UAE and USA.

Phoenix carries out the operations and management of the data center facilities in Citadel
Project in Abu Dhabi, which is the region’s largest crypto-mining facility spanning over a
total of circa 100,000 sgm, equipped with latest top of the range equipment (custom-built
for the desert climate).
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Hosting of Crypto-currency Mining Equipment and Self-Mining

Phoenix is a leading global hosting provider offering services, including colocation for
mining. Clients receive secure rack space, power, cooling, maintenance, warranty, and
repair services, backed by strict SLAs and 24/7 monitoring. A dedicated team enhances
and elevates the customer experience.

Exclusive Distribution Rights

Phoenix Computer Equipment Trading (a wholly owned Phoenix subsidiary) proudly holds
the distribution rights for industry leading technology hardware brands and accessories
(Bitcoin mining equipment and crypto-wallets) with WhatsMiner (the leading brand and
pioneer of mining hardware and design developed by MicroBT), with exclusivity rights
across the UAE, GCC countries, Egypt, Turkey and Kenya, which gives the Group a
competitive advantage in this space.

Regulated Crypto-currency marketplace and Exchange

M2 (an affiliate founded by the Company’s leadership) is an Abu Dhabi-based crypto
exchange that aims to revolutionise the financial landscape through exceptional returns in
digital assets. With a focus on security, transparency, and global licenses, including ADGM
and the Bahamas. M2 serves retail and institutional clients worldwide. Their offerings
encompass trading, earning, crypto-based finance, virtual asset loans, utility tokens,
stablecoins, launchpads, and M2 Ventures. M2 targets VIP individuals and assertive
investors for diversifying portfolios, along with family offices and wealth managers seeking
crypto yield and structured products.

International Footprint

The Group is actively expanding its data centres worldwide. In the US and Canada alone,
it currently operates approximately 100MW, and is looking to add an additional 20 MW in
Canada. Additionally, the Group has secured power agreements in the USA, launching
50MW and 45MW facilities, in the near future.

In 2023, the Group partnered with Green Data City in Oman for a 150MW facility.
Additionally, Phoenix is looking to securing opportunities across Middle East, which will
come to fruition in the near future.

Trading

Phoenix Group’s journey in the crypto mining industry evolved as it transitioned into a
prominent supplier of mining equipment, serving both individuals and corporations. By 2021,
sales trading reached $161 million, and in 2022, it surged to $715 million due to exclusive
agreements with leading manufacturers including Bitmain and MicroBT. Despite market
fluctuations, Phoenix thrived, culminating in a record-breaking investment in a 250MW data
mining Abu Dhabi. Despite crypto winter, sales remained robust in 2023, reflecting Phoenix’s
agility and commitment to market expansion. The company also solidified its position by
partnering with leading hard wallet vendors, for sale of retail digital hardware such as cold
digital wallets via its showrooms in UAE and other regions, alongside its retail and trading
activities of mining equipment. Phoenix's future prospects in equipment sales and trading
remain promising, with a focus on strategic collaborations and distributor agreements.

Cloud mining (digitalmining.com)

In 2023, Phoenix expanded its product range, offering a more accessible investment model
through digitalmining.com. Clients purchase machine hash rate for a specified duration. A
full website launch and marketing campaigns are planned to establish Phoenix as a cloud
mining leader in the near future.
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Licensed Activities

The Company acts as a holding company for its Subsidiaries. The Company is licensed by

the ADGM to conduct activities of Holding C

The licensed activities of the Subsidiaries ar

ompanies and activities of Head Offices.

e provided below as follows:

Subsidiary

Licensed Activities

Phoenix Holding Corporation Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix Assets Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix Management Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix CoHost Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix Trade Ventures Holdings
Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix Digital Solutions Holdings
Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix INV Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix World Electronics Trading LLC

Computers & Peripheral Equipment
Trading, Wireless Telecommunications
Equipment Trading.

Phoenix Data Centre Limited

Developer, Operations & maintenance,
Space management & leasing.

PTC Cloud Tech — FZCO

Cloud Service and Datacenters Provider
and Robots and Smart Machines Rental
and Datacenter Colocation Services.

Mega Phoenix Electronics Trading LLC

Computers
Trading.

& Peripheral Equipment

Phoenix Computer Equipment Trading
Ltd.

Wholesale of computers & Oultfit trading,
Wholesale of Computer systems &
Software trading, Wholesale of Computer
Outfit & data Processing Trading,
Wholesale of Telecommunication
Equipment Trading, Wholesale of spare
parts trading of electrical & electronic
devices.

Phoenix Techco Cryptocurrency Mining
-L.L.C-0O.P.C

Electronic currency design and
programming and Cryptocurrency mining.

PGM Holding Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix Ventures Limited

Internet & Multimedia Consultancy,
Software Services - Solution provider.

Phoenix Worldwide Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix Serveco Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle
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Phoenix BT Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix Global Ventures Holdings
Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix MENA Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix Namo Mining Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Phoenix Misr Mining Holdings Limited

Special Purpose Vehicle

Block One Technology Inc

To engage in any lawful business purpose.

Advanced Power Solutions Inc

To engage in any lawful business purpose.

Phoenix World Electronics LLC

To engage in any lawful business purpose
for which limited liability companies may be
formed and to engage in any and all
necessary or incidental activities.

Absolute Power Solutions Inc.

Engage in any lawful act or activity.

Phoenix Operations & Maintenance LLC

The purpose of the Company is to engage
in any lawful acts or activities for which
limited liability companies may be formed
under the laws of Delaware, United States
of America.

Block Zero HS Inc

Engage in any lawful act or activity under
the laws of Delaware, United States of
America.

Phoenix Electronics Logistics Limited

To engage in any lawful business purpose
incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong.

Property/ Leases

The headquarters of the Company are located on level 34, Al Magam Tower, ADGM

Square, Al Maryah Island, Abu Dhabi, UAE. The lease will expire on July 31, 2025.

The Company through its subsidiary, Phoenix World Electronics Trading LLC, owns the

freehold title to the office at Boulevard Plaza Tower 2, 2901, 29t floor, Dubai, UAE.

The Company’s Subsidiaries further hold offices, properties and leases as follows:

0] Mega Phoenix Electronics Trading LLC (Dubai): The company maintains an office
located at Boulevard Plaza T2, Unit No. 2502, 25t floor, Dubai, UAE. The term of the

lease will expire on 4 December 2026.

(i)  Phoenix Data Centre Limited (MASDAR): The company maintains a virtual desk
located at One Stop Shop, Unit 125, Incubator Building, MASDAR, Abu Dhabi, UAE.

The term of the lease is for the period June 3, 2023 — June 2, 2024

(i) Phoenix Ventures Limited (MASDAR): The company maintains a virtual desk located
at One Stop Shop, Unit VD 087, MASDAR, Abu Dhabi, UAE. The term of the lease
is for the period September 22, 2022 — September 21, 2024.

(iv) Mega Phoenix Electronics Trading LLC (Dubai): The company maintains a
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showroom located at Reemas Building, Al Quoz 1, Dubai, UAE. The term of the lease
is for the period July 13, 2023 - July 12, 2024.

(v)  Phoenix Computer Equipment Trading Ltd (KEZAD): The company maintains a
workstation located at Workstation No. 371A Building No. 280, Taweelah, Abu Dhabi,
UAE. The term of the lease is for the period 23 September 2023 — 22 September
2024.

(vi)  Phoenix Techco Cryptocurrency Mining - L.L.C - O.P.C (Abu Dhabi): The company
maintains an office desk located at 158, Building Al Danah E11, Abu Dhabi, UAE.
The term of the lease is for the period August 24, 2023 — March 7, 2024.

(vii) PTC Cloud Tech FZCO (Dubai): The company maintains an office desk located at
Dubai Silicon Oasis, DDP, Building A1, IFZA property, Dubai, UAE. The term of the
lease is for the period July 27, 2023 — July 26, 2024.

Employees

The Company, through its Subsidiaries, employs approximately 191 employees (including
5 FT consultants), including 157 who are located across UAE.

Insurance

The Company’s Subsidiaries maintain insurance policies customary for their industry to
cover certain risks. The principal risks covered by the insurance policies are professional
malpractice (professional indemnity insurance), property fire and all risks insurance
(property all risk insurance), public liability (comprehensive general liability), workers’
compensation and life insurance.

Statement of capital development
Company’s current share capital structure before the commencement of the Offering

The Company was incorporated in the ADGM on 2 August 2022, as a private company
limited by shares with a share capital of AED 36,725 (equivalent to USD 10,000), consisting
of 10,000 Shares of AED 3.67 (USD 1) each.

On conversion of the Company to a public company limited by shares on 25 September
2023, the total issued share capital of the Company was increased to AED 183,625 (USD
50,000) consisting of 50,000 Shares of AED 3.67 (USD 1) each.

On 28 September 2023, the share capital of the Company was sub-divided into Shares with
nominal value of AED 0.10 (USD 0.027) each. As a result of the sub-division, the issued
share capital of the Company became AED 183,625 (USD 50,000) consisting of 1,836,250
Shares of AED 0.10 (USD 0.027) each.

On 28 September 2023, the Company further issued 5,139,663,750 new Shares increasing
the Company’s total issued share capital to AED 514,150,000 (USD 140,000,000)
consisting of 5,141,500,000 Shares of AED 0.10 (USD 0.027) each.

The following table sets forth our major shareholders: (i) as at the date of this Prospectus,
with a total share capital of 5,141,500,000 Shares of AED 0.10 ( USD 0.027)
each, and (ii) immediately following the Offering, assuming that the Offer Shares are
subscribed in full:
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As at the date of this Prospectus:

Shareholder Number of Shares |Percentage
Agora SPV Ltd. 2,541,749,858 49.44%
Okab Okab Sakr 24,165,050 0.47%
Najib Abou Hamzeh 616,363,020 11.99%
Seyedmohammad Alizadehfard 323,477,368 6.29%
Echo Holding Limited 184,844,211 3.60%
Vertex Holding Limited 120,056,315 2.34%
Horizon Holding Limited 138,633,158 2.70%
Hyperion Holdings Ltd 217,191,947 4.22%
Hades Holdings Ltd 205,084,652 3.99%
Artemis Holdings Ltd 194,086,421 3.77%
Maple Tree Holdings Ltd 61,698,000 1.20%
International Tech Group Sole Proprietorship LLC 514,150,000 10.00%
TOTAL: 5,141,500,000 100%
Company’s capital structure upon completion of the Offering
Shareholder Number of Shares | Percentage
Agora SPV Ltd. 2,541,749,858 42.02%
Okab Okab Sakr 24,165,050 0.40%
Najib Abou Hamzeh 616,363,020 10.19%
Seyedmohammad Alizadehfard 323,477,368 5.35%
Echo Holding Limited 184,844,211 3.06%
Vertex Holding 120,056,315 1.98%
Horizon Holding Limited 138,633,158 2.29%
Hyperion Holdings Ltd 217,191,947 3.59%
Hades Holdings Ltd 205,084,652 3.39%
Artemis Holdings Ltd 194,086,421 3.21%
Maple Tree Holdings Ltd 61,698,000 1.02%
International Tech Group Sole Proprietorship LLC 514,150,000 8.50%
Professional Subscribers 846,835,294 14.00%
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10.

11.

12.

Retail Subscribers 60,488,235 1.00%

TOTAL 6,048,823,529 100%

Upon the completion of the Offering, and if the Offer size is not increased, the Company’s
paid-up share capital shall be AED 604,882,352.9 (equivalent to USD 164,705,882),
divided into 6,048,823,529 Shares with a nominal value of AED 0.10 (USD 0.027) per
Share.

Assuming that the Offer Shares are fully subscribed, Agora SPV Ltd. shall hold 42.02% of
the Shares upon Completion of the Offering as set out above. The Company reserves the
right to amend the size of the Offering at any time prior to the end of the subscription period
at its sole discretion, subject to applicable laws and the SCA’s approval.

Statement of the status of litigation actions and disputes with the Group over the
past three years

The Group has not been involved in any material, legal or arbitration proceedings (including
any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Company is aware)
during the last three years preceding the date of this Prospectus which may have, or have
had, a significant effect on its financial position or profitability.

Statement of the number employees of the Group

As at 301 September 2023, the Group had approximately 191 employees (including 5 FT
consultants).

Accounting policies adopted by the Company

The Company prepares its accounts in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and applicable requirements of ADGM laws.

Statement of Company’s loans, credit facilities and indebtedness and the most
significant conditions thereof

The Group has no debts owed to external parties other than the Mortgage with respect to
its Dubai offices, as detailed in point 11 below.

Statement of current pledges and encumbrances on the Group’s assets:

Currently, the Company’s subsidiary, Phoenix World Electronics Trading LLC, has one
existing mortgage in favor of First Abu Dhabi Bank, over its office located in Boulevard
Plaza Tower 2, Unit No. 2901, 29t floor, Dubai, UAE.

The amount secured by the mortgage is AED 13,814,714 as of 30t September 2023.
Investment Risks

Investing in and holding the Shares involves financial risk. Prospective investors in the
Shares should carefully review all of the information contained in this Prospectus and
should pay particular attention to the following risks associated with an investment in the
Company and the Shares that should be considered together with all other information
contained in this Prospectus. If one or more of the following risks were to arise, our business,
financial condition, results of operations, prospects or the price of the Shares could be
materially and adversely affected and investors could lose all or part of their investment. The
risks set out below may not be exhaustive and do not necessarily include all of the risks
associated with an investment in the Company and the Shares. Additional risks and
uncertainties not currently known to the Company or which it currently deems immaterial
may arise or become material in the future and may have a material adverse effect on the
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Company’s business, results of operations, financial condition, prospects or the price of the
Shares.

Risks Related to Our Group’s Business
The Group’s revenue is highly dependent on its operations in the UAE

The Group’s operations are principally located in the UAE. The Group’s results of operations
are, and are expected to continue to be, significantly affected by financial, economic and
political developments in or affecting the UAE.

In addition, the UAE is heavily dependent on revenue from oil and oil products, the prices
for which are volatile. A significant and substantial drop in prices may directly affect
government budget balances, increase the budget deficit and lead to austerity measures
potentially directly affecting our business. For example, the UAE government may reduce
costs and expenses, which may lead to cancelling or postponing the implementation of
current and future contracts. Any adverse changes in the economy, market or political
situations in the future, could negatively affect the UAE’s macro-economy and then the
Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

If the UAE economy suffers a decline, or if government intervention in the economies
restricts or limits economic growth, this could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

There is no guarantee that the Group’s existing contracts will be renewed upon expiry
and, even if they are renewed, the terms could differ to those in the current contracts

Subsidiaries have entered into a number of service contracts and framework agreements
with governmental and private entities. Upon expiry of such contracts there is no guarantee
that such contracts can be renewed and, if renewed, there is no guarantee that they will be
renewed on terms similar to the current contracts. The Subsidiaries’ failure to renew any of
these contracts or if they are renewed on terms less advantageous to the Group could have
a material adverse impact on the Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and
results of operations. Due to the nature of the Group’s business that is based on deep
relationships with clients spanning over multiple years offering cutting edge solutions, the
Group serves a pool of high value contracts and high value revenue customers. Any decline
in the business of the Subsidiaries’ clients can in turn impact the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group may not successfully implement its growth strategy

Although the Group believes that it is well positioned to take advantage of the strong growth
prospects of the technology market in the GCC region, there can be no assurance that the
Group’s growth will be sustainable. The Group is subject to risks associated with its
expansion and business strategy. Any failure of the Group to effectively manage its growth
plans or improve capacity utilization of its assets could have a material adverse effect on its
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

The Group’s strategic vision is based on expanding product and solutions portfolio, as well
as serving a more diversified client base across new geographies. Executing along all three
of these dimensions requires a high level of strategic planning and operational excellence,
both at the organizational and individual levels.

Despite having experienced a remarkable growth across all financial metrics in the past few
years, there can be no assurances that the Group’s revenues will continue to grow or will do
so at the current rates.

We may be involved in disputes and legal proceedings.
In the ordinary course of business, we are subject to risks relating to legal and regulatory

proceedings. Although we are currently not involved in any legal proceedings which we
believe are material, we may be involved in material disputes, in the future, including those
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initiated by regulatory, competition and tax authorities as well as proceedings with
competitors, suppliers, customers, employees and other parties. Our involvement in
litigation and/or regulatory proceedings may result in the imposition of fines or penalties.
Certain of these disputes may relate to key operational matters, such as our permits, and if
determined adversely, could have a material adverse effect on our business. Any such
disputes or legal proceedings, whether with or without merit, could be expensive and time
consuming, could divert the attention of our management and, if resolved adversely to us,
could harm our reputation, result in the payment of monetary damages, injunctive relief
and/or increase our costs, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

We are not fully insured against all potential hazards and risks incident to our
business. Therefore, our insurance coverage may not adequately cover our losses.

If we were to incur significant liability for which we were not fully insured, it could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows. We are subject to various self-retentions, deductibles and limits under our insurance
policies. The policies also contain exclusions and conditions that could have a material
adverse impact on our ability to receive indemnification thereunder. Our policies will
generally be renewed annually. As a result of market conditions, our premiums, self-
retentions and deductibles for certain insurance policies can increase substantially and, in
some instances, certain insurance may become unavailable or available only for reduced
amounts of coverage. In addition, significantly increased costs could lead us to decide to
reduce, or possibly eliminate, coverage.

Natural disasters or health epidemics or pandemics, such as the current COVID-19
pandemic, may disrupt our operations, decrease the demand for our products or
otherwise have an adverseimpact on our business.

The outbreak of infectious diseases, such as SARS-CoV-2 (“COVID-19") in the Middle East
could materially affect the economies and, in particular, the healthcare sectors in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. Following the outbreak of COVID-19, the
governments of Dubai and Abu Dhabi implemented a range of precautionary containment
measures in response to the outbreak, including travel restrictions or mandatory quarantine
measures on international travellers and on residents within cities, regions or provinces of
certain countries; and the temporary suspension of all flights (international and domestic)
and inter-urban bus and taxi service. These measures required the Group to modify the
way in which it operated its business to comply with new government regulations. In
addition, the supply of certain international products purchased by the Group could be
suspended, delayed or otherwise adversely affected. Furthermore, there can be no
assurance that any containment measures (such as those outlined above) or any of the
available vaccine programs would be effective in stopping or curtailing future outbreaks of
COVID-19 or other infectious diseases. The occurrence of any of the foregoing risks could
have a material adverse impact on the Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and
results of operations.

Cybersecurity risks could result in disruptions in business operations and adverse
operating results.

We rely on information technology and computer control systems in many aspects of our
business, including internal and external communications, the management of our
accounting, financial and supply chain functions, and plant operations. Business and supply
chain disruptions, plant and utility outages, and information technology system and network
disruptions suffered by us or our suppliers due to cyber-attacks could seriously harm our
operations and materially adversely affect our operating results. Cyber security risks
include attacks on information technology and infrastructure by hackers, damage or loss of
information due to viruses, the unintended disclosure of confidential information, the misuse
or loss of control over computer control systems, and breaches due to employee error. Our
exposure to cyber security risks includes exposure through third parties on whose systems
we place significant reliance for the conduct of our business and exposure through third
party suppliers whose systems may be vulnerable to cyber-attacks. We have implemented
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security procedures and measures in order to protect our systems and information from
being vulnerable to cyber-attacks, and we believe these measures and procedures are
appropriate. However, we may not have the resources or technical sophistication to
anticipate, prevent, or recover from rapidly evolving types of cyber-attacks. Compromises
to our information and control systems could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Deterioration of global market and economic conditions could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

A slowdown of, or persistent weakness in, economic activity caused by a deterioration of
global market and economic conditions could adversely affect our business in the following
ways, among others: conditions in the credit markets could affect the ability of our
customers and their customers to obtain sufficient credit to support their operations; the
failure of our customers to fulfill their purchase obligations could result in increases in bad
debts and impact our working capital; and the failure of certain key suppliers could increase
our exposure to disruptions in supply or to financial losses.

If we are unable to attract and retain qualified personnel and skilled employees, we
will be unable to operate efficiently, which could reduce our results of operations, and
cash flows.

Our ability to operate our business is dependent on our ability to attract and retain qualified
personnel, including talented executives, specialist engineers and operators, technicians,
and key management staff. Increase in the demand for qualified personnel in the markets
in which we operate may result in us being unable to hire and retain a sufficient skilled labor
force necessary to support our operating requirements and growth strategy. Our labor
expenses may increase as a result of a shortage in the supply of skilled personnel and we
may also be forced to incur significant training expenses if we are unable to hire employees
with the requisite skills. Additionally, our businesses are managed by a number of key
executive and operational officers and are dependent upon retaining and recruiting
qualified management. Labor shortages, increased labor or training costs, or the loss of
key personnel could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

Risk Relating to Geographical, Political and Economic Conditions

Governments in the MENA region have exercised and continue to exercise significant
influence over their respective economies, and legal and regulatory systems in the
MENA region, which may create an uncertain environment for investment and
business activities.

The governments in the MENA region, including the UAE, have frequently intervened in
the economic policy of their respective countries. This intervention has included, but not
been limited to, regulation of market conditions, including foreign investment, foreign trade
and financial services. Any unexpected changes in the political, social, economic or other
conditions in the MENA region or neighboring countries could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and prospects.

These changes include:

- an increase in inflation and government measures to curb such inflation, including
through policies such as price controls;

- governments’ actions or interventions, including tariffs, protectionism, foreign
exchange and currency controls and subsidies;

- regulatory and legal structure changes, including foreign ownership restrictions,

cancellation of contractual rights, expropriation of assets and potential lack of
certainty as to title to real estate property in certain jurisdictions where we operate;
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- changes to the availability of, requirements for, and cost to secure, employment
and residence visas for expatriate staff and their dependents;

- income and other taxation;

- policies of nationalization of assets and requirements to employ local national
employees;

- difficulties and delays in obtaining new permits and consents for new
operations or renewing existing permits; and
- an inability to repatriate profits and/or dividends.

Unexpected changes in these policies or regulations could lead to increased operating or
compliance expenses and could have the effect of decreasing our competitiveness. Any
such changes could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition, and cash flows.

Changes in UAE tax laws or their application could materially adversely affect the
Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations

Other than in certain sectors, such as oil and gas and financial services, there was
historically no corporate or income tax in the UAE and, accordingly, the profits of the Group’s
UAE businesses have not historically been subject to corporate income tax. However, on 31
January 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance announced the introduction of a corporate
income tax (the “CIT”) on business profits, which came into effect on 1 June 2023 and will
apply to the Group from such date. In summary CIT will be imposed on adjusted accounting
net profits above AED 375,000 and will apply at a standard statutory tax rate of 9 per cent
to taxable income in excess of the AED 375,000 threshold. However, the UAE Ministry of
Finance has announced that companies with consolidated revenues exceeding EUR 750
million could be subject to a higher rate of CIT. Although not yet officially announced, it is
anticipated that the UAE Ministry of Finance will align the higher rate with the global effective
minimum tax rate introduced under Pillar 2 and the Global Anti-Base Erosion rules of 15 per
cent. The UAE Federal Tax Authority will be responsible for administering, collecting and
enforcing corporate tax in line with rules and regulations issued by the UAE Ministry of
Finance. Further details regarding the CIT are expected to be published by the UAE Ministry
of Finance in due course.

The financial information of the Group presented in this Prospectus does not reflect the
impact of the payment of CIT on the Group’s financial results, and is therefore not indicative
of the impact of CIT (or any other tax regime) on the Group’s future results of operations. In
addition, there can be no assurance that the UAE will not introduce further taxes on
corporations or UAE tax residents , which could adversely affect the profitability of the Group
and influence the way UAE tax residents choose to spend discretionary income, and
therefore adversely affect the demand for certain of the Group’s services. The introduction
of a CIT or any other changes to taxation and tax laws in the UAE could have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations.

Risks Relating to the Offering and to the Shares

After the Offering, Agora SPV Ltd will continue to be able to exercise control over the
Company, its management and our operations.

As at the date of this Prospectus, Agora SPV Ltd holds 49.44% of our issued share capital
and immediately following the Offering, Agora SPV Ltd will continue to hold at least 42.02%
provided that the Offer Shares are subscribed in full and no changes are made to the
Offering. As a result, Agora SPV Ltd will be able to exercise control over our management
and operations and over matters requiring the consent of our shareholders, such as in
relation to the payment of dividends and the election of the members of our Board of
Directors and other matters. There can be no assurance that the interests of Agora SPV
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Ltd will coincide with the interests of purchasers of the Shares.

Furthermore, Agora SPV Ltd’s significant ownership of the Shares may: (i) delay or deter a
change of control of the Company (including deterring a third party from making a takeover
offer for the Company); (ii) deprive shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for
their Shares as part of a sale of the Company; and (iii) affect the liquidity of the Shares, any
of which could have a material adverse effect on the market price of the Shares. In addition,
there may be circumstances where our businesses compete directly or indirectly with Agora
SPV Ltd’s businesses, and Agora SPV Ltd may take decisions with respect to those
businesses that are adverse to the interests of our other shareholders.

Substantial sales of Shares by Agora SPV Ltd could depress the price of the Shares.

Sales of a substantial number of Shares by Agora SPV Ltd following the completion of the
Offering may significantly reduce our share price. We are unable to predict whether
substantial amounts of Shares (in addition to those which will be available in the Offering)
will be sold in the open market following the completion of the Offering. Any sales of
substantial amounts of Shares in the public market, or the perception that such sales might
occur, could materially and adversely affect the market price of the Shares.

Futureissuances of Shares may dilutethe holdings of shareholders and may depress
the price of the Shares.

It is possible that we may decide to offer additional Shares or securities convertible into
Shares in the future, including in the form of stock-based compensation. Future sales could
dilute the holdings of shareholders, adversely affect the prevailing market price of the
Shares and impair our ability to raise capital through future sales of equity securities.

The Offering may not result in an active or liquid market for the Shares, and trading
prices of the Shares may be volatile and may decline. In addition, the ADX is
significantly smaller in size than other established securities markets, which may
also affect liquidity in the Shares.

Prior to the Offering, there has been no public trading market for the Shares. We cannot
guarantee that an active trading market will develop or be sustained following the
completion of the Offering, or that the market price of the Shares will not decline thereafter
below the offer price. The trading price of the Shares may be subject to wide fluctuations
in response to many factors, as well as stock market fluctuations and general economic
conditions or changes in political sentiment that may adversely affect the market price of the
Shares, regardless of our actual performance or conditions in the UAE.

These factors could generally decrease the liquidity and increase the volatility of share prices
on the ADX, which in turn could increase the price volatility of the Shares and impair the
ability of a holder of Shares to sell any Shares on the ADX in the desired amount and at
the price and time achievable in more liquid markets.

Because the Company is a holding company and substantially all of its operations
are conducted through the Subsidiaries, the Company’s ability to pay dividends on
the Shares depends on its ability to obtain cash dividends or other cash payments
from Subsidiaries.

The Company currently conducts all of its operations through its Subsidiaries, and the
Subsidiaries generate substantially all of the operating income and cash flow of the
Company. Because the Company has no direct operations or significant assets other than
the capital stock in the Subsidiaries, the Company relies on the Subsidiaries for cash
dividends, investment income, financing proceeds and other cash flows to pay dividends, if
any, on the Shares and, in the long term, to pay other obligations at the holding company
level that may arise from time to time.

Following the Offering, the price of the Shares on the ADX may differ from the Offer
Price and could be adversely affected by several factors
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The Offer Price may not be indicative of the price at which the Shares will be traded on the
ADX following completion of the Offering. Investors may not be able to resell the Offer
Shares at or above the Offer Price or may not be able to sell them at all. The price of shares
on the ADX following the Offering may be adversely affected by several factors, including,
but not limited to, the following:

- negative fluctuations in the Group’s operating performance and improved
performance of its competitors;

- actual or anticipated fluctuations in quarterly or annual operating results;

- securities analysts publishing research reports about the Group or its competitors
or the technology service sector;

- the public reaction to the Group’s press statements and other public
announcements;

- the Group or its competitors being contrary to analysts’ expectations;
- resignation of key employees;

- the Group or its competitors taking important and strategic decisions or existence
of changes in the business strategy;

- regulatory environment changes affecting the Group; and
- changes in accounting regulations and policies adopted.

We may not pay any cash dividends on the Shares. Consequently, you may not
receive any return on investment unless you sell your Shares for a price greater than
that which you paid for them.

While we intend to pay dividends in respect of the Shares, there can be no assurance that
we will do so. Any decision to declare and pay dividends in the future will be made at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on, among other things, applicable laws
and regulations, our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements,
restrictions, our future projects and plans and other factors that our Board of Directors may
deem relevant. As a result, you may not receive any return on an investment in the Shares
unless you sell your Shares for a price greater than that which you paid for them. See
“Dividend Policy”.

UAE Taxation

The following summary describes certain UAE tax consequences in connection with the
acquisition, ownership and disposal of the Shares. This summary is based on the laws as
in force and as applied in practice in the UAE as at the date of this Document and is subject
to changes to those laws and practices subsequent to such date. In the case of persons
who are Non-residents for income tax purposes, this summary should be read in
conjunction with the provisions of any applicable double tax agreement between the UAE
and their country of residence. The following summary is not a comprehensive description
of all of the tax considerations that may be relevant to the acquisition, ownership and
disposal of the Shares and does not cover tax consequences that depend upon the
shareholders’ particular tax circumstances or jurisdictions outside the UAE. This summary
is intended as a general guide only and should not be regarded as tax advice. The
comments do not purport to be a comprehensive analysis of all the tax consequences
applicable to all types of shareholders and do not relate to any taxation regime outside the
UAE. Each shareholder is responsible for its own tax position and, if you are in any doubt as
to your own tax position, you should seek independent professional advice without delay.
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Taxation of Corporates and Individuals

On 31 January 2022 the UAE Ministry of Finance announced that the UAE will introduce a
Federal Corporate Tax. In this regard, Federal Decree Law 47 of 2022 (the “CT Law”) was
published on 9 December 2022 which comes into effect for financial years beginning on or
after 1 June 2023.

Corporate Tax Rate

In terms of the CT Law, CT is imposed on the taxable income of a taxable person at the
standard rate of 9%, provided the first AED 375,000 is subject to 0%. Income of a revenue
nature and capital gains are taxed at the same rate of 9%. Where the taxable person
constitutes a qualifying free zone person, its qualifying income may be subject to CT at a
rate of 0%. The CT Law also provides specific relief for small businesses with an annual
revenue below AED 3 million, which, if applicable, would allow such taxable person to be
treated as not having derived any taxable income during the relevant tax period.

Taxable Persons

The CT Law applies to all Taxable Persons, which includes Resident and Non-Resident
Taxable Persons as defined. A Resident Person will be taxed on its worldwide income,
while a Non-Resident will only be taxed on its UAE sourced income.

A Resident person would include: (a) a juridical person that is incorporated or otherwise
established or recognized under the applicable legislation of the State, including a Free
Zone Person; (b) a juridical person that is incorporated or otherwise established or
recognized under the applicable legislation of a foreign jurisdiction that is effectively
managed and controlled in the State; (c) a natural person who conducts a Business or
Business Activity in the State; and (d) any other person as may be determined in a decision
issued by the Cabinet.

A Non-resident would be regarded as a Taxable person where: (a) it has a permanent
establishment in the UAE; (b) it derives UAE Sourced income; or (c) otherwise has a nexus
in the State as specified by a Cabinet Decision (this currently only includes a Non-Resident
juridical person that earns income from immovable property in the UAE). A non-resident
person that derives only state sourced income and that neither has a PE in the UAE nor
immovable property in the UAE, will not be required to register for CT.

Taxation of natural persons

A natural person will only constitute a Taxable Person where the person conducts a
Business or Business Activity in the UAE, provided his total turnover derived from such
Business or Business Activities exceeds AED 1 million within a calendar year. This is
subject thereto that revenue derived from wages, personal investments and real estate
investments shall not be considered as derived from Business or Business Activities,
regardless of the revenue derived from such activities. Insofar as a natural person receives
income from any of these three sources, such income will not be subject to Corporate Tax.
These amounts can be excluded from the AED 1 million threshold contemplated above. A
natural person that is not conducting a Business or Business Activity subject to Corporate
Tax in accordance with the guidelines set out above shall not be required to register for
Corporate Tax in the UAE.

Taxation of dividends

A dividend is defined in Ministerial Decision No. 116 of 2023 as:
“Any payments or distributions that are declared or paid on or in respect of shares
or other rights participating in the profits of the issuer of such shares or rights which
do not constitute a return on capital or a return on debt claims, whether such

payments or distributions are in cash, securities, or other properties, and whether
payable out of profits or retained earnings or from any account or legal reserve or
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from capital reserve or revenue. This will include any payment or benefit which in
substance or effect constitutes a distribution of profits made in connection with the
acquisition or redemption or cancellation of shares or termination of other
ownership interests or rights or any transaction or arrangement with a Related
Party or Connected Person which does not comply with Article (34) of the
Corporate Tax Law’.

Dividends as contemplated above, received from a UAE resident juridical person will be
exempt from CIT. Furthermore UAE sourced dividends paid to a non-resident person will
be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 0%.

Shareholders who are tax resident outside the UAE (both corporate and individual), should
consult their tax advisers as to the taxation of dividend income derived from the Shares
under the applicable local laws in those jurisdictions.

Taxation on subscription for Offer Shares

There are no taxes that arise in the UAE on the subscription for Offer Shares by the
shareholders. Accordingly, the subscription for Offer Shares should not result in any UAE
tax liabilities for shareholders. The shareholders will establish a cost base in relation to the
Shares acquired upon subscription equal to the subscription price paid.

Shareholders who are tax resident outside the UAE should consult their tax advisers in
such foreign jurisdiction as to any possible tax consequences that might result from the
subscription for Offer Shares.

Disposal of Shares

The future disposal of Shares by a shareholder that is a Taxable Person may give rise to
gain for CIT purposes where the proceeds exceed the cost base in respect of such shares.
As indicated above, the UAE taxes both capital gains and revenue receipts at the same 9%
rate subject to possible reliefs and exemptions as might be applicable to the particular
shareholder concerned.

A Resident Taxable Person will be subject to CIT at 9% on gains derived from the disposal
of the Shares subject to possible reliefs and exemptions that might be applicable, for
example small business relief, qualifying free zone relief or the participation exemption.

A Taxable Person that is a natural person may be exempt from tax on gains derived from
the future disposal of Shares where such gains constitute personal investment income of
such person or falls below the AED 1 million threshold discussed earlier.

A Non-Resident Taxable Person should only be subject to CIT on gains resulting from the
disposal of the Shares where such Shares are effectively connected or attributable to the
permanent establishment of such person in the UAE.

Depending on the nature of the shareholder concerned, such shareholder might also be
eligible for particular entity based exemptions as contained in the CT Law, for example
government entities, government controlled entities, pension funds etc. The participation
exemption mentioned above would also be available to all Taxable Persons, provided the
requirements in respect thereof are met.

Shareholders who are tax resident outside the UAE (both corporate and individual), should
consult their tax advisers as to the taxation of gains on the future sale of the Shares under
the applicable local laws in those jurisdictions.

Securities transfer tax

The UAE does not impose any stamp duty or securities transfer tax on the issuance or
transfer of shares.

Value-added tax

From a UAE VAT perspective the issue, allotment or transfer of ownership of an equity
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security (which includes the Shares) will constitute a supply of financial services which is
exempt in terms of article 46(1) of the Federal Decree Law No. 8 of 2017 (the “VAT Law”)
as read with article 42(3) (b) of the Executive Regulations to the VAT Law. Accordingly,
there would be no VAT charge on the issue or transfer of the Offer Shares.

However, it should be noted that fees relating to the transfer of ownership of Offer Shares
would be standard rated at 5%.

Crypto currency industry specific risks
Price Volatility

Bitcoin's price volatility is a defining characteristic of the crypto market, attracting both
opportunity-seekers and risk-takers. Bitcoin's price volatility refers to the rapid and
substantial fluctuations in its market price over short periods. While the volatility has the
potential to generate substantial profits, as traders can capitalize on price swings, on the
other hand, it exposes investors to significant risk, making Bitcoin a highly speculative asset.
While the potential for substantial gains exists, the risk of significant losses is a potential
risk. Investors should approach Bitcoin with caution, conduct thorough research, and adopt
risk-mitigation strategies to protect their investments.

Crypto specific regulatory challenges

Crypto could face regulatory headwinds across certain jurisdictions leading possible
reduction in mining demand or inability to operate in those jurisdictions. Regulatory changes
can also pose a risk to Bitcoin mining. As governments worldwide formulate cryptocurrency
regulations, changes in the legal environment can affect the profitability and legality of
mining activities. Regulatory uncertainties may deter new entrants and lead to the shutdown
of existing mining operations.

Increased competition

The risk of increased competition in Bitcoin mining is a concern that has been amplified in
recent years as the cryptocurrency market continues to evolve. Bitcoin's growing popularity
and its price surges have attracted more participants to the mining space. As more miners
enter the network, the competition for block rewards and transaction fees intensifies. This
heightened competition can result in diminishing profitability for individual miners, especially
those with limited resources or access to cheaper energy. Furthermore, advancements in
mining hardware and technology have enabled more efficient and powerful mining
operations. Although, large-scale mining farms, often located in regions with low electricity
costs, have a significant advantage in terms of economies of scale. Additionally, the Bitcoin
network adjusts its difficulty level approximately every two weeks to maintain a consistent
block production rate. As more miners join the network, the difficulty increases to ensure
that new blocks are generated approximately every 10 minutes. This adjustment mechanism
can make it increasingly challenging for new miners to compete effectively. The risk of
increased competition in Bitcoin mining highlights the need for miners to continuously
innovate and optimize their operations. As the Bitcoin mining ecosystem evolves, staying
informed about technological advancements and industry trends becomes crucial for miners
seeking to remain profitable in the face of heightened competition. For Phoenix Group, it
may therefore be capital intensive if a new technology warranted significant infrastructure
upgrade.
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THIRD SECTION: FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

Summary of Company’s Financial Statements and a Summary of Key Notes and Key
Financial Indicators as of and for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 and the nine (9) months
ended 30 September 2023.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements,
including the notes thereto, included in this Prospectus as of and for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the nine (9) months ended 30 September 2023 as well as the reports and financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 and for the year ended December 31, 2022 for
Phoenix World Electronics Trading LLC, one of the subsidiaries that is wholly owned indirectly by the
Company. Investors should also read certain risks associated with the purchase of Offer Shares in
the section entitled “Investment Risks”.

EBITDA is a Non-IFRS measure and was calculated by the Company based on data derived from
the Company’s Financial Statements.

The selected financial information set forth below shows our historical financial information and
other operating information as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the nine (9) months
ended 30 September 2023. The financial information set forth below under the captions “Statement
of Comprehensive Income Data”, “Statement of Financial Position Data”, “Statement of Cash Flows
Data” and “Other Financial Information” has been derived from, and should be read in conjunction
with, the Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Prospectus.
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Summary statement of comprehensive income data

Please refer to Audited Financial Statements as attached in Annex 1.
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Summary statement of financial position data

Please refer to Audited Financial Statements as attached in Annex 1.
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Summary statement of cash flows data

Please refer to Audited Financial Statements as attached in Annex 1.
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Dividend Policy

The Board will adopt a robust dividend policy designed to return to shareholders substantially all of its
distributable free cash flow, however the initial focus is on growth and expansion for 2 - 3 years,
after which time the Company will adopt an active dividend policy, while maintaining an investment
grade credit profile.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends is dependent on a number of factors, including:

. focus on growth for 2 - 3 years post listing

. the availability of distributable reserves and our capital expenditure plans and other cash
requirements in future periods;

. market conditions and the then current operating environment in our markets;
o the Board'’s outlook for our business;
. future profits and our business plan (including our ability to perform in accordance with the

expectations in our business plan);
. the discretion of our Board; and
. approval of any dividend payment at a general meeting of our Shareholders.

The guidance provided above is based on our current business plan and targets. However, there is
no assurance that we will pay any of the dividends described above or going forward or, if a dividend
is paid, what the amount of such dividend will be.

Material events and contracts concluded by the Company and its Subsidiaries (including
related party agreements)

Green Data City - Oman

Phoenix Computer Equipment Trading Ltd has signed an agreement with Muscat-based Green Data
City to develop a multimillion crypto-mining farm in Oman. The 150-megawatt farm, which will be one
of the largest crypto-mining data centres in the region, will be installed in Green Data City, and
managed and operated by Phoenix. The farm is expected to be operational by the second quarter of
2024.

Purchase of Crypto-mining Equipment from WhatsMiner

Phoenix Computer Equipment Trading Ltd has purchased USD 136 M worth of mining equipment and
air-cooling miners from WhatsMiner (SuperAcme Technology Hong Kong Limited) which also provided
Phoenix with (a) an option to purchase further equipment at fixed prices, and (b) to assemble the
miners at a local facility in the UAE to be constructed and developed by Phoenix under the training
and supervision of WhatsMiner.

Purchase of Infrastructure from Inchigle Technology

Phoenix Computer Equipment Trading Ltd has entered into a hydro-solution infrastructure supply
agreement with Hong Kong based Inchigle Technology Hong Kong Limited for purchase of latest
generation hydro-cooling mining infrastructure including hydro server racks, coolant distributing units,
dry coolers and, hydro containers at 175MW capacity, together with the option to purchase 350MW
capacity at fixed cost.

WhatsMiner Distribution Rights & Exclusivity
Due to Phoenix Computer Equipment Trading Ltd being a leader in the crypto-mining space, it has
been granted the distribution and exclusive rights by WhatsMiner (the leading brand of mining

hardware and chip design developed by MicroBT) for its entire product line over an extensive territory
which includes UAE, GCC, Egypt, Turkey and Kenya.
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Operations & Management Agreement — Citadel Project (largest crypto-mining farm in the UAE)

Phoenix Data Center Limited not only holds a 15% stake in Citadel, but also carries out the entire
operations and management of the Citadel Project, which is designed to leverage advanced
technologies and infrastructure to facilitate efficient and effective cryptocurrency mining operations. By
combining the expertise and resources of both the Group and Citadel Technologies, this initiative aims
to capitalize on the growing potential of the cryptocurrency market in the region.

Frank Muller Distribution

Mega Phoenix Electronics Trading LLC has secured the right to exhibit, showcase and sell unique
Frank Muller watches that have inbuilt bitcoin wallet features from the Group’s showrooms across
UAE.

Tangem Exclusivity

Mega Phoenix Electronics Trading LLC has been granted the exclusive rights to exhibit, showcase
and sell Tangem crypto-related wallets and other hardware, across the Group’s showrooms and UAE.

Hosting Agreements

PTC Cloud Tech — FZCO has entered into a large number of hosting agreements with third parties
(currently up to the value of approximately $ 69M) whereby the company offers through its subsidiaries
digital asset and bitcoin mining services (including self-mining services), to individuals as well as
corporate clients, with maximum uptime and seamless services to achieve optimized returns.

Marlboro Electric Cooperative

Absolute Power Solutions Inc. has entered into longform power supply contracts with one of the
largest cooperatives, Marlboro Electric Cooperative, for supply off over 95 MW of power to the
company at subsidized rates, to operate its data mining centers in Dillon and Marlboro counties in
USA.

Bitzero

Phoenix Digital Solutions Holdings Ltd is committed to a sustainable future for crypto-mining, and
accordingly acquired 20% of Bitzero Inc.

Related Party Transactions

The Group enters into transactions with other entities that fall within the definition of a related party as
contained in IAS 24, related party disclosures. Such transactions are in the normal course of business
and at terms that correspond to those on normal arm’s length transactions with third parties (except
revenue related transactions). Related parties comprise entities under common ownership and/or
common management and control, their partners and key management personnel.

The management decides on the terms and conditions of the transactions and services
received/rendered from/to related parties as well as other changes, if applicable.

Related Party Transactions

For the For the
nine year
months ended

period December
ended 31, 2022
September
30, 2023
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(Unaudited) (Audited)
a) Due from entities with joint control of, or significant
influence over the Group

Ms. Phoenix Cooling Specialized Industrial Machinery and - 1,889,358
Equipment Manufacturing L.L.C, UAE

M/s. AlphaBit, LLC, USA 809,172 738,808
M/s. GameOver Escape Rooms Playground, UAE 248,781 -
M/s. Phoenix Technology Solutions B.V., Netherlands 183,110 -
M/s. Chromium Investment Limited, UAE 38,514 -
M/s. Phoenix VC Investments AG, Switzerland 11,928 -
M/s. Phoenix Technology Investments Holding AG, Switzerland 89,760 77,305
M/s. Cypher Labs Information Technology Consultants L.L.C, UAE - 1,128,268
M/s. Phoenix Technology Bilgisayar Elektronik Limited, Turkey - 580,605
Other related parties 2,700,051 448,343

b) Due from an associate
- 5,346,118
M/s. M2 Holdings Limited, UAE
4,081,316 10,208,805

c) Due to entities with joint control of, or significant influence
over the Group and associate

Ms. W A S Four Investment - Sole Proprietorship L.L.C, UAE 44,595,041 44,595,041
M/s. Logica Ventures Corp, Canada 6,463 16,748
M/s. Citadel Technologies Group LLC, UAE 6,127 6,127
M/s. M2 Holdings Limited, UAE 57,826

44,665,457 44,617,916

(Unaudited)  (Audited)
d) Key management personnel compensations
The compensation of key management personnel is as follows:
Management remuneration 735,194 762,423

58/169



FOURTH SECTION: OTHER DETAILS
Mechanism for adopting a governance system in the Company

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to standards of corporate governance
that are in line with international best practice. As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company
complies, and intends to comply, with the corporate governance requirements of the ADGM
and the ADX listing and disclosure rules.

In this Prospectus, the corporate governance rules applicable to the Company and the
governance and board composition policy are collectively referred to as the ("Governance
Rules").

The Company’s Proposed Management Structure

Company’s Board structure

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of five (5) Directors, 3 of whom are

independent Non-Executive Directors, and 2 of whom are Executive Directors. Below is a
list of the current Directors of the Company.

Year of
Name Year of birth Position appointment
H.E Tareq Al Hosani 1974 Chairman, 2023
) q Board Member
Ms. Elham Algasim 1982 Board Member 2023
Mr. Fady M Y Dahalan 1990 Board Member 2023
Group CEO,
Mr. Seyedmohammad 1987 Board Member 2022
Alizadehfard
Group
Mr. Munaf Al 1974 _Managing 2022
Director, Board
Member

The management expertise and experience of each of Board of Directors, and Key
Executives is set out below:

H.E. Tareq Al Hosani
Chairman of the Board

H.E. Tareq Al Hosani is the Chief Executive Officer of Tawazun Economic Council. He is
responsible for managing the procurement of UAE Armed Forces and Abu Dhabi Police
while driving the strategic plans for the development of the UAE defense and security
sector. H.E. Tareq Al Hosani also manages the day-to-day business activities of Tawazun.

Prior to joining Tawazun, H.E. Tareq served as the Chief Executive Officer of Yahsat before
taking on the role of Deputy Director General for the National Electronic Security Authority
(NESA). He had also served as Yahsat's Executive Director for Strategy & Business
Development, as well as Deputy Chief Technical Officer.

H.E. Tareq Al Hosani also held the position of Associate Director at Mubadala Investment
Company. H.E. Tareq Al Hosani currently serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Global Aerospace Logistics (GAL), and of Munich Health Daman Holding Limited, and as
Vice Chairman in the Boards of Abu Dhabi Health Services (SEHA), Al Forsan International
Sports Resorts, and Abu Dhabi Airports Company (ADAC).

He is a member of the board of directors of Al Yah Satellite Communication (Yah Sat),
International Golden Group (IGG), Higher Colleges of Technology (HCT), EDGE Group,
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Emirates Defense Industries Company (EDIC), Royal Jet, Rabdan Academy as well as the
Board of Trustees of the Paris-Sorbonne University — Abu Dhabi.

Previously, H.E. Tareq Al Hosani sat on the boards of several UAE strategic entities, such
as UAE Space Agency, and National Health Insurance Company (Daman).

He holds a Masters degree in Electronics & Communication from Université Pierre et Marie
Curie in France and a Bachelors in Aeronautics from Saint Louis University in the United
States of America.

He is also the holder of an Accelerated Executive Development Diploma from IMD Business
School in Switzerland.

Ms. Elham Al Qasim
Board Member

Elham Al Qasim is a senior executive and investment professional based in the UAE.In her
executive capacity Elham has served as CEO of Digitall4, leading over 1,000 staff in
delivering cybersecurity and digital solutions. Elham also served as CEO of Abu Dhabi
Investment Office (ADIO) and Executive Director of the Ghadan 21 programme at the Abu
Dhabi Executive Office where she led the strategic planning for the government’s three-
year, AED 50 billion investment programme aimed at accelerating Abu Dhabi’s economy.

Prior to this, Elham was a Director of Mubadala Investment Company, focusing on
Mubadala’s Technology and Industry portfolio. Her responsibilities included building
investment/entry strategy, business development, value creation, post-acquisition asset
management, and monetization. During this time, Elham also served on the executive
leadership team of Emirates Global Aluminium and delivered a two-year post-merger
integration program.

Elham’s international career also includes JPMorgan Investment Bank, where she was part
of the Global Diversified Industrials Team based in London, handling M&A transactions in
chemicals, metals and mining, and infrastructure.

As a non-executive Director, Elham has served on a humber of international and national
public and private boards including Global Foundries, IHC, and Khalifa Fund. She is
currently a Board Member of Amanat Holdings and CMRC, and Vice Chairperson of Apex
Holdings and Abu Dhabi University.

Elham holds an MSc from the School of Social Policy at the London School of Economics,
and a Bachelor of Business from the American University in Dubai. In April 2010, Elham
became the first Arab woman to ski to the North Pole.

Mr. Fady M.Y Dahalan
Board Member

Fady Dahalan serves as the CEO of Citadel International Holdings (CIH), a prominent
investment management firm headquartered in Abu Dhabi, UAE. CIH oversees a diverse
portfolio that encompasses Capital Markets, Real Estate, Pharmaceuticals, Manufacturing
& Retail, and Blockchain Technology, with investments strategically positioned across
Europe, the Middle East, and Africa.

In addition to his role at CIH, Mr. Dahalan is the Managing Partner at Cl Venture Capital (Cl
VC) in Abu Dhabi, a forward-thinking venture capital firm regulated by ADGM. With a keen
eye for innovation, Cl VC is dedicated to investing in and partnering with the region's most
promising startups, particularly those breaking ground in F&B, FinTech, and Super App
development.

Mr. Dahalan's influence in the digital currency realm is evident through his role as a Board

Member at M2, a cutting-edge Digital Currency and Exchange Platform. His expertise is
further showcased by his board memberships across a myriad of sectors, from hospitality
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and real estate to financial services, food processing, petconomy, construction, media,
pharmaceuticals, and blockchain technology. Notably, he holds an observer seat in Multiply
Group PJSC, a company publicly traded on the Abu Dhabi Stock Market, and plays a pivotal
role in the startups incubated by Cl Venture Capital, either as an observer or director.

Prior to his current endeavors, Mr. Dahalan was associated with AMIRAL Holdings and IHC.
He earned his bachelor's degree in business management from Southern lIllinois University
— Illinois, USA. Demonstrating visionary leadership and profound strategic expertise
throughout his career, Mr. Dahalan remains at the forefront of regional investment and
innovation.

Mr. Seyedmohammad Alizadehfard
Board Member & Group CEO

Seyedmohammad Alizadehfard, Co-Founder and Group CEO at the Phoenix Group, is a
visionary leader with unparalleled business acumen and expertise within the blockchain
ecosystem. Mr. Alizadehfard’s contribution to Phoenix is invaluable, and his vision and
perseverance has established Phoenix as a regional and global player in crypto and
blockchain industry.

Mr. Alizadehfard is also founder of Cypher Capital, a Dubai-based venture firm investing in
crypto, blockchain and other digital asset projects. It is widely regarded as a pre-eminent
Web3 focused Venture Capital firm in the MENA region and notably recognised globally with
its highly successful track record of investments.

Mr. Alizadehfard believes in working with visionary innovators, outstanding talent and other
venture capital partners to create a holistic blockchain community, whereby the ecosystem
can benefit and grow for a more decentralized future for all.

Mr. Munaf Ali
Board Member & Group Managing Director

Munaf Ali, Co-Founder and Group Managing Director of the Phoenix Group, is a visionary
Group Managing Director, entrepreneur, and innovator with over 20 years Capital Markets
experience (including previous executive banking roles in Citigroup across London and
UAE).

Munaf has founded and built billion-dollar corporations globally across sectors including
Hospitality, Leisure and Blockchain. He is a seasoned real estate developer and has
delivered mega development projects of significant value. He previously co-founded and
was CEO for Range Developments, a luxury hospitality developer,that developed and
delivered luxury branded resort hotels in the Eastern Caribbean.

As the co-founder of Phoenix, Munaf’s contribution towards Phoenix has been invaluable -
he has established Phoenix as one of the leading players in the Blockchain and
Cryptocurrency arena with mining facilities spanning across UAE, US, Canada, Russia,
Europe and the Middle East. Phoenix is also developing one of the largest mining facilities
in the world, in the UAE with prominent strategic partners and carries exclusive distribution
rights for numerous technology hardware manufacturers (including WhatsMiner / MicroBT)
across Middle East, Africa and Turkey, which solidifies its position as a global player.

Executives

Ms. Farah Zafar
Group Chief Legal Officer — UK solicitor, Supreme Court England and Wales

Farah is a highly acclaimed Chief Legal Officer due to her 20 years’ experience in the Middle

East where she has been instrumental to the growth and success of prominent development
companies including Omniyat and Al Mazaya Holdings (Publicly listed - Dubai, Kuwait and
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Qatar) and has worked for the region’s most prominent leaders and visionaries which
include the Ruler of Dubai (H.H Sheikh Mohammed bin Rashed Al Maktoum) and H.R.H the
Crown Prince of Saudi Arabia.

Farah has been a C — level executive for the regions most prominent entities including
Omniyat, Dubai Holding and The Public Investment Fund of Saudi Arabia.

Farah has led government to government transactions for and on behalf of the Government
of Dubai, Government of Oman, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Emirate of Ajman and has
represented investment and quasi- government entities in the GCC region.

She is known for her strategic, commercial and execution ability, her ability to structure and
grow billion-dollar entities, motivate and lead strong teams and provide clear and focused
legal, strategic, corporate and investment support across all industry sectors.

She is also co-founder of a tech start-up, and is fiercely passionate about Tech, Web3 and
a decentralized future. She strongly believes and supports the UAE’s vision to be the global
leader in the startup eco-system, Web3, crypto and blockchain and is excited to contribute
to this space.

Previous awards include: 100 Most Influential People in Dubai (Arabian Business 2023)
Inspiring Female Business Leaders (Arabian Business 2022), Women of Influence in the
Arab World (CEO Middle East 2021), Future Leaders (Arabian Business Leadership Summit
2023), General Counsel of the Year (Middle East Legal Awards 2020), Woman of the Year
(Big Projects Middle East— 2019), Legal CEO of the Year (CEO Middle east 2019), General
Counsel of the year (Oath Middle East Legal Awards 2019).

Mr. Sheharyar Haider Malhi
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sheharyar Haider Malhi is a highly experienced professional with a global background
in strategic finance, accounting, audit, and business development. He has held senior C-
suite and Director level positions in Europe and the Middle East, showcasing his expertise
in these areas.

Previously, Mr. Malhi served as the Group Chief Financial Officer for Europe's largest hedge
fund platform, where he played a pivotal role in managing financial operations and driving
strategic initiatives. Additionally, he held a Director position at KPMG's Norwegian Head
office in Oslo, a prominent accounting giant.

Mr. Malhi's qualifications include being a qualified Chartered Accountant from both the Irish
and English Institutes. Furthermore, he is an alumnus of the prestigious London School of
Economics, further highlighting his commitment to continuous learning and professional
development.

Shares held in the Company, its Subsidiaries and affiliates by Board members and
Senior Management as at the date of this Prospectus

e Mr. Seyedmohammed Alizadehfard, Board Member and Group CEO, owns 14.93%
of the Shares in the Company as follows: (i) 6.29% directly; and (ii) 8.64% Shares
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through the following entities: Echo Holding Limited (3.6%), Horizon Holding Limited
(2.7%) and Vertex Holding Limited (2.34%).

e  Mr. Munaf Ali, Board Member and Group Managing Director owns 11.98% of the
Shares in the Company through Hyperion Holdings Ltd (4.22%), Hades Holdings Ltd
(3.99%) and Artemis Holdings Ltd (3.77%).

e Mr. Fady M Y Dahalan, Board Member, owns 49.44% of the Company through Agora
SPV Ltd.

Company’s Organization Chart
Please refer to Annex 4.

Employment positions of senior executives in the Company’s subsidiaries and other
public joint stock companies

The Company’s senior executives are also part of the executive management of the
Subsidiaries. The Company’s senior executives do not hold any employment positions in
other public joint stock companies.

Employment positions of members of the board of directors in the Company’s
subsidiaries and other public joint stock companies

The members of the Board of Directors of the Company do not hold any employment
positions in the Company’s subsidiaries or other public joint stock companies.

Conditions of eligibility, election, removal and proposed names of the Company’s
first Board formation

Board members will be elected by the Shareholders in a general meeting.

If a position becomes vacant during the term of the Board, then a replacement may be
appointed in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association. Any
such replacement shall serve the remaining term of the director who vacated her or his or
her position.

Director’s competencies and responsibilities:

The principal duties of the Board are to provide the Company’s strategic leadership, to
determine the fundamental management policies of the Company and to oversee the
performance of the Company’s business. The Board is the principal decision-making body
for all matters that are significant to the Company, whether in terms of their strategic,
financial or reputational implications. The Board has final authority to decide on all issues
save for those which are specifically reserved to the general meeting of Shareholders by
law or by the Company’s Articles of Association.

The key responsibilities of the Board include:

. determining the Company’s strategy, budget and structure;
. approving the fundamental policies of the Company;
. implementing and overseeing appropriate financial reporting procedures, risk

management policies and other internal and financial controls;

. proposing the issuance of new ordinary shares and any restructuring of the
Company;
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. appointing executive management;

. determining the remuneration policies of the Company and ensuring the
independence of Directors and that potential conflicts of interest are managed; and

o calling Shareholder meetings and ensuring appropriate communication with
Shareholders.

Board Committees

The Board has established two permanent committees — an Audit and Risk Committee and
a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (each of which will be subject to the
composition requirements of the Governance Rules). If the need should arise, and subject
to the Articles of Association, the Board may set up additional committees as appropriate.
In accordance with the Governance Rules, the Chairperson is not permitted to be a member
of either the Audit and Risk Committee or the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Set forth below are the membership of each of the committees of the Board as of the date of
the Listing of the Company. The mandate of each Committee shall be as shall be detailed in
the charters of such committees, as may be amended from time to time.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee of the Company is composed of the following members:

1. Ms Elham Algasim, as chairman of the committee;
2. Mr. Fady M.Y Dahalan, as member; and
3. Mr. Munaf Ali, as member.

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities relating
to financial reporting, external and internal audits and controls, including reviewing and
monitoring the integrity of our financial statements, reviewing and monitoring the extent of
the non-audit work undertaken by external auditors, advising on the appointment of external
auditors, overseeing the relationship with our external auditors, reviewing the effectiveness
of the external audit process, and reviewing the effectiveness of our internal control review
function. The ultimate responsibility for reviewing and approving the annual report and
accounts remains with the Board. The Audit and Risk Committee will give due consideration
to the applicable laws and regulations of the UAE, the ADGM, the SCA and the ADX.

The Audit and Risk Committee charter requires that the Audit and Risk Committee must
comprise at least two members who are Non-Executive Directors and at least two of its
members must be independent Directors. In addition, at least one member is required to
have practical audit and accounting experience. The Audit Committee will be chaired by one
of the independent members and will include other members elected by the Board members
from time to time. The Audit Committee will meet not less than four times per year.

The Audit and Risk Committee will take appropriate steps to ensure that the Company’s
external auditors are independent of the Company as required by applicable law. We have
obtained written confirmation from our auditors that they comply with guidelines on
independence issued by the relevant accountancy and auditing bodies.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is composed of the
following members:

1. Mr. Munaf Ali, as chairman of the committee;
2. Mr. Fady M.Y Dahalan, as member; and
3. Ms. Elham Algasim, as member.

64/169



The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in setting and overseeing
the nomination and remuneration policies in respect of the Board, any committees of the
Board and senior management. In such capacity, it is responsible for evaluating the hiring
of the Company’s executive management, evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience of the Board and committees of the Board and, in particular, monitoring the
independent status of the independent Directors. It is also responsible for periodically
reviewing the Board’s structure and identifying, where relevant, potential independent
candidates to be appointed as Directors or committee members as the need may arise. In
addition, and subject to the Articles, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists
the Board in determining its responsibilities in relation to remuneration, including making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy on executive remuneration, setting
the over-arching principles, parameters and governance framework of our remuneration
policy and determining the individual remuneration and benefits package of our senior
management.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee must be comprised of at least two
Non-Executive Directors, and at least two of the members must be independent, in each
case within the meaning of those terms in the Governance Rules. The chairperson of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee must be chosen from amongst the independent
committee members. The members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will be
appointed in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee will meet at least once a year, and otherwise from time to time based on the
Company’s requirements.

Articles of Association

The full text of the Articles of Association of the Company is annexed to the Prospectus.
Legal matters

The following is a summary of the legal matters that will apply to the Company following its
Listing. The legal matters listed below must be read in light of the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association (which are set out in Annex 2 of this Prospectus).
Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Regulations describe the rights
and obligations associated with the ownership of the Shares in detalil.

Attending General Meeting and voting rights

Each Shareholder shall have the right to attend the General Meeting and shall have a
number of votes equal to the number of their Shares.

Share register

Upon listing on the ADX, the Shares will be dematerialized and the share register will be
maintained by the ADX.

Financial information

A Shareholder is entitled to request a copy of the annual audited financial statements of
the Company.

Financial year

The financial year of the Company will start on the 1st of January and end on 31s of
December of each year.
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Dividends and liquidation proceeds

The Company shall pay dividends on Shares in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to the Company. Shareholders shall have the sole right to the
distributable profits due on those Shares. In the event of liquidation of the Company, each
Shareholder shall be entitled to a part of the Company’s assets in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and applicable law and regulation in the ADGM.

General Meeting

An annual general meeting shall be held in accordance with the Companies Regulations,
at such place or places (including electronic platforms), date and time as may be decided
by the Directors.

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, call a general meeting. The Directors are required
to call a general meeting once the Company has received requests from its Shareholders to
do so in accordance with the Companies Regulations. The Directors shall determine
whether a general meeting is to be held as a physical general meeting or an electronic
general meeting.

Notice of general meetings shall include all information required to be included under the
Companies Regulations and shall be given to all members of the Company.

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum is present at the
time when the meeting proceeds to business.

Liability of the Board

The members of the Board owe general duties to the Company in accordance with the
Companies Regulations (including exercising reasonable care, skill and diligence and
acting to promote the success of the Company). The Company may bring a claim against
any member of the Board in breach of its directors’ duties, with available remedies varying
depending on the severity of the breach but may include damages, injunctive relief and other
remedies.

Subject to the prior permission of the ADGM court, an eligible shareholder may
independently initiate proceedings against any member of the Board if the Company fails
to do so in respect of a cause of action arising from an actual or proposed act or omission
involving negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by that member of the Board.

So far as may be permitted by the Companies Regulations, every Director, officer, senior
manager or alternate director (or former director, officer, senior manager or alternate
director) of the Company or of an associated company (as contemplated by section 278 of
the Companies Regulations) may be indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any
liability incurred by them in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or
breach of trust by them or any other liability incurred by them in the execution of their duties,
the exercise of their powers or otherwise in connection with their duties, powers or offices.

Appointment of the Chairperson and the Powers of the Chairperson

H.E Tareq Abdulraheem Al Hosani, is the Chairman of the Company. The Chairman chairs
Board meetings. The Chairman further has the authority to call Board meetings.

Supervision and Regulation

The Company is a public company limited by shares incorporated in the ADGM. The ADGM
is a financial free zone within the meaning of UAE Federal Law No. 8 of 2004 (the “Financial
Free Zones Law”) and was established pursuant to UAE Federal Decree No. 15 of 2013.
As a company incorporated in the ADGM, and in accordance with the Financial Free Zones
Law, the Company is not subject to UAE federal civil and commercial laws. In particular,
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and without limitation, the Company is not subject to the provisions of the UAE Commercial
Companies Law nor a variety of other legislation which applies to companies incorporated
‘onshore’ in the UAE. Instead, the Company is governed by applicable laws and regulations
in the ADGM including the Companies Regulations.

In accordance with the ADGM legal framework applicable to public companies such as the
Company, its primary constitutional document is its Articles of Association. Apart from
various matters governed by the Companies Regulations and other ADGM legislation, the
principal corporate governance and disclosure and transparency rules applicable to the
Company are set out in the Companies Regulations, and in the Articles of Association and
related documents (such as charters, policies and procedures adopted by the Board of
Directors from time to time). See the section entitled “Mechanism for adopting a
governance system in the Company”. The ADGM Board of Directors and, in certain
circumstances, the ADGM Registration Authority has the power and authority to investigate
violations of the Companies Regulations, including if it appears to it that there are
circumstances suggesting that an ADGM company’s affairs are being or have been
conducted in a manner which is unfairly prejudicial to some part of its members, and in
certain cases to refer such violations to ADGM courts. Shareholders in ADGM companies
may also directly seek injunctions from ADGM courts against acts in violation of the
Companies Regulations or constitutional documents and can seek to recover damages for
such violations from ADGM companies and their directors.

Pursuant to the ADX listing rules, ADX has the authority to approve and supervise the
governance rules applicable to financial free zone companies such as the Company that
list securities on ADX.

The corporate governance regime applicable to the Company is different from that
applicable to entities incorporated under the UAE Commercial Companies Law and
regulated by the SCA. Investors should familiarise themselves with applicable ADGM laws
and regulations, and the Articles of Association annexed to the Prospectus. Investors should
also note that the corporate governance regime applicable to the Company is not regulated
or enforced by the SCA.

ADGM No Objection

The ADGM Registration Authority has issued a certificate of no objection to the Listing and
the Offering in accordance with Article (33) of SCA Decision No. (11) of 2016 concerning
the Regulation of Offering and Issuing Shares in Public Joint Stock Companies (as
amended by the SCA Decision No. 25/RM/2020)

Independent Auditors

Crowe Mak (Abu Dhabi) undertook the task of auditing the Company’s accounts for the
duration of the two years preceding the Offering.

Address: Office No. 3701, Floor 37, Addax — C1 Tower (Hydra Avenue), City of Lights, Al
Reem lIsland, PO Box 109460, Abu Dhabi, UAE

Details of any employee ownership scheme
The Company does not currently have any employee ownership scheme. The Company

intends to put in place an employee ownership scheme in the future in accordance with the
applicable rules and regulations.
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ANNEX 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORTS AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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sgrificant acoouning policias aed affee seplanaiony informalon

In cur gonian, he aciempanying combingd fnandal stalements prassn) faidy, in &ll matanal mapacs, the comiing:
financial postion of the Group as &l )7 Dacssker 1037 and e combned Snascial pereemance and @s combingd case
Mows for tha yoar then ended n @ccamdanca with the accounting polcies as disdosed in Nobe 3 o thess comibined
financial sLalsments

Basis for Opinion

Wie corohacied o gl in i] wailh I i | Siandands o Audrng (1848], Qur meponsDilties undar ihose
slandanss ars fufber depcrbed n P Auditer’s Reapansibliies for the Audil of B Combingd Fieanddal Siemants
sactan of ow repart We are ndeperdest of the Gradp 19 acdordants with (he requiramants of Fesmatianal Exhecs
Standards Bosd for Accocurtants Code of Ethice dor Professcral Accountants [IESEA cooe) togstner witn efical
rejuramants that are rilavand 0 cur audi of Tha comiingd financial siatemanis in B Unked Amab Emrales and we
have Aifiled cur oiner ethical resperabilifes in sccordants with fese eguinrsents and the [ESEA Code Wae beliave
that tha audil evdence we have oblaimed = sufliciert and appropriate % provde & basis far cur opinien.

Responsibilites of Managament and Those Charged with Governance for the Combined Financial Stetamasis

Management ia respamipe for (he preparalion and fer presanalion of iPese comBingd Teercial slaemanis @
accordance with IFRSs ard for such inlemal conlred as mansgsman! debermires (5 nacessary 1o srakle fe praparglics
of combirsd dnancial statemanls et oo nos from material missialement, whedher gue 2o fraud o emon.

In preparing the combined francial slaterents, marageman! i resporaible for ssapsaing the Group™s Bbilly 1o oefnue
as a going concesn, disclosing, &s applicable, matiers relaled to going concern and wsing the going concers basis of
acpounding unloss manageman! either imends %o Aquidaie the Growp of o cease operalions, of has no realistc
allemative 1 % 0o 52

Those charged with govemance are respomsible for pearsesing the Group's Tnandal reperiing procees,

Regiztrad &3 Cinen Mak with e Depsrimant of Economic Drevsdupment, Dot (9100627) as a Gl Comgpany
T L L L P e e e e
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Independent auditer's report (continued)

To ihe Sharehaldars of Phosnix Group
Rapart on the Audit of Combingd Fimanclal Safemenis (condlmnood)

Auditor's Responaibililies far ibe Audi of tha Combined Financial Stalamants

Gur objacias & to oblain reasonatle assurance about whother e financial stalemanls as o wheole are free from
matanal midalabareed, whielhar dus o error of lreud, Bnd 1o Bgue an audilers repon that includas our opinian,
Repsonable assurance & a high lewsi of ssurarce, bul is rot a guaranbee that &0 audil condicied in Beiordanss wilh
|54 wil akways datact a materal misslalemant when i axdsts. Misstatements can arise from fraud or amor and are
ponsicernd mabecial if, indiidusly or sggmgale, {5y could resicrsbdy be axpecied 1o inllaencs (he ecanomic geciions
of usars faken on the bases of these comibned Snancal siaiements.

Az part of an audil in actordends with |SAL we ndrsies professional judgemant and mairten profsasiongl phaplisen
Ihroughout the audil. We alsa:

s [dent#y and asssag the risks of majenal misatatameact of P combiresd Minancal slalemasts, whalhar dua 1o el o
emor, design and perlorm audil procecures responsne o thoes ieks, and ablain audi evcesce ffed i auficent and
pponeprake bo provde a basis for our opinion. The risk of not getecling a maleral misstatemend meuling from fraud is
higher ®han #or one rosuling dom eror, as faud may involve collusion, forgery. inmntonal cmissions,
migraprasaniaions, or tha cyvamice of inlarnal coninol.

+ Otlain an understanding of nternal contral relevant b the audt in orger lo design audil procedures that are
Rparcprighs in the chourmstancas, Bt nad Tor e purpese of exonessing an opinion on the efecivenass of the Group's
intarnal cantral,

» Evakians Il BDDICERAENASS of RLoounting polcas used and e reascnabienass of aocounting aslimanes and relaed
dischosures made by managamen.

» Conddude & Ihe approprialanass of managamant's wa of goikg Concam baks of accounting and, baged on the audi
avidencs gblaived, whathar 8 mabaral urcamainly ax@le mlaled o evenls o condifers thad may ool signlfican]
doubl on T Group's akbilty ks corlinue &2 8 going concem. N ae conclide that & maleral uncertainty axEle, wa are
required to draw attention in gur auditor's seport fo the related discdosums in the combined financal statements or, i
such disclgurss are nadecaade. 1o modity our opirlen. Our conclasions are based on the aed i eidence obianed up
lo the dale of ocur audRors repot. Howowar, future owams or conditiona may causs tho Gooup o cease ko conbnius as
B gATQ conoam,

+ Evaluate the owerall preseniation, structure and coddent of the combined fnancial sialemenis, induding the
diciosunes, and whather the financal slaemanis represenl T underdyng irarsactions and ewents in @ manner That
pekinves fair pretssialion

We communicate with Tiose changed with govemance regarding, among other maktiers, the planned scope and timing of
'."::'Eulﬁ‘! and agrafican audit Iedings, weluding amy signiicant deficiaedias n inbarmal aedrol Ihal we idently during our
L

Far. Crowe Mak

bﬂ'w ‘

Serior Parinar

Fagialraien Mumbar 535
Dubai, UAE
£ Uclnber Z0E3
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Phoenix Group

Dubai - United Arab Emirates

Combined statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022

ASSETS

Non-curfent assels

Fropérty, plant and equipment
Right-cf-use 3Essts
Iewnsimants M subsdianes
Invesimacs i assocates
Invesiments

Tetal non-current sssels
Current assats

Inangiohe asse%s

Invaniones

Trada and olher recalvatios
Due Yom related parties
Cash snd cash aguivalenis

Total curront assels

Total assots

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity and shamsholders' funds
Share captal

Aatained earnings

Shamholders’ coment account
Stalukry reseng

Raysuslion resenve

Foraign cummancy rans leson resere
Sharehokdecs’ kan sccount

Total equity

uUABLITIES

Non-current liabilites
Empioyess’ end-0l-48nds barsfils
Bank borowings

Total non-currant liabilities
Current babllities

Dua 1o related partias

Bark bomowings

Loasa labilties

Trads and other payables

Total current liabilities

Total lisbllities
Total equity and liabilitias

Notes

e W

"
2
3
e

15

16
17

2022 2621

usp usp
72,066,754 20,535,008
" 31,447

- 563,247
78,976,796 .
. 43iz7pea -
144,171,472 21,123,086
1,720,649 3841827
41,538,252 38,574 524
31,717,858 412432 382
10,208,806 2,282,348
442,871 204,260
45 628 232 458235 142
229,799,704 473358841
155.432 54835
84,901,143 48 590,707
8,893.943 50510228
13815 135615
11,380,058 -
126,384) 148,259)
4,015,995 3881470
109334703 101.2685388
147,355 8523
372,282 3EB4124
3,080,637 2852847
44,617,916 .
207,138 215838

5 22.000
71,771,223 3730626851
116,598,274 374,200 756
120,464,911 _ 3TE0A0 443
228,796,704 475,358 841

Thess combingd Anancial $tatsenents wine Approvesd and Buthorissd for ssus on 2 October 2023,

The combined fnanclal statemants 582 0ut 00 DAZRS 6 10 44, which Pave Lean peapared an Ihe going concarn basis ware
acpravad by the Sharetclkders on the date of thade comoired fnancis statements and sigred on beha¥ of the Group by

Cirector

[

P

P
Wr. Soysdmohammad

Allzagerfard

Diactor

Tha sccompanying notes and polcies form an ¥egrsl 0a of these combived finarcial statomants

The copon of the audlor & 480 ol O pages 4 10 5
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Phoenix Group

Dubai - United Araly Emirates
Combinad statemant of profit or loss and othar comprahensive income for the yaar
ended 31 Docomber 2022

Malas 2032 263
usn uan
Bswvarua b TEE 448 428 178,512,003
Dirmct axpiniss 4 (884 431 408 (115 387 &35)
Gross profit 17 BiR0e 53,124 508
Saling and digriksrion sxpenped 5 [Ta3,0E0) (570,551}
Ganeral and adminsirates spardes I {28,803, 08E) (17471, 1038
Qthar ncams 4 2ATE 208 1.877.874
Less an francial assets at fair salue throwgh profif or loss i1 12,941 548 3, 125,483)
Fires oos i) 11,102,918 (1,253 BA3]|
ot prafit for the pear 136 803,206 432 383,432
Othar compraharshea incoma
Gainon ravaluaton of proparty, oiant ard Squipment Y 11, XB0,058 -
Homs that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or Ioes:
Excrange difarences on Iraralalion of fareign oparations 19,BA5 |48, 28
Other comprichonsiee incompl|ioes] kar the yeas 11,580,024 |45 759
Tetal compranardive incoma far tha yaar 150,303,160 42,338,171

Trez accompanying notes and polces farm an mtegral par of these comored dnancial stalamands.
Thes sapait of the Skl i S8l sl o pEped d 85 5
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Phoenix Group

Dubal - United Arab Emirates

Combined statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 203E

Cagh Mows from oparating activities

Profit for the year

Adjusanis for:

Depmciation of proparty, nlank and sgupment
Finanos cosl

Employess’ and-al-sardcs bersdls

Mowariant in alowance far waluation of imgainmant of invemanes

Dapreciaton of right of use of assety

Imveaimant wrillan off

Lo=a gn digg<sal ol property, plant and equipmant
Almsance for doubtful dabis

Inienest Rxpenses on leae lsbiifas

Motz

]
23
AL
26
26
2B
2B
Fi

Oparaling cash fiows belon changss i cparating assets and kabilites

Decréssaiincaase) in imeniores

Increase i dus drgm relkaied parlies
Cacreasaiincrease) in trads s oThel recaivabias
Ircradaa indua (o relaied paries
(Decreass|inireaie in Irade and othar Pﬂﬁ'ﬂhh!
Drscreasedncrease) in inlang e 558t

Cash genorated fromd|used in) operating activities
Imeresl ppe
Wil cash gansratod fromi{used in} oparating astivitias

Cash flowe from invesling actlvibes
Purchase of property, plant and equipirent
InyEdimants in aEsooabes

Het inveatment in kafg e unquoled shares
Imvasimand in suDsidan

Maf cash wused In imvesting acthdisg

Caah Mows fram financing activities

Proceeds fom ahans capital
{Repaymetiiracesds Fom Dank Dormow ngs
Doyidersd padd to shambadldars of tha Group

Mt movement in shaeholdan’ cumen apcount

hal movermant in shareholdem' laan BeEEw]

Ml i ver ] in foneign cumancy rans |ston resere
Repaymen of lease Eabillias

Mat cash |used irpgenerstod fram financing activibes

Mt dacraase Incash and cash aguivalanis
Cash ard cash eqivalkenss at the beginning ol 1ha year
Cash and cash oguivalonts ot the ard of thi yaar

1
13
12
13
22
12

24

i kD iR

15
20

16
18

Fal

14

1033
uso

138,803,238

1,437,182
102218
118832
(12,086,048)
B A44E

S83.147
1,103,877
1,366,016

152,540,318

0,202,318
(TB16ABE)
370,348,712
44,817,118
(302,191 638}
_ 2,030,578

267,7H, 148
(1,102,848
256,628,330

142,685 453
|28,978, 735}
143,137 423}

1174, T84 17T

100,798
(171,642}
[100,682,000)
(21,8165, 208)
174,525
19865

1143,385,54.2)

[559,.359]
054,260

442 871

Thi accompanying noles ard palisias faem an inlegral part ol thews combinad financial staiemanis.

Tha regsr of the audior s sel gul 60 pages 4 1o B,
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UED

43383452

203 5E2
1,251,283
8,523
12,088,046
31,553

2,550

57,786, 599
(A, B08, Taa)
4,054 458
(987,351 Baay
1. ¥ 8T
351 ER 140

3,844 B2T)
(8 708,040
_[12m72am
(3, 950, 503)

(18,508,521}

) {653.247]
| 18,085, T64)

100
4 100 053

24 711 B
3,541,470
(452550
(24,118}

52,074,116

(B45,955)
1,940,215
904 250



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE NINE MONTHS PERIOD
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 (UNAUDITED)

Crowe Mak
Crowe e
Office No. 3701, Floor 37,
Addax - C1 Tower (Hydra Avenue)
City of Lights, Al Reem Island
P O Box 109460,
Abu Dhabi, UAE
Main +971 2 678 1130
abudhabi@crowe.ae
www.crowe.ae

Ref: MK/C2980R/OCT'2023

Independent auditor's report on review of condensed consolidated interim financial statements

To,

The Shareholders

Phoenix Group PLC (formerly known as Phoenix Group Ltd) and its subsidiaries
Abu Dhabi Global Market

Abu Dhabi - United Arab Emirates

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed consolidated interim financial statements of Phoenix Group
PLC (formerly known as Phoenix Group Ltd) ("Parent Company") and its subsidiaries, Abu Dhabi Global
Market, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates (herein collectively referred to as the "Group") which comprise the
condensed consolidated interim statement of financial position as at September 30, 2023 and the condensed
consolidated interim statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, condensed consolidated
interim statement of changes in equity and condensed consolidated interim statement of cash flows for the nine
months period then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this interim financial information in
accordance with IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting ("IAS 34"). Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on
this condensed consolidated interim financial information based on our review.

Scope of review

We conducted our review in accordance with the International Standard on Review Engagements 2410 Review
of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity. A review of condensed
consolidated interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially
less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
condensed consolidated interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting ("IAS 34").

For, Crowe Mak

K- Moy
Khalid Mehmood Chzml(—'

Senior Partner
Registration Number 635
Abu Dhabi, U.A.E.

October 8, 2023

2

Registered with the Department of Economic Development, Abu Dhabi (CN-1046241) as a branch of Dubai Firm
o3 AS s 0 £5i S (V- E1TE) -5 ) u_,_Bg_.,i o dlai 8% diaia 15,5l gadd Lol
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Phoenix Group PLC (formerly known as Phoenix Group Ltd) and its subsidiaries

Abu Dhabi Global Market
Abu Dhabi - United Arab Emirates

Condensed consolidated interim statement of financial position as at September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)

In United States Dollar

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investments

Investment in associates
Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Intangible assets

Due from related parties

Inventories

Trade receivables

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Revaluation surplus

Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings

Shareholders' loan account
Shareholders' current account
Total equity attributable to owners of Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

Employees' end of service benefits
Total non-current liabilities

76/169

Notes

@ N

10

12
13

14
15

16
17

18
19

September 30, December 31,
2023 2022
(Unaudited) (Audited)
94,174,855 72,066,754
739,102 -
43,215,577 43,127,923
28,946,795 28,976,795
9,712 -
167,086,041 144,171,472
76,578,060 1,720,649
4,081,316 10,208,805
81,050,793 41,538,252
31,144,676 1,504,356
32,641,889 30,213,299
1,511,173 442 871
227,007,907 85,628,232
394,093,948 229,799,704

p— L IRCATE R e

140,000,000 155,432
13,615 13,615
11,380,059 11,380,059
(110,632) (25.,394)
73,777,257 84,901,143
49,272,348 4,015,995
4,195,066 8,893,043
278,527,713 109,334,793
19,819 -
278,547 532 109,334,793
518,769 -
3,599,643 3,721,282
256,016 147,355
4,374,428 3,868,637




Phoenix Group PLC (formerly known as Phoenix Group Ltd) and its subsidiaries

Abu Dhabi Global Market

Abu Dhabi - United Arab Emirates

Condensed consolidated interim statement of financial position as at September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)

In United States Dollar

September 30, December 31,

hotes 2023 2022

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 5 101,176 -
Due to related parties 9 44,665,457 44,617,916
Bank borrowings 18 162,022 207,135
Trade and other payables 20 66,243,333 71,771,223
Total current liabilities 111,171,988 116,596,274
Total liabilities 115,546,416 120,464,911
Total equity and liabilities 394,093,948 229,799,704

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements.

The report of the auditor is set out on page 2.

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements on pages 3-26 were approved on October 8, 2023
and signed on behalf of the Group, by:

/

Mr. S{edmohammad Alizadehfard
Director
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Phoenix Group PLC (formerly known as Phoenix Group Ltd) and its subsidiaries

Abu Dhabi Global Market

Abu Dhabi - United Arab Emirates

Condensed consolidated interim statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the nine months period ended September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)

In United States Dollar

Revenue

Direct cost

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Gain / (loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss
Net profit for the period / year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

ltems that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the period / year

Total comprehensive income for the period / year

Net profit attributable to:

Equity owners of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity owners of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

For the nine For the vear
months period Y
ended D endbed 31
September 30, scember 21,
Notes 2023 2022
(Unaudited) (Audited)
21 229,545,579 755,449,429
22 (153,443,703) (584,431,409)
76,101,876 171,018,020
23 10,160,418 2,475,238
24 (263,272) (743,089)
25 (17,084,442) (29,802,066)
26 (245,869) (1,102,918)
27 75,763,919 (2,941,948)
144,432,630 138,903,236
- 11,380,059
(85,238) 19,865
(85,238) 11,399,924
144,347,392 150,303,160
144,432,811 -
(181) -
144,432,630 138,903,236
144,347,573 -
(181) -
144,347,392 150,303,160

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements.

The report of the auditor is set out on page 2.

o
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Phoenix Group PLC (formerly known as Phoenix Group Ltd) and its subsidiaries
AbuDhabi Global Market
Ao Dhabi - United Arab Emirates
Condensed consolidated Interim statement of changes in equity
For the nine manths period ended September 30, 2023 {Unaudited)
In United States Dollar
Foreign
’ Statutory  Revaluation CIIFI'EI?C! Rened  Shashagey oS N )
Share capital . . cument controlling ~ Total equity
reserve surplus translation eamings loan account K
e account interests

Balance as al December 31, 2021 (audted) 34636 13615 . (45,258) 46,590,707 341470 0810228 101,265,398
Profit for the year - - - . 138,903 236 138,903, 136
Other comprehensive income for the year - 11,380,058 10,865 - 11,309 824
Issue of share captal 100,796 - - - 100,79
Dividends ; 100,592.800) . . {100,392.800)
Nef movements - - - - - 174525 (41,916,265) 41,741 761)
Balznce as at December 31, 2022 (audted) 15543 13615 11,380,059 (25,394) 84901143 4015995 8833543 108,334 793
Elimingfion on aocaunt of consolidation (118,202) - - - - - - - (18.202)
Proftf {lss} for the period . . 4432811 (181) 14432630
Other comprehensive loss for the pesiod - (85.238) - - - {85,238)
Isste of share capital 40,000 - - {40,000) -
Transer from relained eamings to share capil 139,950,000 {139,930,000) - -
Dividends : (13000000) 13000000 :
On accaunt of iquidation (27.230) (2,606,697 - 26080 - -
Net movements - - - - - 32,256,353 [T.292804) 20000 24,903 548
Balance as at September 30, 2023 {unaudited) 140,000,000 13615 11,380,058 [10832) TSI 484 4195066 1949 TeMIER

The acoompanying notes form an inteqral part of hese condensed consalideted interim Fnancial stafements.

The repor of the audtor is set out on page 2

79/169



c

Phoenix Group PLC (formerly known as Phoenix Group Ltd) and its subsidiaries
Abu Dhabi Global Market
Abu Dhabi - United Arab Emirates

Condensed consolidated interim statement of cash flows
For the nine months period ended September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)
In United States Dollar

For the nine
months period
ended September

For the year
ended
December 31,

30,
2023 2022
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the period / year 144,432,630 138,903,236
Adjustments for:
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 1,103,977
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 536,638 1,437,792
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 14,655 9,446
Allowance for doubtful debt - 1,366,016
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts (1,366,016) -
Impairment on investment in associate 1,307,458 -
Investment written off - 553,147
Net mo\{ement in allowance for valuation of impairment of ) (12,066,046)
inventories
Amortization of intangible assets 1,214 -
Interest on lease liabilities 2,335 -
Finance costs 243,534 1,102,918
Provision for employees' end of service benefits 108,661 138,832
145,281,109 132,549,318
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Inventories (39,512,541) 9,202,318
Trade and other receivables (30,702,894) 379,348,712
Due from related parties 6,127,489 (7,916,456)
Intangible assets (74,857,411) 2,120,978
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (5,527,890) (302,191,638)
Due to related parties 47,541 44,617,916
Cash generated from operations 855,403 257,731,148
Finance costs paid (243,534) (1,102,818)
Net cash generated from operating activities 611,869 256,628,330
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets (10,926) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of interest in associates - (28,976,795)
Advance to an associate (1,277,458) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (22,644,739) (42,689,459)
Net investment in long term unquoted shares (87,654) (43,127,923)
Net cash (used in) investing activities (24,020,777) (114,794 ,177)
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Phoenix Group PLC (formerly known as Phoenix Group Ltd) and its subsidiaries

Abu Dhabi Global Market
Abu Dhabi - United Arab Emirates

Condensed consolidated interim statement of cash flows

For the nine months period ended September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)

In United States Dollar

Cash flows from financing activities

Net movement in share capital

Dividend paid

Net movement in foreign currency translation reserve
Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of lease liabilities

Net movement in non-controlling interests

Net movement in shareholders' loan account

Net movement in shareholders' current account

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period / year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period / year

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
Cash at bank

For the nine
months period

For the year

ended Saeuptember Dec::’;:r -
2023 2022
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(118,202) 100,796
. {100,592,800)
(85,238) 19,865
(166,752) (171,642)
(136,147) -
20,000 -
32,256,353 174,525
(7,292,804) (41,916,286)
24,477,210 (142,385,542)
1,068,302 (551,389)
442,871 994,260
1,511,173 442 871
68,675 39,387
1,442,498 403,484
1,511,173 242 871

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial

statements.
The report of the auditor is set out on page 2.
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i Electronics Trading LLC
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Crowe
Hhla g8
Level 21, The Prism
Business Bay, Sheikh Zayed Road
P O Box 6747, Dubai, UAE
T: 4971 4 447 3951
uae@crowe.ae
www.crowe.ae

Ref: MK/A2975/MAY 2023
Independent auditor’'s report

To

The Shareholders

Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C
P.O. Box: 450341

Dubal, United Arab Emirates

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C (the Entity), Dubai,
United Arab Emirates, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in ali material respects, the financial position of the
Entity as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year/period then ended in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the requirements of international Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA code) together with ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matter

The financial statements of the Entity for the year ended 31 December 2020 which are shown as comparatives, were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 7 July 2021.

Responsibilities of M

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

t and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity's ability to continue as a gaing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial reporting process.
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the Shareholders of Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's
internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
svidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. Hawever, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the Shareholders of Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, we report that;
(a) We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purpose of our audft,

(b) The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material aspects, with the applicable provisions of
the UAE Federal Law No, 32 of 2021, and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Entity,

(c) The Entity maintained proper books of accaunt,

(d) The financial information included in the Directors' report is consistent with the books of accounts of the Entity,
(&) The Entity has not made any investment in shares and stocks during the year ended 31 December 2021,

(f) Note 10 to the financial statements reflects the disclosures relating to material related party transactions and the
terms under which they were condlicted.

(9) Based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes us
to believe that the Entity has contravened during the year ended 31 December 2021 any of the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, or its Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Entity
which would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2021.

For, Crowe Mak

ik
Kh(al<id Mehmood an

Senior Partner
Registration Number 635
Dubai, UAE

23 May 2023
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Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C

Dubal - United Arab Emirates
Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020
usp usp

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 18,163,242 12,506
Total non-current assets 19,163,242 12,506
Current assets
Intangible assets 7 3,041,627 .
Inventories 8 36,108,137 2,131,786
Trade and other receivables ] 410,959,692 25,041,583
Due from related parties 10 2,062,022 35,293
Cash and cash equivalents 1 833,943 1,940,215
Total current assets 464,695,321 29,148,877
Total assets 472,058,663 29,161,383
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 12 27,228 27229
Statutory reserve 13 13,616 13,615
Retained earnings 43,388,367 3,339,230
Shareholders' current account 14 47,727,918 3,452,588
Shareholders' loan account 15 3,841,470 -
Total equity 94,998,689 6,832,662
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabllities
Bank borrowings 16 3,884,124
Employees' end-of-service benefits 17 19,003
Total non-current liabilities 3,903,217
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 372,568,719 22,328 721
Due to 8 related party 10 1,187,761 -
Bank borrowings 16 200,287 -
Total current liabllities 373,956,767 22,328,721
Total liabilities 77,869,974 22,328,721
Total equity and liabilities 472,868,663 29,161,383

These statutory financial statements were approved and autharised for issue on 23 May 2023.

The financial statements set out on pages 710 37, which have been prepared on the going concem basis were
approved by the Directors on the date of these financial statements and signed cn behalf of the Entity by
r, Seyedmohammad

Mr, Mypa Al M
Alizadehfard

Director Director

=

The accompanying notes and policies form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the auditor is set out on pages 410 6.
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Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C

Dubai - United Arab Emirates
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31

December 2021 -
Notes 2021 18 June 2020 to
31 December
2020
usp usD
Revenue 19 141,413,367 10,466,822
Cost of sales 20 (83,502,324) _(6,549,310)
Gross profit 57,911,043 3,917,512
Other income 21 1,678,420 -
Selling and distribution expenses 22 (500,562) (64,781)
General and administrative expenses 23 (14,664,988) (499,886)
(Loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 25 (3,123,493) -
Finance cost 24 _(1,251,283) : S
Total comprehensive income for the year/period 40,049,127 3,352,845

The accompanying notes and policies form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the auditor is set out on pages 4 to 6.
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Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C

Dubai - United Arab Emirates
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 18 June 2020 to
31 December
2020
usb usb
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year/period 40,049,127 3,352,845
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6 14,817 953
Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories 8 12,066,046 -
Finance cost 24 1,251,293
Employees' end-of-service benefits 17 19,093
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 63,400,376 3,353,798
Increase in inventories 8 (46,132,397) (2,131,766)
Increase in due from related parties 10 (2,826,729) (35,293)
Increase in trade and other receivables 9 (385,918,009) (25,041,563)
Increase in due to related parties 10 1,187,751 -
Increase in trade and other payables 18 350,239,998 22,328,721
Increase in intangible assets 9 382y -
Cash used in operating activities (33,890,637) (1,526,143)
Interest paid 24 (1,251,293)
Net cash used in operating activities (35,141,930) (1,526,143)
Cash flows from investing activities = -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6 (18,165,553) (13,459)
Net cash used in investing activities (18,165,553) (13,459)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of share capital . 27,229
Net movement in shareholders' current account 14 44,275,330 3,452,588
Net movement in shareholders' loan account 15 3,841,470 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings 16 4,084 411 ) i
Net cash generated from financing activities 52,201,211 3,479,817
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,106,272) 1,940,215
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period 1,940,215 - )
1,940,215

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period " 833,943

The accompanying notes and policies form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the auditor is set out on pages 4 to 6.
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Financial Reports and Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 of Phoenix World
Electronics Trading LLC

Crowe Crowe ik
GlagyS
Level 21, The Prism
Business Bay, Sheikh Zayed Road
P O Box 6747, Dubai, UAE
T: +971 4 447 3951
uae@crowe.ae

www.crowe.ae

Ref: MK/A2975/MAY 2023

Independent auditor's report
To
The Shareholders
Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C
P.O. Box: 450341
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C (the Entity), Dubai,
United Arab Emirates, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial including a ry of sig ing policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Entity as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

with the i Financial Reporting (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We our audit in with i on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are i of the Entity in with the i of Ethics Board for

Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA code) together with ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates and we have fulfilled our other ethical

ibilities in with these i and the IESBA Code. We beligve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

is ible for the p ion and fair pi ion of these financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In ing the financial is ible for the Entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Those charged with are ible for ing the Entity's financial reporting process.
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the Shareholders of Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C
Report on the Audit of Fi ial S 1ts (continued)

Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's
internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the Shareholders of Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C
Report on the Audit of Fi lal S (continued)

( )

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, we report that:
(a) We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit,

(b) The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material aspects, with the applicable provisions of
the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Entity,

(c) The Entity maintained proper books of account,

(d) The financial information included in the Directors' report is consistent with the books of accounts of the Entity,

(e) Investment in shares are included in Note 6, and include purchases and investments made by the Entity during the
year ended December 31, 2022,

(f) Note 10 to the financial statements reflects the disclosures relating to material related party transactions and the
terms under which they were conducted, and

(g) Based on the information that has been mads available to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes us
to believe that the Entity has contravened during the year ended 31 December 2022 any of the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, or its Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Entity
which would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2022,

For, Crowe Mak

K. Mabyn

Khalid Mehmood Chayetiry '
Senior Partner

Registration Number 635

Dubai, UAE.

30 May 2023
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Phoentx World Electronics Trading LL.C

Dubai - United Arab Emirates
Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022

Nows w22 02
usD ued

AGLETG
NONCureot assats
Prapay, SR 07 ooy prent o 74,283 238 1103243
Insmstimmes @ associales 8 18,944,755 3
Tolal nor cure: sseats 140,193,200 R0y 282
Current exsels
Imang o aseen T 1725073 3841027
Irveniories 2] 40425 7¢8% #8837
Trade and omer recei«bios '] 18,221 338 440,859 582
Ous Yem raand panias 50 13,333, 624 2.Be2022
Cush and canh sy vanrs " 2y ems B33 943
Total curant askeis 1508680 454685 321
1063) ALemce B2 104.830 AR U303
EQUITY AND LARILITIES
Equiy
Enare capral 12 2218 3T
LCTE N B 14,330,089 .
Sakiney seannn 13 13815 1385%
Fartan e marige 5,214 40 «3168 357
Sharshoidens' oareet soooen| 14 5,ME6383 TV
Shanhoders’ kan asseun 12 4,008 209 3881470
Total aquiy 04837912 MopEsan
LABILITES
Now .« wmant Tab fifles
Bark oenoweps = arnane 388412a
Envpopes’ aniclsanvon darels 17 _ssast 3523
Total nos-cumant kab itise N AT 5802 837
Cosron! laites
D% 10 N0 pathes 1o Hmaam 1,187,754
ok bormrwirgs 16 "2 300,257
Trado ard cire! iy e 12 53,704 214 YRATI2NE
Total ¢ wvord llakibtles 75,761 145 373867327
Tola' Hatiilies 72,667 §18 37 850974
Yot equity snd Fandities _1aese%d 0 428585

TIeEe SEALXY 4300 051 $300M 05 WD 35p10u0 Brd suascnems jor noeman 30 May J023

The Srnesciel stslemasts sof cul on papee 7 o &0, which have Sesn pwgalad on Fa SONS ctnters Gl W
220008 d by e Diroie s o 170 050 01 1hoss Irancal siaements 27x comd an DRhal o the By by

Wy =

z Nr. Soyesmohammad
Divecor Sreser

THE BCCOMDATYINg Fonos 8nd Do) 80e S an PGS st af (hses Moo nclad siatamenis,
The mago 1 al the auoior bs ssl o sa pager 4 (o B

92/169



—————

Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C

Dubai - United Arab Emirates
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31

December 2022 -
Notes 2022 2021
usD usb
Revenue 19 720,989,622 141,413,367
Cost of sales 20 (657,211,662) (83,502,324)
Gross profit 163,777,960 57,911,043
Other income 21 2,468,892 1,678,420
Selling and distribution expenses 22 (742,229) (500,562)
General and administrative expenses 23 (22,351,256) (14,664,988)
Loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 25 (1,631,5645) (3,123,493)
Finance cost 24 (1,102,918) (1,251,293)
Net profit for the year 140,418,904 40,049,127
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 11,380,059 -
Total comprehensive income for the year "~ 151,798,963 40,049,127

The accompanying notes and policies form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the auditor is set out on pages 4 to 6.
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Phoenix World Electronics Trading L.L.C

Dubai - United Arab Emirates
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes 2022 2021
usp uso

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 140,418,904 40,048,127
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5 506,973 14,817
Finance cost 24 1,102,918 1,251,293
Employees’ end-of-service benefits 17 76,768 19,093
Movement in allowance for valuation of impairment of inventories 8 (12,066,046) 12,086,048
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 130,039,617 53,400,376
Decreasel/(increase) in inventories 8 7,827,418 (46,132,397)
Increase in due from related parties 10 (10,501,602) (2,862,022)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 9 384,736,267 (385,882,716)
Increase in due to related parties 10 13,726,538 1,187,751
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables 18 (313,875,075) 350,239,998
Decrease/(increase) in intangible assets 9 2,121,554 (3,841,627)
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 214,074,607 (33,890,637)
Interest paid 24 (1,102,918)  (1,251,203)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 212,971,689 (35,141,830)
Cash flows from investing activities T
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (42,216,107) (18,165,553)
Investments in associates ] (28,946,795) -
Net cash used in investing activities (71,162,802) (18,165,553)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid to shareholders of the Entity (100,592,800) -
Net movement in shareholders' current account 14 (41,781,565) 44,275,330
Net movement in shareholders' loan account 15 174,525 3,841,470
{Repayments)/proceeds from bank berrowings 16 _{=200,287) 4,084,411
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (142,400,127) 52,201,211
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (591,340) (1,106,272)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 833,943 1,940,215
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11 242,603 833,843

The accompanying notes and pelicies form an integral part of these financial statements.
The repart of the auditor is set out on pages 4 to 6.
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BART 1

INTERPRETATION AND LIMITATION OF
LIABILITY

1. Dafined tarms

In the articles, uniess the conbext requires olherwise—

“alternata’ or “alternate director has the meaning
ghean in articla 24,

“appointor’ has the maaning given in arice 24,

“articles” means the compamy's afides of
‘Bssacialion,

“bankruptey” includes  ndmdual  insokency
proceedings in any jurisdiction,

“call” has the mearng gwen in arlicke 52,
“call notice” has the maaning given in article 52,

“cartificate” means & paper certificale evidencing a
pearson’'s Ltk W0 specified shares or gther secunbes,

“certificated” in relation io a share, means that it is not
an ucarilicated share,

“chairman® has the meaning given in arlichs 11,

“chairman of the meating™ has the meaning given in
article 30,

‘Companies Regulations™ means the Gompanies
Reguiations F130 (as amanded),
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“company’s lien” kas the meaning ghven in ariche 50,

“director” means a director of the company, and
inchudes any persan oocupying the position of direcior,
bry whatewer name called,

“distribution recipient” has the meaning given in
article 70,

“document” includes, unless olherwise specfied, any
dacument send or supplied in eactronc form,

“alectronic form” has lhe meaning given in section
1023 of the Comgpanies Regulations,

“Tully paid” in relation 1o a share, means thas the issus
price ko be paid to the company in respect of that sharne
have bean pald bo the company,

“hard copy form” has the meaning given in section
1023 of the Companies Regulations,

“hebdar in relation lo shares maans the person whase
rame is entared in the register of members as the
haldar of the shares,

“instrwment” means a documant in hard copy form,

“lien enforcement notice” has the meaning given in
article &1,

“rember” kas the maaning givanin section 197 of tha
Comparves Regulations,

"ordinary resolution” has the meaning gien in
sachion 298 of the Companies Regulations,

“paid” means paid or credited s pald,

“participate”, in relation o a directors’ mesting, has
the meaning given in article 9,

“partly paid” in relation ta a share means that part of
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“proxy notice” has the meaning given in articie 37,

“sacurities smal” has the maaning gian in article 48,

“shares” means shares in tha company,

“special resolution” has the meaning given in seslion
#8 of the Companias Regulatians,

“subsidiary” has the meaning given in section 1015
of tha Comparies Regutations,

“transmittes” means 3 parson enlitled Lo & share by
reasan of the desth or bankruploy of 2 shareholder or
olrerwise by aperation of law,

“uncartificated” in relation 1o & share means thal, by
virlea of lagistation [alher han seclion 718 of the
Companies Regulations) permiting e o shares o
be ewidenced and Iransferred wilthout a certdicate, tke
o 1hal share is evidenced and may be transterred
without a certficate, and

“writing” means the reprasantation or reprad uetion of
wards, symbale of ofhar nfarmation in a visible form
by ary methad o combination of methods, whether
sani or supplied in alectronic form of othenvise.

Linlegs the cordext olherwise reguinas, othar werds or
Expresssians containad in these anlickes bear the same
meaning as in fhe Companies Regulations as in force
on the dabe whan these ariicles become binding on the
COMPAny.

2, Liability of members

The liability of the members is limited to the amount, #
any, unpaid on the shares beld by tham,
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5.2

DIRECTORS" POWERS AND
RESPOMNSIBILITIES

Directors’ genaral authority

The directars are resparsile for the managemenl of
tha company's busness, for which purpose they My
exarcise all the powers of the company.

Mambers' reserve power

The membears may, by spacial resoiution, direct
the direchars to fake, or refren from taking,
specified aclion,

Mo sich apacial resolution irealidates anything
which Ihe directors have done bedore the
passing af the resclution,

Directors may delegate
Thea directors may delegaie any af the powers
which are confered on them under the
arliclea—

(8} o =uch persan ar commitien,

(b} by such means (inchiding by pawer of
altamney),

e} tosuch an axlent,

{d)  in redalion b such matbers or termbaries,
and

(e} onswch iems and conditions,

&5 thay think fil,

If the direcion 8o specily, any such delegation
may auvihorize furlher delegation of the
direciors’ powers by any persan to whom they
are delegated.
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6.1  Commétess towhich he difectars delegate any
af thair powers musl Sollow procedures which
arg based, as far as ihey are applicable, on
fnose provisions aof the aricles which govemn
thi taking of decisions by direchars,

62  The directors may make rules af procedure for
all ar ary commitiess, which prevail aver rules
dervad from the adickes il they are nal
consistant with tham.

DECISION-MAKING BY DIRECTORS

T. Directors to take decisions collectively

7.1 Decisions of the direciars may be laken—

(a) atadrectors’ maeting, o

{B) in the form of a direciors’ aritben
rasohition.

. Calling a direciors' meeting

B Any direcior may call a directors’ meating

82  Tha company sacretary musl call a direciors'
maating if & director so requests.

8.3 Adireciors’ meating ia called by giving notice of
the meating 1o ihe directars.

B4  MNotice of any directors' mesling must
Indicate—

[a)  its proposed dale and e,
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fcl i il i antcipated thal direclors
participaling in he maeting will nat ba in
e same place, how it is proposed that
ey shoukd communicade with each
olter during the masting,

Notios of a direciors’ meeting must be given bo
rach direcior, bul nead nal Be in wriling.

Nobice of a directors' maeting need nol be given
o dreciors who wake theif enlifement ba
notice of that maeting, by giving notice 1o thal
effgct o the company not more than 7 days
after the date on which the meeting is heid,
‘Where such nolice is given after the mesting
has bean kald, thal does not affect the validity
of the mesting. or of any business conducied &t
it

Participation in directors’ meetings

Diractors participabe in a directors’ meeting, or
part of a dirsclons” mesting, when—

{a) tha meeting has been called and lakes
placs in accordance with the articles, and

(b)  they can each communicate to fhe athers
any nfanmalian ar cpinions they have on
amy particular ilemn of the business of tha
meeting.

In  determining  whether  directors  arm
participating in & direclors’ meeting, it s
Frelavanl where any director is or how they
communicate with each abher

i all the directors participating in a meseting are
not in the sama place, they may decide thal the
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Quorum for diractors” mestings

Al a direciors’ mestng, unless a guaum is
participating, no propesal i o be valed o,
excepd & proposal 1o call anolher mesting.

For he purposes of this arlicle, & quorum shall
exisl al any board meeting if a simole megority
of the dirsclors are present al the mealing or
are represanied by an allernate direchor.

A directors’ meeling may fake place, # it s
called in sccordance with the articas,

Chalring directors’ mestings

The directars may elect or replace a chairman
fram fime fo tima. The chairman shall be ane of
e direcions and shall chair board meelings

The direclors may elect or replace a deputy
chairman from fime to time. The deputy
chairman shal char directors” meatings in the
chairman’s absenca,

The diresiors may ierminate tha appoinbmeant of
the chairman, or deputy chairman &t any lime.

I neither the chaiman nor hisfher depuly is
partcipating in & meating wilhin ken minubes of
the tima at which it was ta starl, the parlicipating
directors mus! appaind one of themselves. io
chair it

Voting at directors” mestings: genaral rules

A desisian is taken at & drecions’ meeting by a
majority of the voles of e participating
direchars,
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13,

Each dreclor panicipating m a  drectors'
meating has one vole,

If & drector has an interest in an actual or
proposed wansaction or arrangement with the
company—

that director and that director's alternale
may nat vote on any proposal relating to
It, out

(@)

(b) ths does not preciude the alternate from
voting n relation 1o thal transaction or
arrangement on beha¥ of another
appointor who does not have such an

ntevest.

No Chairman's casting vote at directors'
meetings

If the numbers of votes for and aganst a proposal are
equal, the chairman or other dreclor chairing the
meeting shall not have & casling vote.

14.

Alternates voting at directors’ meetings

A direclor who is also an altermnate director has an
addiwonal vote on behalf of each appoinior who is—

16

151

(@) not participating in & directors’ meeling,
and

()  would have been entitled to vole # they
wera participating in it.
Confiicts of interest

i a drectors’ meeting, or part of a directors’
meeting, is concerned with an actual or
proposed transaction or arrangement with the
company in which a director is interested, that
director i nol lo be counted as participating In
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15.2 Bul ¥ paragraph (3) applies, a dirgctor wha ig
imeresied in an aclual or proposed transection
or arrangemant with the compary is © ba
courled @s participating in a decsion at a
direclors’ mealing, or part of a direciors’
mealing, refating to it for quorem and voting
purposes.

183  This paragraph applies whern—

{a) the company by ondinary resolution
disapplies the pravision af ihe arlicles
wwhich woull olbarsas pravent a director
fram being counled as paricipating in, or
waling 81, a direciors’ meeting,

(b}  the director's imerast cannot reasonably
be regarded a5 Lhaly 1o give fge 1o a
canfict of inferast, or

(¢} the direclor's conflict of interest arises
froem a permitted causa,

154  For the puposes of this articla, tha following
are permilied causes—

{a) & guaranies given, or i ba gven, by or
10 a direcior in respect of an obligaton
incurred by or on behalf of the company
ar any of is subsidiaries,

(b)) subscriplion, of an  agreement o
sutiacribe, for shares or other securites
of the compary ar any of its subsidiaries,
of bo underwrile, sub-uncarente, or
guarantee subscription for any such
shares or secwities, and

{c)  arangemants pursuant 1o which benefits
are made avallabla to employees and
dirgctors or former emgloyess  and
directors of the company o any of its

1548
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155

156

16,

163

163

164

Benefils or farmer directors,

Subject to paragrash (8], if a queston arises at
a meeling of direclors or of a committes of
directors as %o the righi of a drecor 1o
paficipales @ the meeting (or pard of the
maeting) for valing or quorum purposas, the
question may, before the conclision of the
meeting, be refermed @ e chairman whose
fuling in relation to any directar ather than the
chairman s io be final and concusive.

If ary guestion as 1o the nght o participals in
the meeting (or parl of the meeting) shauk
arise in respect of the chairman, the guesticn is
I be decided by 3 decision of the direclors &l
that masting, for which purpose the chairman is
not b be opunted 85 paricipaling in the
maeding (or thal par af the meeling) for voling
ar QUONM PUFpoSas.

Proposing directors” writlen resolutions

Any director may propose a directors' writhen
rasalution.

The comparny secretary musl propose a
direclors” weitlen resolulion if a direcior so

raguesls.

A girectors’ writlen resalution is propased by
giving notice of the propased resalution to tha
dirachars.

Motice of & proposed directars’  wrilten
resglution musl indicale—

(a)  the proposed resslulion, and

(o) the lime by which it is propased that the

diractors ahould adopl il
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166

7.

17.2

7.3

174

18,

Motice of a proposed direciors’  writhen
resolution must ba given in wriling o each
direcior

Any decisian which a parsan ghving notice ol a
proposed directors’ weitten resolulion lakes
regarding the process of adepling that
resolulion must be teken reasonably in good
Taith

Adoption of directors’ written resclutions

A proposed directors’ watlen resslufon s
atopled when all the direciors who wouwld have
been enliled fo vole on the resolubon at &
direclors’ meeling have signed one o more
copies of if, provided that those gireciors would
heave farmed a quorum at such a mesaling.

It is immabarial whather any directar signs the
resoiulicn befona or afler the time by which the
notics proposed thal il should be adopted,

Once a directors’ written resolubion has been
adopted, it must be rested as il il kad bean a
decision taken at 8 direclors’ mesling in
acoordance with the anicias,

Tha campany secretary must ersure that Lhe
compary keeps a record, inowriling, of al
directors’ written resolutions for 8l least lan
years from the date of thair adoglion.

Directors’ discretion to make further rules

The directors may make any niba which they Ehink fit
aboul how they lake decisions, and sbout how such
rules are o be recorded or communicated fo dreclors.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

vigh Al Fia5

ERNURPT. S [P0 e

] e 0 2 oy
gl aih il el o] i
[ R T O E p
i ey A a1l Al el

i

il dgih 0 o

plyp leate pddl (Lall A
ke il gl By e gl olac
ot 2 Ll bl o il
[ SRR PR PR
G Gl Ul a1 g L

£ laad!

e s el gn U Y
e T ]

iy

bt selaall el A ]
o R S LS A el ]
138 gy Laa s S5, gl gl
.“-'n.-']"lr'k.l.l'l

Tgnad S g o 3,2 Bl
RS { ¥ SRR ST R .
gl Ak

il i) b Dttt Sl
iyl e

165

188

171

172

17.3

T4

Sty el it 18 4 e ] el
sl s o0 Aghs oy il pilaal A
e el 8 laia

ot sl g1

112/169



The aboes inlormafios wis omnencebsd
sy @ d quibmebicsted by

il e nEn

Same D

o ity ey
e cOMPARIES aedlgthods of

ol T

ol gl Bl .19

Ay person who & willng 10 0t 85 8 Orecion, and IS |, i 8 8 oty it o
parmitted By Law to do 50, may bo sopointed 1o be a o osn & e

direciar— D i Tyane 2 e ) ey el
Tk b ampa pdn s e e
(8] by ordinary resolution, or Sugde JAcag [
o) by a decisian of the drectors. B b e L g (o)
2. Tarmn Fadl 20
201

The directars shall be elected &t every thid o, . ; o
annual general maeting of the company. s SRl dusguind - e
Aragaal dpaad A

Theare shall not be any limit gn the rumber of 4 5 ol cduh sl
_ _ ; et 202
limes any particular drector may ba re-alecied ala o

&3 a director of the company. A o piee ol i)
£1.  Termination of director's appointmant :,.1_.-:_10.‘!.[‘3] 21
A person ceases to be A drecior 85 500N 88— o A L ey Ry i Eie i SR
T T B

(a)  thal person oeases io be 8 direcior by dpeally Iy sine, e 5B llh 4
wirtue of any provision of the Companies i _ hﬂ."lm o
Regulations o i5 prohibited from beinga 3 il fdsi ge o (G Yise)

directar by law, e s 0 A e el
1l
(o) Ihat person becomas bankrupd, . T VR I [

{c} @ compasition s made with that parson’s S al i X
crexitors generally in salistacton of that & = | = ¢ = i
parson's debis, uigpty allgfl 4,0l

(dy @& registered medical practitioner who i _— 1
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Poendaly ncapeis f g & dcey " 2 44 B 4 oat3b
and may ramain 5o for more than thres  #-0 o Giliad 5l 40 oo dalih
moning, O Bl Gy laally gt il
A e g s Jladl il e g

e

(&) by resson of Ihat persors mental bealth, 269 19,4 P
2 cowt makes an ceder which whelly ar ot e il ()

pLh

113/169



The aboes inlermafon wis @ nnincibsd
ens #nd suibeebosted by
v af acnan 165 of Thy

Camparies {amendneni o 1) keguisdcra

D

Bame Do

O-ew-2033
T by |1 w8, B 080
-

221

223

223

224

3

PRty person  from
brgonall BTy Dowars of
rightts which thad parson would olherwise

have,
{f)  natification is recaived by the company
from the director that the director is
ragigning from office as director, and
Buch resignalion has taken effect n
accordance with its ierms,

Directors’ remuneration

Directars may undestake any servicas for the
comgany thal the drectors deckia,

Diractors are entified io such remuneration as
1he members detesrmine—

for their services lo fha company as
directors, and

{ah

(B} for any olher service which

undertake far the comparry.

thiy

A director's remunaration ray—

(a)  take any form, and

{b)  Include any arrangameants in connection
‘with the payrnant af a pension, allowance
of gratuily, or ary death, sickness or
disshilty benefils, 1o or in respact of that
direetor.

Uriess he members decide otherwise,
direciors’ remunesation acenies from day to
day.

Directors’ expenses

The compary may pay any reasonable GXpenses
which the direciors properly incur in connmction with
thair attandance at—

meabngs of dirachors ar commiltees of
diractors,

{a}
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{c}  separate meetings ol the holders of any
class of shares or of debentures of the

company,

or otherwise n connaclion with the exercise of
theit powars and the discharge of lheir
rasponsibilites in redation o the company,

ALTERMATE DIRECTORS
24, Appointmant and removal of allernales

241 Any direclor (the "appedntor”) may appainl as
an akernabe any other director, of any alher
parson approved by resolution of the direclors,
ID—

{a) exercise that director's powers, and
(b}  carry oul that direcior's responsibilities,

In relation lo the taking of decisions by the
diregtors in the absence of the alternate's
appaintor.

242 Any appaintment or remowval of an aRermate
Mgt be efiecied by notice in writing to the
cofmpany signed by the appointor, of in any
‘ofher mannar appraved by the dirschors.

24.3  The malica must—
{a) identfy the proposed aliemate, and

(b} in the case of a nofice of appoiniment,
conlan a salement signed by the
proposad alemate that the proposed
aliemate is willing 1o aet as the allemale
of tha diractor guing the notice.
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of altermate

An aliemabe drecior hes the same rights, in
relation to any direclors’ meeting of directors’
wiritlen resolulion, as the alemata's appeinior.

Albarnale dreciong—

[a) are deemed for &l puposes 1o be
dimciors,

) a&e lable for their own acts and
Gmissions,

jg}  are subject to tbe samae resiricions Bs
their appoiriors, and

{dy are not deemed 1o be agents of or for

it g paintors

A peraoi wha i an allérmale drecior but rot a
direclor—

(8] may be counted as paricipating for tha
purpasas  af delerminng whather a
Quarum i participating (but only & that
person's appainior is nol participating),
and

{b)  may sign a writlen resolulion (bul enly §

it s not signed o to be signed by that
PENSON'S BOPHiNLOr).

Mo alternate may be counted &s more (han one
diregior for such purposes.

An alernate director s not entilled 1o receide
army remuneration from 1he comgany for serving
a5 an altemate director excapd such parl af ihe
alwrmate’s appointor's remuneralion as iha
appainbar may Mirecl by notice in wriling made
o the comparry.
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Tesmination of alternate directorship

An allernate direcior's appoinimant as an alermata
terminales—

i

i

{a) when ke alternale’s appointor revokes
i @ppoiniment by notice b0 the
company in witng specifying when it is
o ferminate,

{by  on the occurrence in relabion o the
allernate of any evand which, i it
occurred i relabon do the alternate’'s
appairdor, wauld resultin the terminabion
of ithe appoinior's appointment &s &
dirssior,

{c) onihe death of the alternate’s Bppointor,
o

{d) whan ihe allernaie’s appoinior's
appointmant as a director {erminaies,
excapl hat an alernabe's appointmant
a8 an allerrate doas not larminate when
iha appoinior reties by rotation at a
general meeting and & then re-appointed
as a dreclor at the same  general
meehng.

EART 3
DECISION-MAKING BY MEMBERS

Organisation of Ganeral Meetings

A general meating of the company may be
called by the diectors and as olharsise
prascribad in the Companies Regulations,

Members can call for general mestings in tha
envant the numbear of directars. is insufficient, f—
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wanr than two

(b} the drecior (i avy) is unabile ar unwiling
to appoiri sufficient directars Lo make up
a quanim of ko call a general mesling o
oo 59,

In such an event, bwo or more meambers may
call & general meeting (or insinuct the company
secretary o do o) for e purposa of
appointing one or more oreciors.

Attendance and speaking at
maetings

genaral

A peraon s able 1o exsrcse the ight to s peei
&l & general meeling whan thal person s in g
pasilion bo communicate to al those attending
Ihe mealing, during the mesbng  any
infarmakan or opinions which that parson hes
on the business of the meating

A persan is able bo exencizs the right to vabe al
a general mesaling when—

{a) thal person is eble io wale, during ihe
maeting, on resolulions pul o he vole al
thia mesaling, and

(b} that person's wole can be taken inlo
account in determining whether oF nob
such resolutions are passed al the same
time &5 the violes of all the olher persans
attanding the meeting.

The directors may  make  whabaver
arrangements they considar approprisle o
erable these atiending & general meeting o
exercise ther rights 1o spaak o vobe &l it
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edhar ary bwo or
mora members atlending it are in o same
place &8 each olher.

Two or more persans who are nat in the same
place as each ather akend a general meeting i
their circumstances are such thal if they have
[or ware o have) nghts to speak and vole at
that mesting, they are (or would be) able (o
sxarcise tham.

Querum for general meetings

Subject W due notice of a general meabng
beEng ghven, & quarum shall exist at any ganeral
maebng of the campany f membars holding at
lesaal & simple majority of the aggregate nember
ol voting righls atachng to tha antire Esued
share capital of the company are prasent (in
person ar by prasy).

Mo buginess othar than the appaintmant of tha
chaitman af the meeting is o be ransactad at
a ganeral meetng i the persors attending d do
mal conslibube & guorum,

Chairing general mastings

I the direclors have appointed a chakman, the
chairman  shall chair ganersl meetings if
presant and wiling to do sa.

I thes direciors have not sppointed a charman,
or if the chairman is wnwiling to chair he
mealing or i not present within an minutes af
tha time at which & mesting was due o star—

{a)  the direciors prosent, or
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, the members,

must appont a director or mamber 10 chair the
[ ing, and the app nt of the chairman
of the meeting must be the first business of the
meeting,

The person chairing a mesting in accordance
with this article s referred to as “the chakman
of the meeting”™.

Attendance and speaking by directors and
non-members

Directors may attend and speak st general
meetings. whether ar not they are members.

The chaieman of the meetng may permit other
persons who are not—

{a) ~mambers of the company, or

{b) otherwise entitied lo exercise the rights
of members in relation to general
meetings, 1o attend and spoak at a
general meeling

Adjournment

If the persons attending a general meeting
within hatf an hour of the time at which the
meeling was due o start do not constitute a
quorum, of if during a meeting a quorum
ceases lo be present, the chairman of the
meeting must adjourn &,

The charman of tha meeting may adjourn a
general meeting at which a guorum & present
if

(8) the meetng consents to an adjoumment,

or
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That an B necessary lo
protect the safely of any parsan
abiending the mesting o enaswre thal the
business af the meating is conducted in
an oroerty mannar.

32.3 The chairman of the meating must adjourn a
peneral mealing if directed to do so by the

mealing.

d24 When adournng a peneral mesting, the
chaifman of the mesting must—

{a) elner specify the time and placea o which
il & adjoumed or siate that It & to
continue at a bme and place to be fiked
by the dreciors, and

(b} have ragard to any direclions as o the
tima and place of any adjoemmaent which
harve bean given by the meating.

325 Ithe contiruation of an adjowmed mesting is 1o
teke place maore lhan 14 days afier it was
adjpurned, the company must gre at least T
claar days nobice of it (that is, excluding the day
af the agourned mesling and the day on which
the molice is given)—

(8} fo the same parsons bo whom notice of
the company's general meelings is
required i be givan, and

(b} containing the same information which
such notice s raguined ba condain.

328 Mo business may be tensacted al an

adjourned general mesting which could mal
properly have baen transacted al te mesling if
the adjournmant had nol taken place.

WOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS
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A resolution put to the vobe of & ganersl mesting must
be decided an a show of hands unless a pall & duly
demanded in accordance with the anickes.

341

M2

3541

63

Errors and disputes

Ra objection may be raised 1o the qualification
of amy parson voling at a general mesling
excapd at the meating or adpumed meeting at
which the vote objeclsd to s lendered, and
ke mealing

evary voie not dissllowed at
is valid

Any such ohjection musi be referred to the
chairman of the meeling whose decision Is

firal.

Demanding a pall

Apoll an a resalution may be demandad—

{a) inadvance of the general mesting whare

ilis to be put fo the vabe, or

by 8t a general meeting, either bofore a
show of hands on that resolfon or
immedizlely afler the rasut of a show of
hands an that resclution is declared.

A poll may be demanded by—

{a)  the chairman of ihe meeting,

(o) the direciors,

(£} two or more persons hawing the right o

wobe an the resolution, or

e s
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353
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A demand far & poll may be wilkdrawn if—

{a) ihe poll has not wat baen taken, and

{b) ke chairman of the meeting consents lo
tha withdrawal,

Procedure on a pall
Palis s general maetings must be taken whean,

whare and in such manner as tha chairman of
the meeting direcs,

The chairman of the meetng may appaint
schulingars (who need not be members) and
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be declared

The resull of & poll shall be the decision of the
mesaling in respect of the resolubon on which
e poll was demanded

A pol on—

() the elestion of the chaiman of the
meseling, or

() & questiion of adournment, must be
taken immediabely,

Othar polis musd be taken within 30 days of their
baing damanded.

A damand for a poll doss ot prevent a ganaral
meating fram conlinuing, except as regards tha
uestion on which the poll was demandesd

No notice need be given of a pall not takan
Immediately il the lime and place at which it s
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specify ard placa 8l which
the pall is ta be taken,

Content of proxy notices

Proxies may orfy valdly be appainted by &
riotica in wiiling (a “proxy notce ") which—

(my stabes the mame and address of the

member appointing the praxy,

() identfies the parsan appainted io be that
member's proay and the general meating
in relation 1o which thai person is

sppeainted,

ts signed by or on bahall af the member
appointing the proxy, of is authenficabed
n such manner &= the directors may
dedermina, and

el

(dy is delverad b0 the company in
accordance wih the arlicles and any
Ireslructions conlained in the nalice of he

ganeral maeting b which they relate.

The comparny may reguire proxy nolices o be
delvered in a particular form, and may specify
different forms for cferant purposes.

Proxy nobices may specfy how the proxy
apporied wnder them 5 o wobe (or that the
prauy is to abstain from valing) on ane o mons
resolufions

Unless a proxy notice indicates otherasa, it
irrusd be reated as—

(8]  allowing the person appoated under § a8
a proay discretion as 1o how o woba on
any ancillary or procedural resclulicns

put ko the meating, Bng
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TEdation mert of fha
general mealing lo which it relates as
w'elaa.m&maeﬁﬁgiﬂr.

Delivery of proxy notices

Ary natice of a general masting mus! specify
the address or addresses ["proxy notification
address”) at which the company of ils agents
will recelve proxy nolices relaling o that
meting. or sny edjournment of &, dalvered in
hard copy o alecinanic form.

A person wha is entiled 1o attend, spaak or vole
(gilher an a show of hands ar on a poll) at &
panaral meeting remains 5o entiled in respect
of thal meeting ar any adjournmant of i, even
thaugh a valid proxy nobea hes been delvared
o b campany by or on behsll of that peracn.

Subjact to paregrephs (4} and (5) below, a
prowy notice muest be delivened 1o ihe prosy
notficaton address idenlified in 1he notice of
the ganeral assambly nol kess than 48 hours
bafare tha time fiwed Tor the general meeting or
adjournad mesling 1o which il reflatos,

In the case af a poll taken more than 48 howrs
afler il is demanded, the nobice musi be
dalared bo the proxy natification address nat
less than 24 hows bafore the ime fixed for ihe
taking of the pall

In e case of & pol not taken duing fhe
mealing bul taken not mone than 48 hours after
it was demanded, the proxy nobca must b
deliverede—

{a)  inaccordance with paragraph {3), ar

(b} @&l the mesting at which the poll was
demnanded to the chairman, secratany or
any direcior.
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v rolse fay be
by cal ice in wriling given
by or on bahalf of the persan by whom ar on
whase behalf the proxy nolice was given to a
praxy notification addnass.

A nalice revoking & proxy appointment onky
lakes effect il is delivered before—

[a} e starl of the mestng or adjiourned

mesaling o which il relates, or

{in the case of a poll nol taken an the
gama day &5 the mesting or adjourned
mealing) lhe fime agppainted for laking
the poll to which il refates,

1}

¥ a promy notice ts not signed by the person
apponting the proxy, it musl be accompanied
by written avidence of the sulhorly of the
parson whi axecubted il 1o exscule it on the
BppHnicr's behal.

Amendments to resolutions

An ordinary resoluton b0 be proposed al a
general masting may be amended by ofdinary
resolution if—

{a) malice of the proposed amencmeni is
given to the comparny secretary in wiling
by @ person antitled o vole &l the paneral
maeting &t which & is to ba proposed nol
lmss than 48 hours before 1he meealing is
o fake place (or such laber lime as (he
chaiman of e mealing may
determina), and

{n) the proposed amendmerd does nal, in
the ressanable cpinion of the chairman
of Ihe meeting, materially aller the scope

of the rasolubian.
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{a) the chairman of the meeling proposes
tha amendment at tha ganaral mesaling
at which the resalution is i be proposed,
and

(b} Ehe amendment does nol go beyond
whal s necessary bo comect a
grammatical or other non-substantive
eor in the resolution

3.3 I e chairman of the mestng, acting in good
fTaith, wrangly decides thai an amendmeant 1o a
rasolulion is oul of ordaer, the charman's armar
does nol invalidate the vate on that resclution,

RESTRICTIONS ON MEMBERS® RIGHTS

40, No woling of ahares on which money owed
b0 Company

Mo voting rights attached loa share may be exercised
at By ganaral mealing, al any adjournman of &, or on
any poll called &l o in felatan ko it, wnless all @mounis
payabia io 1he comparty in respect of that share nave
bean paid.

APPLICATION OF RULES TO CLASS
MEETINGS

1. Class mostings

The prowisions of the aricles relating to general
msetings apply. with any necessary modifications, 1o
meetings of the halders of any class of shares.

BART 4

SHARES AND DISTRIBUTIONS

ISSLE OF SHARES
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Without prejudice bo the rights attached 1o any
existing snare, e company mey issue shares
with such rights or restriclions as may be
deiermined by ordnery resclution.

Thi comparny may ssue shares which are bo ba
redeerned, or ane iable o be redaemed &t the
aption of the company or the holder, and the
direclors may dederming the sarms, condilions
and manner of redemgation of any auch shares.

Payment of commissions on subscription
for shares

The compary may pay any persan 8
commiggion in conaideration for that persan—

(a)  subseshbing, of agresing o subscribe, for

sharas, or

{b)  procuring, or agresing 1o procune,

suibscriplions of ahates.

Any such commission may be paid—

(@) i cash, or in Tully paid ar partly paid
sharas or other securities, or parly in

anae way and parly in the ather, and

{B)  inrespect of 3 conditional or an absolue

subsonplion.

INTERESTS IN SHARES

Company not bound by less than absolute
Interasts

Except as required by law, no persen & o be
recognised by the company B2 holding any share upan
any trusl, and except B olharwise raguired by Law ar
the arliclas, the company ks nolin any way bo be baund
by or recognise any inderes! in a share alher than the
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SHARE CERTIFICATES

Cartiflcates bto be issued sxcept in certain
CaABEs

The company fmust issue sach maember with
ara oF more cerlificates in respect of the sharas
which thal member holds,

This article does not saply lo—
(8} unceriicabad shares, or
(b} shares in respect of which the

Gompanies Regulalions  permit  the
comaany not io ssua a certificale,

All certificabes must be issued frea of charge.

Mo certificale may be issued in respect of
shares of mone than one class

I mara than ane pansan holds a share, anly ana
cartificabe may be isswed in respect of it,

Contents and execution of share cartificates
Evary certificale must specify—

{a) in respect of how many shares, of what
class, it is issued,

{b) e Bsue prics of those shanes,
(e} ihe amound pald wp on tham, and

(d)  any distnguishing numbers assigned ba
tham

Carlificales mrsi—
{a) have affieed 1o them e company’s

common saal o 6N official seal whech =
a facsimie of the company's comman
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securilies seal’), or

be olherwise executed in Bocordance
with the Companias Regulaticns.

]

Consolidated share caertificates

When a members halding of shares of a
particular class increases, the company may
E=ue that membar with—

{a) a single, consolidated cerificate in
raspect of all the shares of a particular

class which that membar holds, o

(b} & separabe cedificale in respect of only
those shares by which that mombar's

helding kas increased.

VWhen a membar's holding of shares of a
particular class is reduced, the company must
ansure (hal e member is issued wih one or
more certdficates in respect of the numbar of
sharas held by the mamber aftar that reduction,
But the compary nead nat {in the atsance of &
requeal fram lhe member) issus any new
carlificate f—

all the shares which e mambar no
longer hokds as a result of the reduction,
and

&)

none af the shares which the mambar
redains following the reduction, ware,
immediabaly  befora  1he  reduchon,
represenied by the sama cartificata.

(e}

A member may request the company, inwriting,
o raplace—

{8)  Ihe member's separabe certificates with a
consolidated cerificate, or

{b} ihe member's consolidaied cendficate

with two of more separale certificates
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Shares as

may speciy.

When ihe company compies with such a
request @ may charge such reasonable fee as
the direcions may decde for doing so

A consoligaled certificale musi nol be issued
wnless By carificates which it is o replace
have first bean relumed b the company for
cancalalion.

Raplacemant share carificales

if a caniicate isswed in respest of a membaer's
sharag is—

(@) dameged o defaced, or

() sed to be koal, slolen or desiroyed,

that member s entiled o be issusd with a
replacamant carlificate in respect of tha same
shares.

A member axenciging the right ko be ssued with
such a replacament cerlificate—

(@) may at the same lime exercigs the ight

o be lEswed wilh a single certificale or

separale canificates,

(b} must raburn the cerificabe which is 1o be
raplaced ba the company if i iz damaged
ar defaced, and

{z)  must comply with such conditions as ta

evidanca, indemnity and the payment of
A reasonable tee B8 he direclons decide.

SHARES NOT HELD IN CERTIFICATED

FORM
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48.4

In this aricla, “the relevanl rules” means—

{a) any appicable provision of the
Companies Regulstions  aboul  the
hedding, evidancing of tille 1o, or ransfer
af shares oiher than in certificaled form,
and

(k) any applicabla lagistation, rules or other
AMANGEMants Mace under of by vifue of
such provision.

The prowsions of s eriche have affect subject
o the redgvant rules

Ary  provision of the arices which =
noonsistant with the relevent rules mual be
disregardad, to the axtend that it i incansisbent,
whanewvar the relevani rulas apgly.

Any share of class of shares of the company
may b issusd or held an such fems, or in such
a way, lFat—

(e} e b0 il of them is nod, or must not be,

evidanced by a certificate, ar

(8} It of ey may or must be ransfermed

whwally o parly withaul a cariificase.

The directons nave power io take such steps as
thery think fil in relalion a—

(@) the evidencing of and ransfer of title o
uncertificated  shares  (incduding  in
conmectian with the issue of such
shanes],

(by  amy records refaling 1o the holding of
unserlificaled shares,
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(d)  the conversion of unceriificated shares

Inip carlificated aharas.

The company may by nofice to tha helder of &
share require 1hal share—

{a) it s uncertificated, to be comerled inlo

certificated form, and

{by it is cerificeted, o be convarled inlo
uncartificaled form, o emable i o be

daalt with in acoordance wilh the antickas.

the arlides give 1he direciors power 1o
take action, or require other persona. bo
takm action, in order to sell, ransler o
othareise dispose of shares, and

(o)  uncertificaled shares are subject io thad
pawer, bul the power is expressed In
lerms which assume the use of a

certificale or ather written insinamant,

the directors may lake such aclion as s
necassaty of axpedenl o achieve the same
reaulls wihan axencising thal pawer in relation 1o
uncartificabed shares.

In pariculer, thae direclons may Lake such action
85 hey consider appropriale to achieve the
sale, transfer, Geposal, Torfeilune, re-alalment
of surrendar ol an uncerificated share or
alherwise 1o enforce a fan »n respect of it
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which a 5 in uncertificaled
Tormn must be trealed as separate hoidings from
any shares which that member helds n
certificaled form.

48.10 A class of shares must nol be lrealed as bwva
classes simply because some shares of thal
¢lass are hald in cerificabed farm and albers
are hesd in uncestificatad Tomm.

PARTLY PAID SHARES

Company's lien over partly paid shares

The company has a lien [the company's
lign’) over avery share which is partly paid for
any part of thal share's issue price which has
rat bamn paid b the company, and which is
payale immedialely or al some lime n the
future, whethar or not @ call notice has been
sent in respect of it.

Tha company's lien aver a share—

{8) lakes priofty over anmy ihird pariy's

inberest in that share, and

{b)  exlends bo any dividend or atber manay
payable by the company in respect of
hal share and (if the Ken is erforced and
the share is sold by the company] the

oroceeds of sale of that share,

503 The direciors may at any time decide thal a
shara which is or would otherwise be subject to
b company's ken shall nol be subjest o il,

alther whidly of in par.
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51.1 Subject lo the provisions of this article, the
company may sel a share as cetermined by the
directors in the folowing situations:

512

(8)

(0)

allen enforcemeant notice has been gven
in regpect of a share, and

the person 1o whom the notios was gven
has faded o comply with &,

A llen enforcament notice—

(a)

{b)

{c)

(o)

(e}

may only be gwven in respect of a share
which is subject to the company’s Sen, in
respect of which a sum is payable and
the due date for payment of that sum has
passed,

must spacify the share concamed,

must require payment of the sum
payable within 14 days of the notice,

must be addressad aither 1o the holder of
the share or to a person entitled to it by
reason of the holder's death, bankrupicy
of otherwise, and

must state the company's intention to
sall the share If the notce is not complied
with,

Where shares are soki under ths article—

(a)

®)

the drectors may authorise any person
to execute an instrument of transfer of
the shares 1o the purchaser or a person
nominated by the purchaser, and

the transferee Is not bound 1o sea 1o the
application of the consideration, and the
transfarea's thle is not aMected by any
wregularity in or invalidity of the process
jeading to tha sale.
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such sale (aftar
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of ihe sale and any othar

cosis of enforcing the lien) must ba applied—

(@) first, in payment of o much of the sum
for which the lien exists as was payable
at the dale al the lisn enforcement
ntice,

(k) sacond, to the person enbiled bo lhe
sheres 8 the dale of the =ale, bul anly
after the certificaba for the shares sold
has bean surrendered o the company
for cancellation ar a suilable indamnily
has bean given for any losi corfficabes,
and subject o a len squivalent to the
company's lien ovar the shares bafore
Ihe =ale for army money payable in
reapect of the shares afier the date of the
lier enforcemant nalice,

1.5 A sistutory declaralion by a direchar or the
company secratary thal ihe declarant is a
direclor o ihe company secralary and that a
share has been sold 1o salisfy the company's
lian on & specified dabe—

is conclusive avidence of the facts stated
in it 85 Bgainat Bl paraons ckaiming to be
anitlad lo the share, and

[a}

(B)  subject to complience with 8y other
farmalities of tansfer reguired by the
articles o by law, constitutes a good tille

to the share.
Call notices

Bubject o the terms on which shares anre
allothed, the diractors may send a nolios
(@ “call notica®) to 8 member reguiing ihe
member to pay the comparry & specified sum of
maney (6 “call’) which is payable in respect of
shares which thal member halds al the dale
whan the direclons decide 1o send the call
nitiee,
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§2.2 A call notice—

{a) may not require a member 1o pay a call
which exceeds the total sum unpaid on

that member's shares,

(b)  must state when and how any call 1o

which i relates i Is to be paid, and

(¢) may permit or require the call to be paid

by instadments.

A member must comply with the reguirements
of a call notica, but no member ia obliged to pay
any call before 14 days have passed since the
notice was senl.

Before the company has received any call dua
under a call notice the directors may—

(8) revoke it wholy or in part, or

() specéy a later time for payment than s

specHied in the natics,

by a further notica in writing to the member in
respect of whose sharas the call is made.

Liability to pay calls

Liability 1o pay a call is nol exlinguished or
transfarrad by transferring the shares in respect
of which it is required to be paid.

Joint holders of a share are jointly and severaly
liable to pay all cafis in respect of that share.

A2

Al

AL e, R k] Jadd s 522

- A

ke s alaadi il o e Y ()
paladd ol ngd

il e Ay smge sins o cend )
3 L Gl

e abs oty J ey J ()
Lol Gasod

ol il ) e e i (9
i b ATd adey L35 )
pAd a3 G ¥ Sl st}
Lo 14 p5e 0 gl e (f atsy
s Jus] s e

in gy Riaiuse alls 45 45,80 L o s

dyme Aadsadd) AL ahy Adledd flai)

S e

S e Sy ()

G sy atall Gl toge siiadle)
iyl A s

Pl AT kU] o il

chaged pageass flailf) jua g

ey Alalesall Uliad 85 o5 Alyfanal]

Lllall pladf

G Al ps e dgdggaal) Jains

Asb i 3ok e JAE Yy et e

Lt i A0 s Cglledd pg i

Ol A0S A ) S S
el paan ads o el Jue e

137/169



Campanrdes (Amendmest He 1) Espulatior
L.

e Daw
Bty Vb e g o ich shares are
i . when  issuing
shares, prowvide (kal call notices send o the

haldars of those shames may reguing tham—

{a) tapay calls which are not the sama, or

{B) o pay calls at differand imes.

4. When call notice nesd not be issued

A call notice nesd not be sswed in respect of
sums which are specified in the lerma an which
a share is isswed. as baing payable 1o the
company in respect of thal share —

@)  onalatmaend,
{b)  onthe occurance of a particular evant,
or

{5} onadale fined by or in accordance with
Ihe terms of issus

Bul il the: due date for paymant of such a sum
has passed and it has not been paid, the holder
of the share concemed is treated in all respects
as having failed 1o comply with @ call malice in
respect of that sum, and is liable to the same
CONSOQUENCES 85 ragards the payment of
nterest and forfaihure

Failure Lo comply with call notice: automatic
ConStquancas

i a persan is liable o pay a call and falks o do
B0 by the call paymant date—

(e} ke dreclors may issue a notice of

inlended farfeiture to that parsen, and
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" on the call from the
call payment date at the relevant intarest
rate.

§6.2 For the purposes of this anicle—

(@) the "cal payment date” is the lime when
the call notice states that a cal is
payable, uniess the direciors gve a
notica specifying a later date, in which
case the “call payment date” is that later
date,

(b) the “relevant interest rate” Is—

{i the rate fixed by the terms on
which the share In respect of
which the call is due was allotted,

(i) such other rate as was ficed in the
call notice which required
payment of the call or has
atherwise boen determined by the
directors, or

(M) If no rate is fixed in ailher of these
ways, 5 per cent per annum.

853 The directors may wane any obligation 1o pay
Interest on 8 call wholly or in part.

56.  Notice of intended forfeiture

A notice of ntended forfellure—
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of any shane in

raspact of hes nol been paid
as required by a call nalica,

(b} must be sent to the hokder of that share
or o @ person enbled o i by reason of
tha holder's death, bankruptcy or
atharwise,

(e} fusl require payment of the call and amy
accrued inbarest by a dale which is not
less than 14 days afler the daie of the
Aot

{d)  musl sigle how the paymenl is o be
rade, and

{8) must stale that @ ihe nobice is nol
complied wilth, 1he shares in respecl of
which the call is payable will be liable to
b forlailed.

57, Directors’ power o forfeil shares

If a notica of Intendad forfeiture is nol complied with
balora the date by which payment of the cal is
raguirgd i the nobca of inlended forfailure, he
direcis may decida thal army share in respect of
which it wes given is Torfailed, and the forfailune is bo
include all dividends or alher moneys payable in
reapect af ihe forfeiled sharas and nat paid before tha
Toefailung.

58. Effect of forfoiture
581 The forfeiture of & share extinguishes

(a)  al interests in that share, and all claims
and demands agairst the comgpany in
resspect of &, and

(b} &l gther rights and liabdites Incidental bo
the share &5 bebaaen the parson whoss
sharg i was prior 1 the forfaiture and the
COmpany
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(®)

(e

(d)

(e}
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s deemed to have been forfeited when
the directors decide that it is forfeited,

5 deemed to be he propetty of the
compary, and

may be sold. re-gliotted or othemwise
disposed of as the dreclors think fit.

If 3 person’'s shares have been forfeited—

the company must send thal person
notice that forfeilure has occurred and
record R in the register of members,

that person ceases to be a member in
respect of those shares,

that person must surrender the
certficate for the shares forfeited to the
company for canceliation,

that person remans liable 1o the
company for all sums payable by that
person under the articles at the date of
forfeilure in respect of those shares,
including any interest (whether accrued
before or after the date of forfesture), and

the direciors may walve payment of such
sums wholly or in part or enforca
payment without any allowance for the
value of the shares at the time of
forfeture or for any consideration
received on their dsposal.

Al any time before the company disposes of &
forfeited share, the directors may decice 1o
cancel the forfaiture on payment of ai calls and
interest dua In respect of & and on such other
terms &s they think fit.
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5.4

Procedura following forfeiture

I a forfeited share is to be dsposad of by being
ransfarred, the company may receve lhe
cansideration for the transfer and 1he direciors
may authorsa any person o execule the
Instrumant af transfer.

A slabutery dectaration by a director or fhe
compiany secrelary that the declarant & a
diracior or tha company secretary and thal &
share has been fodeited on a specified date—

la canclusive evidence of the facts staled
in it @5 against all persons daiming to be
antitled lo the share, and

(&)

(b} subject to compliance with any olher
formalities of transfer reguired by the
arficles or by law, constitutes & good title

Lo the share.

A person o whom a forfeited share s
fransfarred s not bound o see o Lhe
appiication of the consideration (¥ any) nor is
that person's tille o tha share affecied by any
irreguissity in or invalidiy of the procass lasding
ba the Tarfeilure or transfer of the shara,

If the company sels a farfeiled share, lhe
person who beld it prior o its fordefere s
entitled o receive from the company the
proceeds of such sale, ned of any commission,
and exciuding any amount which—

() was, of would hawe become, payable,

and
{b}  had nol, when thal share was forfaited,
bean paid by that parson in respect of
that share, bul no inlerest is payable b
giuch a persan in respect of such
procesds and the comgany & nol
required 1o acoount for any monoy
wsarned an tham,
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60.  Surrender of shares

B0.1 A member may surander ary share—

{a) in respoct of which the directors may
issue & natice of intended Tor'aiture,

(b} which the directors may forfeit, or

{c)  which has bean forfaitad.

60.2  The dirgciors may aceept tha surrander of any
such shara.

680.3 The effect of sumender on a shara is tha same
as the effect of fordfeiture an that share.

604 A share which has baen surrendarad may be
dealt with n the same way as a shara which has
baen forfetad,

TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF
SHARES

B1.  Transfers of cenificated shares

B1.1 Cerlificaled shares may be iransfenred by
means of an inslrement of iransfar in any usual
form of amy other farm approved by the
diractars, which is executad by or on bahatf
af—

(a) ihe ransteror, and

(b any of the shares is parlly paid) the
frarsleree.

612 No lee may be charged for regisiering any
inglrumenl of lransfer or alber documend
ralating o or affecting the tile 1o any shara,
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Tre company may feain any nsTument of
wansfor mhich is ragsmanad.

Tre iansferor remains #o holder of &
corificated sham wnil it imnsleres's name &
aibirad i e reghler of members ms holder of
"

Tha difiaziocs. sy il 10 regerer the rareier
ol & cerificated share i—

the shars 2 not fully paid,

the transier i= not lodped ot the
company's registered offce o sach
olfer  placs &5 e dmdons heve
apginted,

g} e ransfer is nol acoom pensd by e
cartificate for (i shame fo which £
mbatng, or such ofer ewderoe as the
dreciors may reasonably requine
show T Trarakensr's fight [0 Saka e
ok, of avidos ol ha rghl of
somecng othar than the Forsferor fo
maks e ransfer on ihe Tansferors
behalf,

{dl T Irailad b A feapecl of momw than
ore clese of share. or

tha ransier ix in iwsour of mors than four
ranstarean

i)

IT the direciors. refuse o registr the ransfer of
a share, the instumant of vensfer mus ba
g 3 Il Fashlenen with the rolice of
rafuaal urleae (hey suspect that e proposad
transier may be fraudu lanl.

Trarsfer of uncorificated sharas

A rarwler of an uncerificaed shane must not
e regisionesd if £ is in fasour of more Shan four
rarsfentas
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Transmission of shares

I title to & share passes 1o a ranamilles, he
comgany may only recagnise the ransmilbes
a5 having any fitle 1o that share.

Mathing in these arlicies relaases the estabe of
a decaased mamber from any liablity in respect
of a share solaly or jindy held by that member.,

Transmittens’ rights

A lransmittee who produces such evidence of
antiflement lo shares as tha directars
My properdy require—

la}  rmay, choosa either to becomea the holoer
of lhose shares or o hewe lhem
transferred fo another person, and

(b}  pending any transfer of the shares 1o
analher person, has the sama rights &=
the halder had,

But franamiitees do nol have the right to atiend
of wie al a general meeting in respect of
sharas 1o which they are entiled, by reason of
e holder's death or banknupicy or othansisa,
unless they becoma the holders of those
shares.

Exarcise of transmillees’ rights

Transmitlees wha wish b become the halders
of shares 1o which they  have bacome
enlilled musl nalify the company in writing of
1hal wisk.

f the share & a cerlificated share and a
transmitles wishas 1o have it ransferred o
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al respect of i

E5.3 I the stare i an uncerificated share and the
franemittes wishas [ fawe it Forsterad 1o
another persan, tha Fansmiten sug—

(al progure thal al appropriale nsinudions
ane give o sTest Fa iamber, or
B proours thal the unoelcated shire =

changi nln cerificatd fom and than
axmceln a0 rsument ol roneler in
respect of

Any Varilee made o aeecubesd under s
oricin & o D= regied as TR owers made of
meculed by he porson frem whos e
Frargmi T has dafeid ights in eepect of the
Ahiars, and i i e even| which garee nee o the
‘raremiseon had nol ocoumed.

8. Transmillees Bound by pricr notices.

T3 rolicn & g B @ Membsr n et of shares
and & tranamiliee s enilled jo thosa shores, Te
Iransmitieg is bound by the noSice f twas given o ha
member belore e Tansmilor's name has besn
amened in the regiter of mambers,

CONSOLIDATION OF SHARES

AF.  Procodure for disposing of Pootions of
shanis

BT This atichs Al wham—

faf  ihere Fais Bean @ conscidelon or
dhision of shases, and

b} &d @ résul, members are enliied o

fractions of shares.

BT 3 Thm diracion may—

il asl the shares regreseniing e Faciions.
o any person induding the comgary for

the best price reasonably osairabie,
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by i the casa aof a cedificaled share,
aulhorise any persan b execule an
inatrumeard af ransfer of the shares o the
purchaser of a persan nommated by the

purchaser, and

(e} distribute the net procesds of sale in due
proportion among the holders of the

sharnag.

Withere any holoar's antiiemant to a porlien af
the proceads of sale amounis o less than a
minimum figure datarmined by the direcions,
that mambsar's portion may be diskibuted b an
argansation which ig a charily regisbered by
wirtug of the kaws of the Abu Dhabi

The persan io whom the shares are transfamed
is nmal obliged to ensure thad any purchesa
money is received by the parson entiled 1o the
redevant fractions,

The Iransferese’s title to the shares is nod
aflecied by any rregularity inor invalidity of tha
process leading 1o thair sale.

DISTRIBUTIONS
Procedure for declaring dividends

The compary may by ordinary resalution
declare dividends, and the direciors may
decide to pay mnbenm dividands.

A dividend must not be declared wnless the
diréclors have made @ recommendcation 33 10
its amounl. Such a dividand must not excasd
the ameunt recommended by the direclions.

N diidend may be declared or pald unkass i
i im sccordance with members' respactive
figghts.

Unless the members' resalubon 1o declare or
directars’ decson 1o pay a dividend, or tha
lerme on which shares ane isswed, specty
alherwise, it must be paid by reference to sach
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Tk

the date of the
ate o pay il

It the compamy’s share capital is divided info
dilferenl diassss, no imerim dividend may be
pail of shares camying defarred or non-
preferred rights if, at the ime of paymant, any
preferential dividend is in arear.

The diractors may pay al inlervals any deidend
payabie 81 & fixed rate il @ appears fo them that
the pralils available for disirbution ustify the
payrment.

If the directors acl in good faith, Ihey do nal
Incur any liability o the helders of shares
confaring preferred righls Tor any lass they
may sufler by the lawful payment of an inbenm
dividend on ghames wilh defered aor non-
prederred rights.

Calculation of dividends
Adl dividends must be—
{a) declared and peid according o the
amounts paid up on the shares an which
the deidend s paid, and

(b} apportoned and pakd proportionalely o
the amounts peid up on the shares
during any porton or porlions of ke
periad in respact of which the dividend is
paid

Wany share s issued on terms providing that il
ranks for dividend as from a parficular dase, that
share ranks for dividend sccondingly.

For the purposes of caloulating dividends, no
BCGount i@ b be takan af any amaunt which has
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dividends

Payment  of and  other

distributions

Whara 8 dividend or olber sum which is a
dsbnibution i3 payable in respect of & share, &
must ba paid by one ar mome of the folloeing
means—

(a) transfer top & benk accounl specified by
the distribution recipiant eilber in wriling

or @8 1he direciors may olherwise decide,

(4)  sending a cheque mada payable to the
oisinbution reciplent by pest o the
fisinbution recipkant Bt e distribution
reciplent's registerad address (Il ihe
distibution recipient i a holder of the
share), or (in any olher case) o an
pddrass speclfed by Lhe dislfibulion
recipiant edher @ wriling o as lhe
direciors may olharwise decide,

(]l sending a cheque made payable io sweh
persan by post 1o such person al swch
aodress a8 the dislibulion recpient has
apecilied ether in wiing or as the
directars may othenwise deade, or

(d) any other means of payment as the
directors agrae wilh the destribution
recipient aithar in writing or by such olhar
maeans a5 the direciors decide.

In tha aricles, “the disinbution recipent”
maans, in respact of a share in respect of which
a dividend or othes sum is payadle—

{a)  the holder of the share, or

{b)  #the share has bwo or more joint holdars,
whichevar of them Is namad first in the
ragisser of members, or

if thee holder is no longar entitied 1o 1ha
shire by reason of death or bankrnuptcy,
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A

712

7.3

Fansmil

Deductions from distributions in respact of
#lims dwed o the company

H—

{a) @ share s subject to the company's lign,

and

ihe direclors are entilled o issue a lien
enforcament nolice in respect of i,

ibh

they may, nslead of issung a lien anforcemant
malica, deduct from ary dividend or other sum
payable in respect of the share any sum of
maney which is payable to the compamy in
reapecd ol thal share o the exient thad the
cormpany is enfifed o require paymeand unoer &
Fer enforcement notice,

Monay so deductad must be used to pay any af
the sums payable In raspect of 1hat share.

The company must notify e distribulion
recigient n writing of—

{a) the fact and amourd of any such
deduction,
(b} ary non-payment of a dividend or other

sum payabla in respect of 8 shame
resulting from any such deduction, and

() how the money deducted has been
applied,

Ho interest on distributions:

The company may not pay interast on any
dieidend or othar sum paysble in respest of a
share unless ciharwise provided by—

ihe ferms on which the share was Issued,
ar

(2}
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(&)

Ihe oprovissons of another agresmaent
babwaen the hakder of that share and the

COMmpEny.

Wnclaimed distributions

All dividernds or alber sumes which ang—

{a)

i)

may be irmested or olherssse made use of by
e difeclorn for the benefi of tha company until

payable in respect of shares, and

unctaimed after having been declarad or

bacome payable,

claimed.

The paymenl of any such deidend or other sum
itba & separate account does not make the

comparty a lrusiee in respect of it

H—

(8] bwebee years have passed from ihe dale
on which a dividend or other sum
bescame due for paymend, and

{b) e dislribulion recipient hkas nod clamed
i,

e diakibution recipient is no langer entitied to
hat dividend or alber sum and i ceases o

refian awing by the compary,

Non-cash distributions

Subjecl lo the terms of isswe of the share in
question, the company may, by ondinary
resolulion on the recommendation of the
directars, decide b pay all or part of & duwadend
ar alher distribution payable In respect of a
share by transfering non-cash assets of
agquivaleni value (Including, without limitatian,

sharas or othar sacurities in ary comadany).
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T4.2 M the shares in respect of which such a non-
cash disiribution is paid are uncerificated, any
shares in the comparny which are Esued as &
narecash distrinution in respect of tham must
b uncertificated

743 For the purposes of paying a non-cash
dislribution, the directars may make whalever
arrangements thay think fit, including, where
any difficully arses regarding the distribution=—

(a)  feong the walue of any assels,

[8)  paying cash bo any distribulion recigienl
on 1ha besia af ihal value n order So
adjusl the rights of reciaients, and

(g} vesling any assels in ustees.,
T8, Waiver of distributions

Distripution reciplents may waive ther enitlement
adividand or other distribution payabée in respect of a
share by giving the company nolice in wiiling 1o Ehat
effect, bt i—

(a)  tha share has maorae than one holder, o

(k)  more than ona person & enlitled to the
shara, whather by reason af the death o
benkruplcy of one o mare joinl holders,
or cihensiaa,

the matice is not effecive unless it is sepressad o be
given, and signed, by all the holders of persons
alharwise antitied 1o tha share.

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS

578
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pristion of

The direciors may, if they ane 50 authorised by
an ardinary nesolution—

{a) decide bo capilaise any profits of the
comparry  (whether or not they are
available for distribution] which are not
retuired  for  paying & preferental
dividand, or any sum standing 1o the
oredt  of the company's capital
redamphion rasenda, and

(b} aporopriale any sum which they so
decile 1o capitalize (a “capilaised sum')
Ba i persans wha would have been
entitled ba il if it were distibuted by way
af dwidend (the "parsons enbiled™) and in
the sarme praporlions.

Capitalised sums musl be applied—

{a) on behalf of the persons ent@ad, and

(b} in the same proportions 88 a dividend
waould hawe bean dalribubed bo them.

fny capitalised sum may be applied in paying
vp new shares of an issue price equal o e
Capitalsad sum wheth are then allabled cradbed
as fully paid to the persana entitled or as they
may dirgcs,

A capilalised sum which was approprigted from
prafits available for  disiribution may ba
appligd=—

(@) i or bowards payng up any amounis
unpaid on gosting sharas hefd by tha

persors entiled, or

(b} in paying us new debeniuas of tha

earipany which are than alitied crodiad
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fully

one entited or as

¥ may
TE.5 The direchars may—
(a) apply capilalzed sums in accordance

wilh paragraphs (3) and (£) partly in one
wary and partly in angther,

(b} meke such arangemeants as ey think fi
o deal with shares or debertures
Becaming destnbutable m fractons undar
this arlicke [including the ssuing of
lraclional certificabes or the making of
tash paymaents), and

{z)  aulhorise any parson io enler inla an
agreamant with the company on behalf
of @il the persons enlilled which is
bnding on them n respect of the
alicament of shares and debenbures io

ke Lindes this articls.

PART 5

MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

COMMUNICATIONS

Means of communication to be used

Anything sanl or supphad by or to the compary
urder tha articles may be sent or supplied in
any way in which the Companies Regulations
prowidas for documents or indormation which
ara authorised or required by any provision of
e Companes Reguiabions bo be senl ar
suppliad by or to 1he compary.

Tr2 Any nolice of decurnent bo be sent or supplisd
lo & direclor in connection with the taking of
decigions by directors may also ba sent or

suppied by the means by which that direcior
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pplied wilh such

& lime being.

T3 A direcior may agree with the company that
nalices or documents senl o that drector in g
parlicular way are ta be deemad io have bean
fecaived within a specified lima of thair baing
sent, and for the specified tima o be lass than
48 hours,

T8 Failure to notity contact details
81—

{a) the compary sends twa conseculive
documants bo & member over a period of
al leaal 12 manalhs, and

(b} each of those documents is relumned
vndalvared, of the compary recehes
notification that it has not been delvened,

that member ceases i be anbbed b receie

nalices from the company.
782 A member who has ceased to be entiled o

receten nalices from the company becomes
entilled to receiva such nolices again by
sanding the company—

a now acddress to be recorded in the
register of meambsars, or

i)

(b} i the mamber has agreed thal the
compary should use & means af
communication  olher  than  sending
things bt swch an  address, he
nformation that the company needs bo
usa that mears of communicalion

affactivaly.

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMEMNTS
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fny comman seal may only be used by tha
authority of the directors.

Tha direciors may decide by what means and
in what form any common seal of securilies
sedl |5 o be used.

Unless otherwise decided by the dreclons, ¥
the company has & common seal and il is
affiwad to @ document, the document musl alsa
b signad by at least one aulhorised pansan in
Ihe praganca of & withess whao afiesis the
Bignature.

Far he purpeses of this article, an authorsad
OESaN s—

(@)  any director of the company,

b} the company secratary, or

(el any person awthansed by the direciors
for the: purpose of signing documents to
which the common saal ks soplied.

Il Ihe compary has an official seal for usa
abraad, il may only e affived o8 document i
its use an that dogumant. or documents of a
class to which it belongs, has been authorised
by a decision of the direciors.

it company has a seaurfies seal, it may only
be affimed |o Securities by the comparny
sacrelary of 4 person suthorised to apply @ 10
gacurilies by the comgpany secratany

For te purposes of Me anicles, references o
the securilies seal being affixed o any
cocument include the reproduction of the image:
of hal seal on or in @ dooument by any
mechanical o slscironic means which has
been approved by the directors in relation bo
1At document ar documents of a class fowhich
it balongs.
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The company is aniflad to deathoy—

(@) &l instrumerts of iransfer of shares
which hawe been regastered, and all
other documeaents on the basis of which
any anines ang made in the registar of
mambears, from six years afer the dabe of

regiatration,

(b} all dividend mandates, variabors or
cancellations of dividend mandates, end
notificators of change of address, from
raa ymars after they have been recorded,

[c) &l share cedificales which have bean
cancalied freen ane yaar aftar the dais of
the cancellation,

{d) &l paid diwidend warrants and cheques
Irofmy ane year afler the dale of actual
paymment, and

[()] ulmmmarmmprmuh
and of the maeling lo whish the praxy
nalice relates.

If the company destreys a decument in good
fath, in Bocordance with Ihe aficdes, and
without nolice of any claim fo which Ehat
documant may be relevant, il s conclusivaly
presumed in favour of the company that—

(a)  enbries in the registar purporing o kave
baan made on the basis of an inglrement
of transfer or ofher documen? so
desiroyed wane duly and properly made,

(b} any instrument of fransfer 50 destroyed
was a vald and effactive instrumen duly
and propesly registered,

OTE- L )
gl Liw gl 26,58 o,

A el e s pea [
A A i) ey il L
e it 3 i i fm iy
g i s il T3] s Jypatsaall

P o T LT R - SN o

[EE-TRVE BSUH. JEFREL P CT

i Sy Sl
elgbinnd g e el 1 1t

PO TP JET TPy )
NI P R

Geghed) L SISy g i g (3
gkt gl e el el 1

g iliad

pe il 12 B gl Sl | e 4]
Al gl plial Llpd da taly
el eyl

o s e e A8 S0 s 1y
i)\l g 0 a1 G gy
ol s fall 295 ) ey e 4

Fi b A ol Lkl o il

Al a8 A sl 2 ()
Uy e ey A A
waladly 0] & AT i i 481
e e a e LU TRCTA RS
Aagaaay

wenlacily a3 AL i ety o
e iy 20l e g
amamy Yyl lpnasi iy i3l

157/169

B0

804



I3

inamr B O3-bmer 200
r.uﬂ‘.'v\-:.:.-:---i-ﬂ-r'a""‘l"ui T deairoyed was &

valld and carlificate duty and
progerly cancelled, and

(d)  any other document 5o destroyad wes &
wilid and wffectve  document  in
accordance with is recorded particulers
in the books or recorcs of the company.

803 Thiz arlicle does rol imposs on the company
iy ligb ity which il would nol olberwise have if
il destroys any document before the time at
which thig article permigs it o do 5o,

BO.4  In this arlicle, refarences 1o ihe destuclion of
any document include a refarence o ils baeing
dispoged al in any imanner.

8. Mo rght o inspect sccounts and other
records

Excopt s provided by law or suthosised by the
dirgctars ar a0 ordinary resclution of the comgany, na
person |8 antifed o nepect ary of the comparny's
accounting or other recards or documents marely by
wirtuig of beirg a member.

B2, Provision for employess on cessation of
businass

The direclors may decide 1o maka provision for the
banefit of persans employed or formery employed by
the company ar any of its subsidignes (othar than a
direcior or former director or shadow direcior) in
conneciion with the cessatan or ransfer Lo ary persen
of the whola or part of the underiaking of the campany
ar that subisidiany

DIRECTORS" INDEMMITY AND INSURANCE
83 Indemnity

831 Subject 1o paragraph (2}, a relevant direcior of
e comparny or an associated comparny
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{a}  ary Eabdity incurrad by that director in
cannection with any negligance, default,
breach of duly or breach of trust in
ralation fo the company of an associabed

company,

(6} any liability ncwred by thal direcior in
conneclion with ke acliviies of the
COMpany or an associated comgany In
ils capacily as a tustes of an
ootunational  pension  schame (a8
defined in saction 222(8) of the
Cempanies Regulatons),

any othar liabiity incufred by thal direcior
as an officer of tha company o an
associated company.

This article doss nat autharise any indemnity
which would ba prohinited or rendared vaid by
any pravision of the Companies Regulations ar
by any othar provision of law.

I thig article—
{a) companies are associsted if one is a
subsidiary of the other or both are
subsidiaries of the same body conparabe,
and

(b} & “relevan direcior” means any direchor
af former director of the company ar an

associabed company,

Insurance

The direciors may decide to purchase and
alain ifsurance, at the sapense of the
campany, for the benafit of any relevant director
in respect of any relevant ioss,
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(&) & “relevant director” means any direcior .,51 sl genints” il a2y

af former director of the company or an
associated company,

(b} & “relevant loes” means any loss or
ligtilty which has baen of may be
incurred by a rnalevant direcior in
comneclion with thal drecior's duties or
powers in relation to the company, ary
assosiled company or any pension fund
of employess’ share schame of the
company of assaciated company, and

companias ara essociabed if one is & subsidiany
af Ihe alher or bath are subsidiaries of the same
body carparata.

LANGUAGE

85. Language

In the avent of any discrepancy betwaen tha
English and the Arabic version of thase articles,
Ihet English wersion shall prevail.
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in of PHOEMIX GROLIP PLC:

1 International Tech Growp — Sele Praprietorship LLE
2. Apara SPV Lid

3 Dkal Okab Sakr

4, Majis Abou Hamze

6, Seyedmohammad Alizadehlad
5} Hyperion Hokdings Lid

T Hades Holdings Lid

-] Artemis Holdings Lid

a Echio Hodding Liribed

10, Horizon Holding Limited

11, Versx Holding Limited

12, Mapile Troe Holding Lid

By Seyedmohammad Alizadehiard and Munaf AR by virtwe of written Sharcholders Resolutions
of Phoenix Group PLC dated 19 October 2023

Seyedmohammad Alizadehfard
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ANNEX 3 — LEAD RECEIVING BANK BRANCHES
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ANNEX 4 — COMPANY’S ORGANIZATION CHART

H.E. Tareq Alhosani

Chaiman
Board of Directors
1. HE Tareq Alhosani
2. Elham Algasim
3. Fady MY Dahalan
Audit Committee 4. Seyedmohammad
Alizadehfard
Nomination and Commitiee: & Coeill
Internal Audit Seyedmohammad Alizzdenfard (Bijan)
Group CEO
Munaf Al
Group Managing Director
CORPORATE HR I OPERATIONS + ACQUISITION AND LOGISTICS AND CONSTRUCTION PRI
LEGAL GOVERNANCE FINANCE ADMINI STRATION MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT DIGITAL MINING MONITORING SELF MINING RETAIL OPERATION MARKETING
MANAGEMENT
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ANNEX 5 -THE EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF THE VALUATION REPORT

Executive summary

Engagement overview

Situation

Our analysis

Other

Standard and
definition of value

v

We were engaged to perform a valuation of the Company for business
planning purposes in the context of a potential initial public offering

The analysis is intended to provide the Company with an outside perspective
on the Company's valuation and inform decision making with respect to
potential future transactions

v

v

In arriving at our indicative range of values, we performed various financial,
benchmarking and other analyses

The results of our analyses, including the methodologies used, assumptions
made and matters considered are summarized in the following discussion
materials

WV

v

The Report and underlying analysis are intended solely for the benefit and
use of the Board and Management in connection with business planning
activities in the context of a potential initial public offering

We did not assist in the preparation or assembly of any prospective financial
information or in the development of any assumptions therein, and have
assumed, with Management's consent, that such prospective financial
information has been reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best
currently available estimates and good faith judgments on the parties or
individuals preparing such prospective financial information

v

The standard of value will be fair market value, which is defined as:

» “.The price, expressed in terms of cash equivalents, at which property would
change hands between a hypothetical willing and able buyer anda
hypothetical willing and able seller, acting at arm's length in an open and
unrestricted market, when neither is under compulsion to buy or sell and
when both have reasonable knowledge of the relevant facts...”
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Scope of work
Service Business valuation

Recipient(s) Board of Directors and Management

Analysis Date 21 September 2023

About our analysis

Our valuation was based on information provided by Management and
is subject to the attached Certifications and Statement of Limiting
Conditions.

Our valuation analysis and opinions of value were based on historical
and prospective information and financial data provided by
Management.

We did not independently investigate or otherwise verify the data
provided and do not express an opinion or offer any form of assurance
regarding its accuracy or completeness.

We understand that any prospective financial information provided
was based on expectations of competitive and economic environments
as they may impact the future operations of Phoenix and that
Management consistently applied key assumptions during the
estimation period and has not omitted any factors that may be
relevant. In addition, Management understands that any such
omissions or misstatement may significantly affect our valuation
analysis.



Executive summary

Business description

Company, through subsidiaries, provides cryptocurrency mining equipment distribution and hosting services, and performs bitcoin mining

Business description

v

Bitcoin miner that owns and operates a fleet of mining machines

Cryptocurrency B

. > Distriputor of Bitmain and MicroBT application-specific integrated circuit (ASIC) mining Industry
¥ machines
» Owns a minority stake in M2, a crypto exchange company based out of UAE
» Mining $247m @
= Owns and operates a fleet of bitcoin mining machines for self-mining CY23E revenue \//
> Distribution
= Exclusive distributor of Bitmain ASIC mining machines in Middle East and non-
Segments exclusive distributor in other regions
= Distributor of wailets and graphic cards $ 172m / 70% @
» Hosting | \//
= Offers hosting services for customers in the distribution segment as well as other CY23E EBITDA / margin
bitcoin mining customers
Geography > Headgquarters in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 13 '9 EH/S gi
» Additional locations in Canada, USA, GCC and CIS region Current hash rate
» Signed exclusive distribution agreement with Bitmain in May 2020
History

v

Started bitcoin mining operations in 2021
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Executive summary

Methodology

We considered the following principal valuation methodologies in our analysis

Methodology Comments
» Income-based valuation methodology based on present value of expected future cash flows
» Based on financial projections for CY23-CY28, as provided by Management
Discounted cash ¢ -
1 flow (DCF) method » Terminal value based on Gordon Growth Method, except for the mining segment
» Discount rate based on venture capital rates of return
» Range of value based on sensitivity analysis around discount rate and terminal period long term growth rate
» Market-based valuation methodology based on trading multiples of selected public companies
5 Guideline public » Reference companies consist of bitcoin mining companies
company method » Selected EV/revenue multiples based on review of certain business and financial characteristics such as size, mining capacity, growth prospects and
(GPCM) profitability
» Ranges of value based on sensitivity analysis around selected revenue multiple
Guideline
3 transaction method > Market-based valuation methodology based on implied multiples paid in selected precedent transactions
("GTM") = We considered but did not rely on the Guideline transaction method due to the lack of relevant deals for companies in the crypto space
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Executive summary

Summary analysis

Enterprise value (EV) based on the sum-of-the parts analysis of Company's segments, excluding minority equity interest in M2

‘ Business Methodology Comments Weighting Enterpriscial S @L-'Edid—(s—',n oIy
: Low High
‘ DCF Run off scenario® ‘ Discount rate: 32.5%-37.5% 50% 2,300 2,740i
| ‘ E 1 2.0%-2.5: B ) ) | |
|0 EV/CY24 Revenue i e 254 2320 2,900
‘ Mining GPCM | Revenue: $1162m - o N
‘ | Selected EV/ Hash rate: 50.0x-60.0x
‘ B EV/CY24 Haﬁh rate ,‘.A Hash rate: 47 EH/s 25% 2,370 2,840
Concluded \ - 230 2,810
| Discount rate: 27.5%32.5%
DCF Gordon Growth Model ‘ Terninal rowih ate: 3.4%4.4% - 50% 361 i 460 |
EV/CY23 Revenve Selected EV/Revenue: 2.0x-2.5x 7% 360 450
) - Revenue: $180m ) B | - B - |
DEbion GPCM e | o Ce oL 17 260 30
B Revenue: $260m B
Selected EV/Revenue: 0.5x-1.0x
| EV/CY25 Revenue Revenue: $389m - 17h 190 Bﬂ
Concluded [ 316 435
\
Discount rate: 27.5%32.5%
DCF Gordon ?rowth Model | Terminal growth rate: 3.4%4.45% . 50% 146 188 |
\ 1,01 ‘
‘ . EV/CY24 Revenue ‘ Selected EV/Revenue: 1.0x-1.5x 254 ‘ 180 260
[ Hosting Revenue: $176m
1 G | Selected EV/Revenue: 0.5¢-1.0x
| EV/CY25 Revenue T 25% 120 240
‘ Revenue: $244m -
‘ Concluded \ o - 148 219
Implied EV/CY24 revenue: 1.7x-2.2x

‘ Phoenix, excl. M2 i Concluded

CY24 Revenue: $1598m

2,780

3,460 |
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Executive summary

Summary analysis
Total equity value of the Company, including minority equity interest in M2

Phoenix equity value

[ Value, rounded (5 in millions)
[

Low I High Value indication
Phoenix, excl. M2, enterprise value 2,780 3,460 As of the Analysis Date and based on the parameters and assumptions
Core business cash 2 2 outlined in this Report, fair market value of total equity is reasonably
Core busi debt @ (‘{)_ represented to range from $2.89 billion to $3.60 billion for the
Equity value owned by Phoenix in M2 ) 116 146 Company:
Total equity value 2,890 3,600
M2 equity value calculation
; A 2 | Value, rounded ($ in millions) |
Methodology | Comments Welgn.tnng ‘v o High ‘
Discount rate: 55.0%-65.0% |
s ‘ Gardcn oM Mt | Terminal growth rate: 3.4%-4.4% 5?7 276 - 349ﬂ
Selected EV/Revenue: 2.0x-3.0x
GPCM EV/CY24 Revenue Revenue: $138m - 7 50% ) ZEO_ B 4 1
Concluded Enterprise value [ ) i | 278 380 |
Cash adjustment ) o 92 92
Stub period profit . 16 16
Debt adjustment o . - . =
Net debt = 108 108
Equity value e S S e —— 8
lfhoenix stake in M2 - ) 30% 30%
Equity value owned by Phoenix in M2 116 146
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Executive summary

Summary of indicative values

Implied EV/ 2024 Revenue multiple for the company in line with comparable company averages
» 2024 EV/ Revenue multiple for the
company considers the first year of

4.50% normalized operations expected by
management, and is in line with the

S mean of comparable company
3.50% revenue multiples

» Phoenix Group's implied multiple is
3.00x based on a higher expected revenue
2.50% growth rate and increases in EBITDA

Rev, multiple average - 2.16x margin which are offset by

e e B B i B BB projection risk from missing forecast
150 figures

» The Company’s current operations
1.00x are nearing but have not yet scaled

to the level of the two largest
0501 l . I I I companies in this space, Marathon
0.00x Digital and Riot Platforms
o Qg; Q\g <\<, Qb & (\U \(\g £

2024 Revenue multiples
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